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Chairman s statement

Chairman's statement

From start-up
to delivery

Contents

when first appointed Chairman of the British
Business Bank in October 2013, I said that this
was an idea of 1ts time - with the potential to
be a key catalyst in producing a more effective
set of financaing options for smaller businesses.

ﬁ As we file our second set of accounts The way we formulate our solutions
itis clear that we are centinLing to - from our dynamic iterative progess to
make significant progress along the put in place the Northern Powerhouse
oad to fulfiling that am Investrment Fuad to the open nature
of our Help to Grow initial phase -
_ﬂmoﬂmﬂm 1 Eo:_ﬂ be far nn..wmx helps us build fruitful partrerships
that we have gone from start-up that bring ta bear our own expertise
phase to delivery While the figures " and money and that of cur partners
in this report largely speak for
themselves 1t1s worth reiterating we have done this by bullding a
Charrman s statement 2 the effort and thought that has gone powerful and talented platform of
Ron Emerson into making that happen people which has the capability to
Chief Executive's statement 4 Chairman » develop a wide range of innovative
British Business Bank ._.:_mn__n_:m_ of mm_nnmmm aﬂmmﬂ_p :wm_um_”ﬂE. and relevant solutions increasingly
Strategic report 6 w_nn“:m: § im_,_\mcmum__“_ ca wwﬂ m: 0 we are recognised across government
Qwo ,_.wm_“_ wan_.ﬂ_u...mm_.mw“wonwﬂmm .:um g and our stakeholders as agents for
Directors’ report 35 - h ho get things do
v market businesses and stakeholders | £hange who get things done
Corporate govemance statemant 40 across the range of ourwork Arecent | Butts notjust about commeral
example of thists the rewsed version partnerships - our public sector
Risk management report 45 of the Business Finance Guide that we  partners include the Department for
have launched whichinvolved more Communities and Local Government,
Directors’ remuneration report 51 than twenty partner organisations UK Export Finance the Local Enterprise
Partnerships and HM Treasury -
D bil 62
irectors’respansibilities maddition to our home' Department
Independent suditor’s report 63 for Business Energy and Industrial
Strategy - as we work together to
Consclidated financial statements &B bring about real and lasting
improvements in markets for smaller
Notes 1o the tonsolidated financial statements 72 business finance
Company financial statements 103
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Chairman’s statement

With such success we are being
approached to do stllmore and while
we have had to deaf with the many
challenges that an increased role
brings we can look back over the past
year with a great deal of pride inwhat
we have achieved

European Referendum
Result

©n 23 June the Urited Kingdom
voted te leave the European Union
This generates some uncertamty
for the Bank, as some of our
programmes refy on EU funding

or guarantees but also creates
opportumity for us to respond to the
changing environment, building on
the platform we have established
We are in close contact with our
stakeholders and are monitoring
market conditions to ensure that
we jespond as apprepnate

People

tve said before that one thing that
really shines through about our
organisation 15 the shared sense
af purpose and rission that runs

A4

One thing that really
shines through about
our organisation 1s
the shared sense of
purpose and mission
that runs through it
|44

throughit This drive to improve
and behef in what we are doing
helps us to thrive as we deliver our
expanded agenda

e are taking on new staff to deliver
these new prigrities and colleagues
across the British Business Bank are
being recogrused for example the
annual Fintech nnovation award for
alternative debt finance In-house
inngvation award for cur Legal team at
the British Legal Awards and individual
recognition for Shamika Amarasekara
our General Counsel and Keith Morgan
our Chief Executive

The Board

During the year Mana Turner gave
notification of her intention to resign
from the Board as she moved to an
overseas assignment One of our

non executives, Teresa Graham
stepped in 35 the intersm Chair of the
Risk Committee and we have recently
welcomed Neeta Atkar to the rale on
apermanerst basis

And finally there wili shortly be
another change at Board level Having
been Chairman of the 8ntish Business

Bank since October 2013 and
overseen its setup, | feel thisis a good
time for me to hand over the reins 1o
 successor to take the business
through to the next stage which Twill
doinOctober It has been a dehght to
waork with Keith Morgan duning this
very busy and formatwe ime and the
market can be confident that he will
congnue to develop the capabilities
and effectiveness of the bank Iwould
also like to thank alf of the staff for
what has been a truly remarkable
performance on their partin creating
this powerful new platform to support
I the SME sector

Ron Emerson
Chairman

Britrsh Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Chief Executive's statement

Chief Executive's statement

A year of growth
and momentum

As highlighted 1n the Chairman’s report,

this year has been a story of being asked

to do more, deliver mare, and develop

more to help scale-ups, as well as continuing
to deliver for start-ups and stable and
sustainably growing businesses.

LY

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive
British Business Bank

During the year we have developed
new finance inisatives which both
serve the needs of smaller businesses
and support the Government's key
priofities - incleding the new Northem
Powerhouse and Midlands Engine
Investment Funds and the Help to
Grow programme

Cur balance sheet has shown
substantial growth - tonfirmung that
we ourselves are a fast growing
business in scale-up made

Against our four Key Performance
Indicators we have delvered in
2015-16

- anincrease of 45% n the total
stock of finance offered through
the Banks pragrammes

— ncreased support for diversity
1n the market by working
ovenwhelmingly through smaller
banks non-banks, alternative
lenders and aquity Investors,

- better information on finance
options, contributing to an
increasec awaraness of alternative
finance options amengst SMES,

- a2 0% retumn on caprial deployed
exceeding the target set by
Gaovernment

The financial statements for British
Business Bank plc show a net
operating profitof £31 8Bm Although
we expect tomake a positive return
on our Enterpnse Capital Funds
accounting standards reguire us
torecognise up front provisions on
new commitments In this programme

A4

Our balance sheet has
shown substantial growth
- confirming that we
ourselves are a fast-
growing business in
scale-up mode

rv

These provisions are unwound as
funds are deployed over future years
These are not prowisians for bad debts
ang are expecied to unwind over
future years

we've always said that we will adapt to
market conditions flexing our offering
1o best serve the needs of the UK's
smaller businesses Qur Small Business
Fance Market report, published this
February indicated that business
requirements were changing from
warking to growth capital As a result,
we dedicated more of our resourtes

to asset finance and growth finance,
including early stage venture capital
The report also illustrated that more
needs to be done to build a diverse
marketplace for finance offering
smaller companies more choice
Through our ENABLE programmes

and British Business Bank Investments
we are nowr supporting challenger
banks arange of asset finance
providers and a growing number of
pnvate debt funds as well as fast
growing marketplace lenders

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Acceunts 2016
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1 Increase the

2 Help to create 3 Promote better 4 Achieve this

supply of amore diverse information whilstmanaging
finance finance market in the market taxpayers’
money efhciently
£7 5bn
£51bn

415 WISI6 201415 201516 204 15 2015-16
Stock of hnance Percentage through Awarenass of different
non Big Four banks forms of finance

But larger lenders are important
partners, also - Lioyds Banking Group
has recently led the way on our Help
to Grow offering by beceming the first
partner under the programme - and
we continue to work with the larger
banks in providing much needed

dabt to companies with less collateral
or ashort track record through the
Enterpnse Finance Guarantee
programme Recommendations from
the programme s recent review will
enable us to make it more widely
accessible benefiting smaller
businesses our partners, and the
wider economy

Alongside our activities on the supply
side we have been closely involved

In delivering measures to Increase
smaller business demand for and
confidence in awidervaneiy of finance
opbions In2015-16 we advised

HM Treasury on the designation of
new finance platforms that will accept
referrals of smaller businesses that
have been declined facilities by their
bank The first three platforms wers
announced at Budget 2016 - aworld
first for an wmtiative of this sort
Inadditien we provided advice to

HM Treasury on the designation of

909%
ww_#-

credit reference agencies that willuse
increased infermatien from banks to
make credit scare data more widely
ava/lable to a broader range of lenders

We were also pleased to recently
update our popular Business Finance
Guide which we publish jointly with
ICAEW's Corporate Finance Faculty
with a new digital presence at
thebusinesshnanceguide co uk

The quide 1s already accessible to more
than a mullon smaller businesses,
helping them understand and access
the type of finance they need

2015 16 has been a year of growth
and momentum As we enter a peniod
of increased uncertainty following the
EV referendum we will redouble qur
efforts to support key segments of the
small business finance market, helping
the UK's smaller businesses reahse
their potenyial

2T oy

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive

48%
] -

Retumn on capital ceployed
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Strategic
report

The British Business Bank is a national
economic development bank with a
remit to design, deliver and efhiciently
manage UK-wide smaller business
access to finance programmes for the UK
government Established in November
2014, 1t 1s an operationally-independent,
wholly government-owned plc

Our mission and cbjectives

The British Business Bank's mission 1s to make
finance markets for smaller businesses work
more effectively, allowing those businesses to
prosper, grow and build UK economic aciivity

|




Strategic report

to smaller businesses where markets
don't work well

1. Increase the supply of finance

2.Help to create a more diverse

finance market

for smaller businesses, with greater choice
of options and provider

in the market
burlding confidence among SMEs intheir

understanding of the finance options available

to them

taxpayers’' money efficiently

Ha
%U 3. Promote better information

4, Achieve this whilst managing

and within a rebust nsk management framework

Bntish Business Bank ~ Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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State of the market

The British Business Bank aims to
improve finance markets for smaller
businesses *We provide policy
advice direct to ministers on access
to finance interventions, drawing
on our market insight and analysis,
and leverage our proximity to the
market We work collaboratively
across government to ensure thesr
interventions for smaller businesses
are rapid, relevant and effective

Government-funded access to finance
programmes are reguired because
finance markets for smaller businesses
do not work as well as they should
This 1s primarily due to preblems

with gettng the nghtinformation

1o the nght decision-maker guickly
and cast-effectively As aresult,
businesses undeninvest for lack of
finance meaming UK economic activity
15 held back and businesses growth
armbitions are not fulfilled based on
our market analysis The Bnuish
Business Bank (ntervenes at key
points, unlocking finance for viable
smaller businesses o support their
growth and that of the UK economy
We monitor the development of
markets closely responding to
changsg market conditions and
refocus our Interventions where

they are most appropriate

We currently support over

£3.1bn

of finance to SMEs

1 Small and Medium sized Enterpnses (SMES)
and small rud cap businesses

Access to finance was an acute
prablem for smaller UK businesses
following the most recent financial
crisis and recession but s now finally
improving as cred it conditions have
eased Flows of finance to smaller
businesses increased over the last
year as the UK economy expanded
Net bank lending has now increased
for six consecuttve Ecmﬂma asset
finance has continued to grow
strongly, and equity finance also grew
healthily overallin 2015 - although it
did show signs of slowing towartds the
second half of the financial year

We participate in a further

£4.4bn

of finance to small mid-cap businesses

Our 2016 Small Business Finance
Markets Report found however that
structural problems and localised
market weaknesses remain Some
viable smaller businesses applying for
finance are still rejected - particularly
start-ups seeking new lpans and
ambiticus high growth potential

seale ups Liquidity hasreturned to
the finance markets serving small
mid-cap businesses leading to a
decreased focus on the segment
Reqgional patterns are also uneven -
despite greater availability of finance
nationally - with both debt and equity
less easily accessible for smaller
businesses in regions outside of
London and the South East In
response 1o our market analysis we
continue to develop new programmes
- particularly in growth innovation
and the regions

Over

48,000

small businesses supported

Another important feature of UK
smaller business finance markets 1s
that the four largest UK banks have

a combined market share of around
B0% for general purpose business
loans The Competition and Markets
Authonty s conducting a retall banking
market investigation to explore further
how this market concentration impacts
on choice of Ainance for businesses

Our research indicates that over half
of UK smaller businesses stiff go only to
their awn bank and do not shop around
for finance This may be because UK
smaller businesses have imited
awareness and understanding of their
options, ar are unwilling to try some

of the better-publicised alternatives
such as peer to peer lending that have
seen rapid growth inrecent years We
are beginning to see impact from some
of cur measures to address these
issues but much more can be done

Looking ahead to the coming financial
year while condiions have improved
for smaller businesses since the depth
of the Ainancial crisis, headwinds are
gathering strength The current UX
economic expansion s vulnerable

to global slowdown and any shocks

to confidence following the result

of the EU referendum We are closely
monitonng the situation and w
tonsider taking reguired actien to
address any immediate access to
finance 1ssues

British Business Bank ~ Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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QOur business model -
how we are set up

We take a targeted approach to
making finance markets work better
for smaller businesses i the UK,
based on our in-depth knowledge
of the market

Firstly we acknowledge that the UK
has a highly developed finanoal market
that already distributes deep pools

of private caprital We therefore don't
seek 1o rephrate or compete with the
private sectar but rather work through
existing private sector channels

We don tdeal directly with smaller
businesses but only indirectly through
our partners meaning we canbe a
mmble lean but effective arganisation
with a modest cost base Each pound
cof public money we commit unlocks
several pounds of finance into the
market and we measure this through
aur first key parformance indicator

Secondly we enly intervene or
continue tointervene, where we can
dentify a failure in the market that
we Can measure in scope and size,
understand its root cause and robustly
assess how well we improve it Asa
result, our programmes are subject to
ehginhty critena aimed at making sure
that only those smaller businesses
that really need help getit and that
our programmes are comphant with
State aid laws We maintain a ngorous
programme of evidence-based
evaluations so our interventions
reman as relevant and efficient as
possible We then use this data and
latest market conditions to re allocate
our capital to where we can have the
biggest impact

Thrdly we aum to deliver solutions
that are effective both commergially
and froma policy point of view To
achieve this, we employ a mix of staff
with expenence in both the public and
the private sector We also operate
through three different legal entities
each of which has a different focus

- same more returns driven and some
mere policy driven We measure our
success In balanong our activities

across all three ina way that still which undertakes policy-dniven and

achieves a target positive return, service driven activities of government

measured through our fourth key (on a pass-through cost basis) that

performance indicator our financial tan at tmes be loss making The 1m —l.ﬁo —-3 m : nm
return to the taxpayer Thisis service arm can work diectly with

deliberately in tension with our the government’s balance sheet as a

more purely policy driven and second well as purely rendering services —\m< — mE

and third performance Indicators
(increasing diversity of choice ang
awareness of options amongst smaller
businesses}and ensures that we

Finally we seek to help smaller
businesses in the right way and
therefore always with a strong set of

public service values We are ultimately What we did to achieve We have achieved thisin the
tonstantly seek balance
e Jarm Brsh ﬁamn_ aﬁzmm_ﬁﬂsamzzzuzw our goals In the |ast year British Business Bank's first
e have a commercial arm (Britis e operate off both our own balance

Business Bank investment sheet jwhichs utumately consolidated tn 2015-16, against our four W\mw_ﬁ of _o_um_.m:o_._ We continue
Pragramme) which pursues both with HMG} and HMO's balance sheet Key Performance Indicators 0 develop new prograrmimes
policy goals and a market rate of * asaservice provider This gwes us we have delivered 0 BNSUTE WE are responsive
return Its profits support both the the dual advantages of both the UK's to market needs and
operational costs of the entire Bank sovereign credit rating and its cost of - anincrease of 45%in Government priorities -
and any losses from the Bank's long term capitat Alengside, we are the total stock of finance ! particularly in growth,
mandated arm {British Business also obliged to serve the policy goals offered through the innovation and the regians
Finance Ltd) which pursues policy I of HM Government whilst responsibly Bank's programmes

) goals through delvery of State Aid exerising the nghts of our operational preg

| e also have a service arm (British independeace 1o find the most efficent — Increased support for ,
Business Financial Services Ltd} ways to deliver policy objectives - diversity In the market by |

working overwhelmingly

through smaller banks,
The British Business Bank plc. pnincipal subsidiaries non-banks alternative

and business activities lenders and equity A,

Invesiors i
- betterinformation on 1
finance options, contnibuting
to an increased awareness
PR 1 ped Ty of M____Mmh.zmhmw .mm:ﬁm_ms _m._mm Value of our Enterpnise Finance
L e —. 2.British Business |1 3.British Business op 5d 9 5 . Guarantee enabled loans offered
’ Finance Ltd ank Investments || Financial Services ~ a2 0% return on capital, ] n2015-16
Ltd exceeding the targetset |
_ SRR T BT Re by Government

© LT T e BT g <o .
o Sidiasiine : o BUSDESS BUNY. o ey it

. -

s LA

E
[T
¥ ) ) )
-, % Lending solutions

e

£64m

Total value of the 9 170 Start Up
Loans drawnn 2015-16 making a
total of cver 37,000 loans worth
aver £210m drawn since the
programme began

£527m

Total commtments made across all
our programmes in 2015-16

mc partners

Total number of British Business
Banks partners now gelivering our
programmes, having taken on nine
new parinersin 2015-16

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016 9 10 Briish Business Bank = Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Our highlights 2015-16

=/

==

il

Over

£85m £151m 48,000

Amourt of new investment capacity
enabled by our Enterpnse Capital
Funds programme we anncuncedin
2015-16, bringing rts total investment
capacity to over £650m

£150m

Total funding enabled by the
Angel Co-Fund since 1t began
which supparts a partfolio of
over 65 high-growth busimesses

Total finance our ENABLE Funding

faoltes supported in 2015-16

Small businesses supported

a€£100m fachty for Hitactn Camtal

and a E51m facility for LDF

We participate in afurther

£4.4bn

of finance to smallrmid cap businesses

D

N

- We currently support over

- £3.1bn

of finance to SMEs

£185m

Total commitments made through our
commercial arm s investment Programme
in 2015-16 making a total of £413m
since 1t began

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Objective

1. Increase supply
of finance in the UK

Why it is important: When we make markets
work better and help smaller business get
finance that they otherwise wouldn't get, we
enable investmentin hiring pecple, buying
equipment, and general growth that benefits

the entire UK economy.

Under its first Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) the British Business
Bank measures itself on the total
stock of finance offered by 1ts.
programmes This Is a combination of
funds that we have directly deployad
aswell as private funds which our
participation has unlocked

Within a glven year the Bank wili
influence this mettic by working

to cotnmit funding through its
programmes Once the fundings
committed our partners will then
typically take some time (between
oneand 10 years} to draw the
funding down as they investin it with
smaller businesses The combined
funds beceme added to the stock of
finance When aborrower repays
aloan or an investment 1s menetised
then funds can be returned to the
Bank and other investors and will be
taken out of the stock of finance
measure Therefore the netstock
figure1s subject to several
countervatling factors

In order to increase supply we have
bullt up & wide range of delivery
partners who can get that fimance to
the market (see KPI 2 for diversity of
supply) Over the past year we have
made commitments of E527m

The Bank s total stock of finance

grew 45% from E5 1bn to £7 Sbn from
March 2015 to April 2016 We did this
by commithing 75% more 1In 2015-16
asn the previous year The increase
was achieved against a backdrop of
improving commercial conditions that
resulted in accelerated repayments in
our large Business Finance Partnership
portiohes combined with lower than
expected drawdowns

Much of the ncrease came from our
ENABLE programmes which added
3 £100m lease finance facility with
Hitachi Capital and a £51m facility
for LOF under the ENABLE Funding
programme following a £125m
guarantee facility for Clydesdale and
Yorkshire Banks towards the end of
2014-15 These deals also strongly
support our diversity agenda as
represented by our second KPI

}

Stock of finance
(Ebn)
g

B

N

0 |
2014-15 2015-16

WM BFPmid cap I SME

Our Enterprise Finance Guarantee
continues to be a flagship debt
ntervention for the British Business
Bank and we expect thanges to the
programme to make it more widely
accessible n 2016 17 Activity in cur
Investment Programme in aleading
UK challenger bank, also increased
our stock substantially

Bill Byson Skip hire recerved finance from
Business Enterprise Fund (W&N Yorks and
the NE} a British Business Bank partner

12
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Start-Up Loans - enabling
the successful businesses
of the future

The Start-Up Loans programme
delivered through the Start-Up
Loans Company aims toincrease
the rate of business creation and
to promote entrepreneurship in
the UK with a target of delvering
75 000 Start-Up Loans by 2020

Entrepreneurs with abusiness idea
canapply for a Start-Up Loan of up
to £25 000 and they also get help
and mentoring along the way

Dunng 2015-1G 9 170 new
Start Up Leans were drawn for
over £64m, making a total of
37 077 loans worth over £210m
since the programme began

The British Business Bank advises
on the programme’s design and
funding, and oversees its delivery
Thus year we published a first
year evaluation cenhrming

that the programme 15 meeting

1ts objectives ‘

Kokesa Baby recewed funding from
Start UpLeans supported by the
British Business Bank

rm:a.:u Solutions Enterprise Finance

Enterprise Finance Guarantee Guarantee review

The British Business Bank s Enterprise | | 2015/16 the Board conducted
Finarce Guarantee {(EFG)improves astrategic and operational design
the avallability of working capital review of EFG, covenng the
andinvestment funding for smaller effectiveness of the programme

busmesses It enceurages lending and its mpact on the UK small
institutions including banks to lend business landscape
to wiable smaller businesses that

would otherwise be declined for The review found that EFG

lacking adequate secunity or a proven continues to meet a need tn the

track recond market for smaller business
hnance and 15 broadly effective

In 2015-16 EFC volumes dechned as currently configured

compared to previous years aslending

conditions improved EFG1s a demand Following the review's

led programime largely dictated by recommendations we wiil be

economic conditions hut despite this, exploring an asset finance vanant,

the current value of loans offered re-opening the programmes
(£255m in 2015-16) demonstrates lender accreditation process to
there is still a need for the programme | Ncrease the number and diversity
to correct a structural problem n of parbcipating lenders and

the market enhancing cur engagement wrth
\ the advisor community te raise
We have been reviewing the operation | awareness of EFG amongst

of EFG and are taking forward a smaller businesses ‘
number of enhancements to the

programene

How the Enterprise Finance Guarantee enables additional lending

BRITISH

N BANK

Acting as guarantor -

Guarantee in lieu of sufficient security Payment
(Premium}

Loan or other debt facility

not otherwise availabie
N
4
Lender Borrower
Payment

{Caoital Interestand fees)

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016 13
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EFG casestudy &
Mango Bikes

Mango Bikes one of the LK s fastest
growing direct-to-customer bike firms
secured a £150k funding package
with Lloyds Bank through the

British Business Bank s Enterprise
Finance Guarantee

The finance Is enabling them to launch
anInnovative new range of road bikes
and they expect their product range to
quadruple withim the next four years

Ben Harnisen director at Mango Bikes
said The support has beenan
integral part of the latest stage

of the businesses expansion and our
relationship manager really understood
how investing in research and
development would help us to

actueve our long term ambitions’

i

i3
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An Angel CoFund case study
Fertility Focus

Fertility Focus is a consumer
healthcare sta-t-up with
groundbreaking women's
products and IR, currently
concentrating o diagnosis and
monitoring ireatment for the
30% of women who experience
ovulalory issues.

When it needed finance to br'ng

its OvuSense product to market

and create | rupid sales growth,
they approached the Angel CoFund
fur furding to match incoming
angelinvesiment,

The Angel CoFund was nvalved in

two rounds tatalling £2.1m, of which

it contributed E70Ck - inclu
convertible loan of £185k.

Rob Milnes, CEO of Fertility
Fozus sai

"The funding provided essential
capital for a cotical phase of
intellectual property and product
development, regulatory approvals
and initial sales growth,

"Without it, our rounds would have
had significanitly Jess momentum
and the company would have really
struggled to achieve what it has
over the past three years!

Entish Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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A4

The Angel CoFund's continuing strong
performance places 1t comfortably at the
upper end of the range when benchmarked
against European Venture Capital for both
early stage and later stage funds.

rv

Venture Capital

On the equity side our Enterprise
Caprta! Funds (ECF) programme
commutted to two new funds over the
year - a £17.5m commitment to the
Passion Capital 1 Fund and a E24m
investment into the £40m Edge
Creative Enterpnse fund The ECF
pregrameme now has an overall
investrment capacity of over EGS0m
We have also continued to invest
through the ¥C Catalyst Fund with
around £6Bm now committed to ewght
funds We committed £36m to four
funds through the commercial arm
during 2015-16 - Notion Capita
Nauta Capital IV, Atlantic Budge and
Pancramic Il

The Bnush Business Bank-backed
Angel CoFund improves the avallability
of eguity investment capital
supporting high-growth smaller
businesses It works alongside
syndicates of private indvidual
investors business angels and other
investors to ensure high potential
businesses can efficiently secure
funding to drive therr growth

Focused primaniy on highly innovative
and export-onigniated early stage
businesses Itacts as a catalyst to
better practice and Increased
long-term caprtalin the UK angel
market, and gs a stepping store into
wider and later stage venture capital
{which 15 supported by our ECFs and
VC Catalyst Fund)

The Angel CoFund s continuing strong
performance places itcomfortably at
the upper end of the range when
benchmarked against European
Venture Capital for both earty stage
and later stage funds In 2015-16, the
Angel CoFund took 1ts bugh growth
business portfolio to above 60, with
E150m of funding enabled It secured
a partial realisation from one
investment dunng the pesiod recyching
the profits for further investment

16
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Enterprise Capital Funds case study
Heck Foods

Heck Foads, a family-run pre Andrew Keeblz, lounder and
satsage maker, was founded by MD said:

Yorkshire farmars Andrew and
Debb e Keeble in 2012, Heck's
brands are sold throughout
UK supermarkets and via the
own web

Securing the funding through the
British Business Bank's Enterprise
Capitat Funds programme has given
our Lsiness the boost it needed o
take us to the nest level We have
ncreased our profits and are able
to focus on building a business of
some scale”

When Heck needed finance o
help them raise their consumer
brand awareness, Panoramic
Growth Equity - supported by
the British Businass Bank's ECF
programime - invested £1m of
equity growth capital.

Wholesale Solutions - how

the British Business Bank s
ENABLE Guarantee programme
helped Clydesdale Bank
launch a new tech start-up
nvestment arm

Qur ENABLE Guarantees
programime encourages
participating banks to lend enore
to smaller businesses by reducing
the capital they need to hold to
support such lending

The programme helped Clydesdale
set up their new ‘Emerging
Technology Unit' (ETUNINZR15-16
This focuses on established
fast-growing technology startups.
providing them with £500k-E1m in
debt Anance

A portion of the £125m transaction
1sexpectad to go to this or other
products and industry segments
Clydesdale and Yorkshire haven't
previously covered such as cash
flow lending specifically for SMEs
autemotive tooling finance and
introducing a new renewables

finance offering ‘
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Objective

2.Increase diversity of
SME finance in the UK

Why it is important: When we support a
non-standard small business finance product
or help an alternative provider, smaller
businesses benefit from better choices

and better terms that increased competition

can deliver

Against its second Key Performance
Indtcator the Bntish Business Bank
measures itself on the valus of its
activity which is channelled through
finance providers other than the

Big Four’ banks - Bartlays Lloyds
Bankang Group HSBC and RBS

Our objective (s to increase the choice
of finance for smaller UK businesses
- bothin terms of supplier and finance

type Quraim s to ensure that more

than 759 of gur stock s delivered
through providers outside the Big
Four banks

For most new and existing
programmes we work exclusively
with non-Big Four delivery partners
such as challenger banks, asset
finance providers, peer to peer and
other technology based providers,
debts funds and other non-bank
finance companies Enterprise

Percentage through
non Big Four banks (%)
100

BO
'

60

40—

P o

0 ——
2014-15 2015-16

Finance Guarantee and more
recently Help to Crow are the
notable exceptions These two
programmes use both 81g Four and
non-Big Four partners because

they address borrowing needs
imemediately adjacent to mainstream
lending and tapping into the Big
Four's extensive distribution network
1 the best way to reach signaficant
numbers of smaller businesses This
inturn helps us produce a greater

impact for the UK econom!
Prometing diversity - cur support for challenger banks p Y
Enterpnse Finance ENABLE Investment
Guarantee Guarantee Programme
Guorantees for SMEs facking Reduces capitol bonks hove | lnvests through new
colaterclor a track recerd ! tohold against SME lending providers of finonce

H m accredited
challenger banks

% R
2:8

SHAWBROCOK "%

600 :=
supported

350
supported

m w o a transaction

cE£70m

of finance

£125m

transaction

c£160m

of lending supported
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Supporting diversity - our support for Fintech businesses

Angel Venture Capital Investment
Co-Fund Solutions Programme
Matching equity ivestment from Encourages mvestments in the . Invests through new
business ongels' early stage VC morket’ providers of finonce

E Justinvesting

Ebury
ezbob |

m w invested In
3 the businesses

Importance of building
partnerships

In 2015-16 we took on nine new
partnerships across the business -
three in Venture Capital and six
through our commercial arms
Investment Programme Qne of our
man ways of increasing diversity 1S

to mr__uucﬂ new entrants and increase
the capacity of existing lenders across
the scope of the finance markets

- Across the bank and its
subsidharies in 2015-16 we
partnerad with challenger banks
ingluding Clydesdale and
Yorkshire as part of our ENABLE
Guarantee programme and
participated in Shawbrook's
tier twe debt 1ssuance

H. N Fintech businesses
supported

Over £20m :nvested

- We also supported debt funds -
a type of inance well estabished
in the USA but relaiively new to
the UK marketplace

- We supported asset finance
providers through our programmes
(ENABLE Funding and the
Investment Programme) and are
Iogking at introducing an asset
finance vanant For Enterprise
Finance Guarantee

Intreducing and supporting
new types of finance

We also supported some types of
finance that are less well established
as optiens in the UX finance markets
in 2015-16, including merchant cash
advances and private debt We also
increased our commitment to
supporting asset finance provision

P Rate%,Setter 4

:Umﬁm

marketinvoice

URICA

@ Fundng Circle

£330m

finance to 7,500 SMEs

ENABLE Funding - two new
partners, £151m of funding
agreed in 2015-16

In October 2015 we agreed to

provide a £100m facilty to Hizach

Capital UK to fund a portfolio of
newly cnginated smalt business
asset finance recevables LOF a
non bank finance provider beca
the second partner under the
pragramme 1 February 2016

These were the first two
transactiens of our nnovative
ENABLE Funding programme

me

which aims toincrease significantly

the supply of leasing and asset
finance to smaller businesses
1 the UK

v
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New equity finance delivery
partner case study - a creative
solution

In November we announced that
we were committing £24m from
our Enterpnse Capital Funds
programme to the new Edge
Creative Enterpnise Fund

Edge Investments aleading
creative industnes investor, raised
3 £40m fund toinvest in twgh
growth companies In the creative
industnes The fund also bringing
together prwvate sector funding
from leading institestions and hight
networth indwiduals nurtures
and assIsts creative businesses
to grow

The creative and cultura economy

15 an impertant and growing part

of the global economy and Britain's
creatve Industres sector 1S

thaving The creative economy I
acrounts for approximately 10%

of the entire UK economy and

provides 2 55 rmillion jobs, with

Jobs growth four times faster

than the economy as a whole ‘ *

90

Total number of Bntish Business
Bank partners now delivening our
programimes having takenon
nine new partners in 2015-16

Geographical diversity

It's very iImportant tous that businesses
Iocated autside London and the South
East can access the finance they need
to fufilther growth ambitions 1tis
concerning for example that reqions
outside of London received only 53%
of equity deals in the UK1n 2015
despite being home 10 79% of the
country’s igh growth bustnesses

Diversitying the gecgraphical

spread of finance and addressing this
weakness Is therefore Important to
support these businesses In 2015-15, _
the British Business Bank announced
two major Inbiatives to support this am

Firstly at Autumn Statement 2015 an
agreement was announced betwean
the British Business Bank and Local
Enterpnse Partnershipsin the North
West. Yorkshire and the Humber and
Tees Valley tocreate a Northern
Powerhouse Investment Fund of over
£400m subject to meeting European
funding requirements

Northern
Powerhouse »
Investment
Fund

The Fund will produce greater levels
of investment, increase the focuson
the potential opportunities across the
Northern Powerhouse Region and
provide increased flexibility in the type
of funding provided Together these
will contribute to better economic
outcomes for the regions’ businesses
growthand jobs

Secandly a new £250m Midlands
Engine Investment Fund - again, a
collaboration between Bnitish Business
Bank and the region’s Local Enterpnse
Partnerships was announced at

Budget 2016 - will further contribute

to efforts to rebalance the UK economy |
across the reqions

Focused on the Midlands 460 000
smaller businesses, this imtiative will
bring together legacy funding from
existing programmes funding from
the Brtish Business Bank and new
European funding

Followning the results of the EU
referendum we are seeking to confirm
European commitments but are
currently working on the basts

that both of these proceed

Brnitish Business Bank
Investments Ltd - champicning
diversity in finance provision

Qur commercial subsidiary plays
akey role in increasing diversity
of lenders and types of finance
It makes joans or Investments
of between ESm and £200m

in finance providers to smaller
businesses

In 2015-16, 1t made commiiments
totalling £185m throughits
Investment Programme

These included investments in
achallenger bank (Shawbrcok)}
amerchant cash advance
provider (Libens) private debt
funds (Cordet. Muzinich
Beechbrook} and an asset
finance provider (Haydock)

Its VC Catalyst Fund committed
£36m to four funds during
2015-16 - Notion Camta! lIl, Nauta
Capital IV Atantic Brndge and

Panoramic Il ‘

Midlands
Engine 4
Investment
Fund

Going forward we expect Help to
Grow and some variations of ENABLE
to be distnbuted in part through the
Big Four barks i order to rapidly
reach nationwide avallability

However we anticipate that the
majonty of ourinterventions wilt
remain with challengers and
alternative providers given that
allother prospective and existing
programmes work through smaller
debt and equrty finance providers

20
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Geographic diversity by number of companies {96)

20

15 _
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0 .
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East  West West Englond Mdlangs and  Midlands East  kekind

MWux Mess

Humber

investment Programme case study “
, Lumenata Lighting Design

Lumenata Lighting Design provides
Ighting desige ard instalkations
tor both commercial and domestic
applications,

when izs bank withdrew its funding,
British Business Bank partner
Ultimate F nance Group saved the
company from redundancies or
possible closure by quickly providing

anew factoring facility of £100,000.

This cnabled Lumenata Lighting
Design to win a number of major
contracts, laadirg to the dramatic
increase in turnover.

Director ol Lurmenata Lighting
Design, Paul lHindle sai

mate Finance guickly
Jnderstood the business, saw
the potential for growth and |
nw hesilalion in coming Lo my
assistance by quickly providing
the new faclity, which saved us”

The company is now expecting to
ncrease turnover from £240,000
to more than EBDC.000In

12 manths leading to te
creation of new jobs.

Muzinich & Co's new debt fund
- based in the North-West,
developing private debt
funding across the UK

In January, British Business Bank
investments |.td our commercial
arm invested E30 in Muzimichs
new £350m private debt fund

as part of our commitment to
davelop new and diverse spurces
of debt finance for smatter and
medium-sized UK businesses

Muzinich & Coexpanded into the
North West of England with the
opening of a Manchester office
whose pnmary purpose s to offer
growth capital to mid sized
companies located in the heart

of the U<'s Northern Powerhouse

Muzinich Chief Executive and
Charman George Muzinich said

"Many of the businesses that grive
the UK economy lie far beyond

the M25 We opened an office In
Manchester with a particular rerm:t
to establish a pnvate debt fund
backed by pension funds and other
institutions that reached beyond
the South East The involvement
of Briush Business Bank
Investments Ltd at a very early
stage in the process made a
significant contnbution n

O suCcess”

£30m

Briush Business Bank Investments
Ltd our commercial arm invested
£30m in Muzimch's new £350m

prvate debt fund

3. Improve SME
understanding
of finance options

_mc

Why it 1s important: When we make better
information available to smaller businesses,
we help them make better choices about
finance. This means they are more likely

to invest, knowing that they have the right
kind of inance for what they need

The business fAnance quide
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| Awareness of different
| forms of finance (%)
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Thus target s gehined a5 a mean awareness
tevel ot a basket of inance types which BBB
supports or intends to suppert In the future
Thrs includes Leasing/HP Venturs Capital,
Business Angels PZPlending Crowd Funding
and Mezzanine Finance

Efforts to increase finance and
diverstfy sources are ene part of the
Banks activity to)mprove finance
markets for smaller businesses The
Bank Is keenly aware that to function
efficiently, markets require good levels
of information to allow participants
te make informed choices

The Bank has therefore measured
the awareness of different finance
options by SMEs through cur annual
survey where we looked at the
average awareness for six different
finance products This was 48% 10 our
November 2015 survey, mirroning other
evidence that awareness and use of
providers other than their main bank
amongst smaller businesses 1s low

We know from cur research that
around 60% of SMES only contact
one provider when looking for
finarce - generally their own bank -
and around a third of these willcancel
ther plans if they receive a‘'no

We need to make sure that as many
businesses as passible become not
only aware of but confidentinthe
wde choice of suppher and finance
options available to them

British Business Bank -~ Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Toincrease awareness of finance
options for smaller business, we jointly
published a Business Finance Guide
with ICAEW's Carporate Finance
Faculty with contabutions from a
further }7 partner organisations
representing the finance and business
sectors The guide was updated in
August 2015 For the new editon and
digital version being published in early
summer 2016, we have been working
with four additional partners 1o
provide additional input and reach
levenng our converung capabsity to
bring together an unprecedented
spread of organisations for a venture
of this nature

e have maintained distnbution of
the Business Financa Guide through
events, conferences direct email
marketing media coverage and by
engaging with partners - both the
signatories to the gude and other
channgls to smaller businesses

The digital version enhances the
offening, featunng videos abeut
finance choices and making the
information more easily accessible
Itwill also provide an easy flter
whereby users will be able to use a
simple eng:ne to hone in on the most
suitable type of finance for their
business stage and future plans

Add

The Start-Up Leans programme helps
apphicants with wnting ther business
plans and ence the recipient has
drawn dewn therloan they are
offered one year of mentorning to

help their business succeed

Researching our markets

Qur unigue position enables us to
work with a range of partners to
gather better :nfarmation about

the market Qur flagship publication
the annual Small Business Finance
Markets report 2015-16, highlighted
the fundamental mportance of
start-ups and scale ups to the UK
economy, showing the contmued
growth in those markets and drawing
out the implications for the future
directionof our acivities

Our other reports provide mora
detailed analysis For example
the Small Business Equity Tracker
analysed the continued growth
nvolume of equity finance but
alsa drew attention to regional
imbalances with London based
small businesses receiving the
lamgest share of equity finance

We work with a range of research
partners including this year Goldman
Saths and the Enterprise Research
Centre on 'Unlocking Productivity
Internaticnalisation and Innovation
0 5MEs which highhghted the
important role that SMEs can play
inclosing the UK's productvity gap

Our survey on SME Business Finance
complements other data sources such as
the SME Finance Monitor, to give a richer
understanding of small business experience

Inaccessing finance
rv

Qur survey on SME Business Finance
complements other data sources such
as the SME Finance Monitor to give a
ncher understanding of smali business
expernience In accessing finance

We take regular opportunities to
present at conferences and semmars
ensunng that our undersianding

of small business finance s
communicated to finance providers
small businesses and the research
community

Improving finance markets

To help evercome information
asymmetnes faced by smaller lenders
we have advised HM Treasury on
the designation of Credr; Reference
Agencies (CRAs) which can share
SME credit data for the benefit of
awide range of banks and lenders
HM Treasury anncunced the three
designated CRAs at Autumn
Statement and the system went
live n April 2015

We have also advised HM Treasury on
the designation of Finance Platforms
to refer SMEs who gei rejected by the
larger banks The finance platforms
seek to match alternative sources of
finance from a broader range of lender
The first three platforms were
announced at Budget 2616 and the
system will go live laterin 2016

Lard received finance from Funding Circle
aBntish Business Bank partner

Bntish Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Objective

4. Manage Taxpayer

money efficiently

Return on capital employed

%)
'2s
Why it is important. When we manage our 20
programmes efficiently, we deliver value for 15
money. All UK taxpayers benefit from our . 10 ——e
ability to deliver the most positive outcomes 05
with the least amount of Government o

resources

All our programmes, with the
exception of the grant funding and
operating costs element for Start-Up
Loans count towards our financial
return target The Bank targets
achieving a return on capital at least
equrvalent to the Government s
medium term ost of caprtal We have
a target for the end of March 2019
of 2 525%

The British Business Bank achieved

a 2 0% return on capital employed
n2(15-16 whichwasuponthel 3%
generated in 2014-15 and sigaificantly
tegher than our target for the year
This nise was generated by lower
operating costs and strong cost
cantrol across the Bank adrop in
expected losses from Start Up Loans
due to improved credit performance
and a fallin the value cf claims from
EFG partners stemming from better
underlying credit performance

| Enterprise Capital Funds case study

Mimecast

2014-15 2015-16

N

In November 2015, Mimecast,
one of the businesses sapported
by {unding through the British
Businoss Bank's Enterprise
Capital =unds programme, listed
on NASDAQ.

Tha company received £3m fundng
from British Busmess Bank partiner
Dawn Capital in 2008 - adifficult time
for the ecaromy during which such

stage investmeont was hard to
come by. The investment hetped
them to expand internationally, most
impertantly in the US, to develop the
core platferm furiner and to add &
number of new products.

Atlisting. Mimecast's 7.75 million-
share 120 was priced al $10, ma!
the company's total share value
SS40m.

24
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Summary of finance performance and position

Financial performance Programmes
British managedon
For the period ended 31 March 2016 Buslness behalf of BEIS Total
Bank pic {unaudited) £m
Investment income
Investment Programmes 310 13 323
Lending Solutions . o o - __ 106 156
Venture Capital Solutions B4 - 84
Wholesale Solutions - 07 07
395 176 571
Management fee income 116 (107 03
Total operating income 511 69 580
Netinvestmentcosts R
Investment Programmes 15 - 15
Lending Solutions - (50) (50)
VentureCapital Solutions - LY . _ a9
Wholesale Selutions - - 00
05 51e)] 45)
Otheroperatingcosts B _ . o
Staff Costs (122) - (122)
Other operating expenditure (7.2} - 73
Depreciation and amortisation (03) - 03
Total operating expenditure {197) 00 {197}
Net operating profit 318 20 338
Add ECF fair value denvative gains 66 b&
Less Impairment of ECF investment assets (326) (326)
Add back impairment on new ECF drawdowns 102 - 102
Adjusted return 160 20 180
Average capital employed e o o ____%ws
Adjusted return on average capital empioyed Z20%
= o \Q
The Bnhish Business Bank
achieved a 2 0% return on capital
British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016 25
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Financial pasition Programmes
As at 31 March 2015 British managed on
Business behalf of BEIS
Bank plc {unaudited) Total
Investment assets B
Investment Programmes 7020 - 7020
Lending Solutions - 450 . 450
Venture Capital Solutigns 1656 1758 3414
Enable Funding - T T3z 932
BE76 3140 11816

Investment habilities
Lending Soluticns - {599} 529
Venture Caprtal Solutions {108 2} - (108 2)

B {108 2} (399) ~{1e8))
Net investment assets 759 4 254 0 1,0135
Other assets liabilities _
Cash B ss4 55 4
Tangible and intangible assets 0s 0s
Net other payables {61} {61)

528 528

Total net assets 8122 254 0 1,066 2

The Bank manages a number of
programmes an behalf of BEIS our
Shareholder These include UK
Innovation Investment Fund Angel
Co-fund Start-up Loans, ENABLE
funding and EFG We also admimister
the assets and labiitesnciuded on
BEIS s balance sheet relating to these
programmes and their performance
s taken into account 1 our

Key dnivers of financial
performance

Il
As an investment business fecusing on _
generating appropriate nsk-adjusted
returns onour capitalinvestment, our
financial performance 1s dependent on
a number of sigmificant items including

- the amount of capital we have
committed and the time persod

performance measures over which that funding is deployed
Overall results for British - the cﬁaﬂ_w.sa wmﬁﬂoqamc:_nﬂm nﬁ_ﬂ our
investments and ther ability to
WMM_.UM._mHmmm Bank plc group make interest and debt repayments. '
- over ume the abihty to exit
- mequ_ﬂwwﬂ_:mﬂwmm%pq%% investments successfully and

make a capital profit

- Thevalueof our investments Our net operating profit was mainly

ECFs are funds that combine public
and private money to make
investments in businesses The British
Business Bank accepts a lower return
from ECF in order to encourage private
sector investment i SMEs The Bank
1akes a pnorniysed return which s due
regardless of perfermance and in
return the private investor receives
abigger share of any upside returns
This means that although the Bank
expects ECFs to make a positive return
tous the meturnisless than typically
sought by a pnvate investor and this
difference in return s recognised as
anmpairment The impairment then
reverses over the life of the ECF

The Bank has therefore recogrnised a
provision totalling £37mn the year
ended 31 March 2016 This provision

increased by £209m driven by £31 0mof income fram the  doesr't relate to an underlying loss
— We made new commitments Investment programme cost control anour mvestments and s therefore
of E527m | over ous operating costs and the excluded from the calculation of
management fees earned from a adjusted nouonal return on equity
- Netassets increased by £164m number of our products incfuding the {8515 the reversal over tme of the
to E6lZm assets we manage on behalf of BEIS assooated impairment)
Although the Bank generated net
1 operating profit of £31.8m, 1t made an
overall loss of £9 3m before tax Thisis
as a result of the required accounting
treatment for Enterprise Capital
Funds (ECF)
26 Bnitish Business Bank - Annua! Report and Accounts 2016
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Funding

We require funding ta make
Investments and run our gperations
Depending on our requirements
these can be met from two sources
ournvestrment earnings and

our sharehoider

To fund our capital investments

we Issue shares to our sharehelder
and utihse available cash from

our operations including asset
repayments At 31 March 2016, UK
Government held shares totalling
£836min British Business Bank ple,
comprising the entire share capital
of the Company

Our operating costs are funded
through investment income plus a
management fee that BEIS pays us
for managing assets on their behalf
(€10 7mn 2015-16)

At 31 March 2015, British Business
Bank plc held £58 4mn cash
generated partly through sis own
operations and partly through
shareholder funding The Bank
maintans a cash balance of at least
£50m to fund mvestmants and can
increase thrs balance in kine with
nvestment demands The major
of these funds (£S5 8m} are heid
within the Government Banking
Sarvice to ensure that there s mmimal
cost 1 the Exchequer

Our assets

Qur pregrammes invest ina wide
range of financal instruments through
pavate sector partners o enable us
to achieve our objective of providing
greater volume and choke of finance
to SMEs and small md-caps

This s reflected in the split of these
nvestments

- loans and recewvables £72 Sm
- held to maturity assets £31 1m
- availatle-for sale assets E7297m

- assets designated at fair value
through the profit and less £15m

- derwvative financial instruments
£1B85m

For many Investments we make
commitments to a fund and the fund
draws down cash as it s needed

This means there1s generally a delay
between our investment commitment
and capital being drawn

During the period to 31 March 2016
we (nvested £288m n assets included
on eur balance sheet This included
the acquisition of £36m of peer to
peer investments from BEIS plus
additional investment of £25m from
the Bank. £30mn Shawbrook (a
specalist Challenger Bank) £113min
the existing mid-cap portfolio £30m
m the Investment Programme and
E35min ECFs As at 31 March 2016
British Business Bank pic had further
undrawn commitments of E800m

to be invested across 1ts pertfolio

MBive receved finance from DSL Business
Finance (Centra) Scotland), a Batish
Businass Bank pariner

British Business Bank - Annual Repeort and Accounts 2016
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Strategic risks

Issues that could prevent us from successfully
delivering our future plans

Our future plans represent
an ambitious growth agenda
for the Bntish Business Bank

Over the course of 2016-17 we will
ncrease the amount of finance that
we fagilitate for smaller bustnesses
while still delwvening policy abjectives
for cur Shareholder in an efhcient
way within a strong nsk management
framework

The Directors confirm that they have
carried out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the company We
reviewed our nsk framework in 2015
to improve uponit further Given our
strategy we see a number of ctical

nsks that we are maintaining a close
watch upon going forward

Ad

Macro-economic
environment

We see headwinds in the coming
financial year Inaddition the current
UK economic expansion s vulnerable
to global slowdown and uncertainty
Further shocks to consumer ang
investor confidence could affect both
the flow of finance to and demand
from smaller businesses

Insuchcase the Bank could
experience losses from credit and
Investment sk as end borrowers
struggle and potential losses from
market sk facters such asinierest
rate or foreign exchange movements
that would afiect ourrate of retum
Simultaneously the Bank might need
quitkly and steategically to redeploy
resources {0 meet shifts in policy

prionties as new market gaps open up

We will increase the amount of finance
that we facilitate for smaller businesses
in an efficient way within a strong risk

management framework

44

European Union
Referendum

The macro-economic environment
may be further affected by the result
of the United Kingdom s decision to
leave the Evropean Union The Bank
1s momitonng the changing market
need and will respond as needed

People and processes

Inorder to both delwver on existing
commitmeny$ and responsibly develop
actions to address new requirements,
we need to have the nght staff with
the nght capabilities, in the nght roles
managed by the nght leadership

The growth required to achueve this
carres significant operational risk

as well as bussness nsk if a delay in
adding resources causes the Bank

te miss delvery deadlines for core
programmes and policies particularly
where significant new features must
be developed and implemented

The Bank also faces the challenge of
delivenng a number of key iIntiatives
in parallel within ambitious tmelhines
thatin turn places a stretch on Bank
resourtes and also relies on the Banks
internal processes and controls being
sufficiently robust

28
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Delivery partners

The Brrtish Business Bank's business
madelis relant upon our delivery
partners for efficient executign of
the Bank s Interventions Notably our
1arget caplial deployment volumes
depend upon the success of our
delbvery partners as we do not seak
o Operate through a direct financing
relationstup with end beneficienes We
also take reputaticnal risks hinked to
choosing approprate partners that
consistently operate In @ way that
meets our stakeholders’ expectations
Alihough we have many strong
mitigating factars in place we
delegate credit and investment
decisions o our delivery pariners
within agreed frameworks

Compliance with State aid
and other regulation

The UK remains a member of the
European Union, whilst it negotates
the terms of its exit and therefore it
cuirently remains subject 1o the laws
governming State aid As we maodify
existing pregrammes such as the
Enterpnise Finance Guarantee as well
as design new programmes such as
HelptoGrow the Bank must constantly
review 115 policies to ensure that we
and our partners continue o be
corpiiant with relevant regulation
Non-tomphanice can glso bring
reputatienal and business tisk through
negative publiCity and/or disruptions to
our abidity to serve smaller businesses

Informatien management
and secunity

The range and scope of data that the
Baik wil collect, coliate, and control
will rise as the Bank's operations grow
to encompass both new and existing
programmes We are conscious that
this increases our (ifiormation and
data nsk and have moved to
Strengthen our sysiems and
protections to match

Stakeholder engagement
and dehvery on objectives

As a national development Bank
wholly owned by the UX Government,
the Briush Business Bank has a
requirement to deliver on a number of
mtiatives 1 meet government policy
abjectivesin relation to small business
financing The British Business Bank
must engage with government and,
despite baing eperationally
independent does rely on government
nieratbion and approvals on a number
of programmes both existing and

new Thrs raises a nisk that there

may be delays in decision making that
impact on the British Business Bank
beng able to operate efficiently and
effectively Given the use of 1axpayer
funds.n the defivery of our prgrmimes
we also face the risk that the UK
taxpayer may not view the interventions
that we take as being good value

for money

The British Business Bank operates a
Risk and Control Assessment process
toidentify and requster key and
amerging nsks within each functional
area and across the organisatien az a
more strateqic level Risk Registers are
als0 i place, in ine with appropriate
governance, for significant projects

The overall Strategic Risk Register
15 revievvad w detad by semor
management and the Board

This enables them to carry out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks
faciag the Company A surnmary of
the key nsks that the British Business
Bank is facing and monitoring closely
15 outhned within the Directors Report

In2015-16 the Board managed and
monitored governance and risk and
nternal control matters through

~ the Board Risk Committee
- the Board Audit Commitiee

~ the Risk and Complance, Finance
HR, 1T and Legal functions

- pehoes for nsk management

- the independent review of
proposed investments by the
Investment Committee

During the year the Board reviewed
the effectiveness of the companys
nsk managemant and internal
control systems

Viabihity statement

The Briush Business Bank Board
undertakes a business planrng
axermise each year to outhne the

fiver year plan for the organisation

The Board believes it possible to form
areasgnable expectation of the Brtish
Bursiness Bank siong term viability
during that planning perod of five
years taking into account the princigal
risks faced by the company and rts key
ohjectives it should be notad that

the Bntish Business Bank s 100%
funded by the UK Government ang
the Board assumes that thus funding
arrangement will continue We have
afinanoial framework in place that
allows us to alter the allocation of
funding between programmes and
years, subject 1o staying within agreed
parameters Additanally, the British
Business Bank has undertaken a
stress scenano analysis of its portfolo
and the Board assumes that n the
event of a downtuwin that the
sharehoider vall conunue to support
the British Business Bank in delvering
its pehicy objectives in relation to
smaller businesses
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Our people

The British Business Bank has an HR strategy

in place to enable it to achieve its overall

goals, by making 1t a great place to work. With

a strong sense of purpose and epportunities

far all, we will attract the best people to !

deliver our goals

The HR strategy reflects the size
and needs of the organisation and
demonstrates value for money

The Bank offers a unigue employment

where people can make a real
difference Our annual employee
engagement survey Sshowed that
94% of colleagues said they were

The survey showed that overall
employee engagement is significantly
higher than comparable financral
services and public sector

" dast oce - proud ta work for the orgamisation, organsations
u_ﬂ‘,ouom_ _o_._:m” ﬂwm %, anwcqwz € and 85% felt they could personally
M:Mﬁmu%ﬁ“nww mm . wzm”._ mma s i make areal difference to tha success !
8 enoscape i of the business and its overalt purpose |
range of broad and interesting roles |
Qur strategy Our differentiators Dur goal
The employee expenence
Change the structure of - Strong purpose
finance markets for smaller - Commeraal £S and pubic
business, so markets work sector mix Anispii
more effectively and _ N inspiring
dynamically G:_.m am”_._n ,w.o:n_ culture where
alues baser culture smployees flourish
v ~ Make a major rnpact v
- Transform UK econerny \ 4
- Broad roles
~ Senior stakeholders ncreased business
investment, growth
- Acountabrlity and jobs across the UK
-~ Flexbility
- Exposure to government
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Our values

The British Business

The Bank's Colleague Forum meets

_ Dur values were developed fram
monthly to discuss eur values with

the views and input of colleagues

Bank has five shared across the organisation They are colleagues from Sheffield and
<_m__CmmN mmmj Oﬁ <<j_ﬁj a foundation for what we stand for Londen representing teams across
asabusiness and wili continue to the business
_ suppert cur W@% positively shape our corporate culture
Alignment with ! — Ensuring we have a culture that - Supporting gngoing learming ’ ' and behaviours as we grow _
U:M_ ness priorities makes the Bntish Business Bank and development to empower ﬂjmﬁjm. m: d _u__:@ ’ H
a great place to work colleagues to have reat
The HR strategy supports the accountability and provide timel
Briuish Business Bank s four core - M%w_ﬂ_m_ﬁm_.ﬂ._ﬂ:c_mﬁmhmmmm a and _.m_m<m3~qum%_mm cmmmao:v.
business goals clear dentty and renforces market requirements |\
We will support the achievement the strong purpose and sacial In addion to supporting existing
of these objectives by benefit of the bank both colleagues with their learning and
- Astracting and retamng the right snternally and externally development, and offering broad and _—._._“m@_._._u\ _—._._U_.O<m3@
skidls and diversity demonstrating - we take the best elements _H_”_Hm_.mmm::%ma les :.o_.m: a__hm mp_h__._a._._mq:
leadership having the nght from publc and private sactors e Brush Business Bank will laune Acting with a shared sense Challenging and navating
organsational design in place and to make the Biitish Business its summer internstip programme of purpose an abiding duty A v to create effective solutions
with an aim to developing young of care and serving cur that meet the chjectives
executinga robust performance Bank both successful and a les’ skdls and expenence to rk keholders and f kehold nd
and remuneration strategy great culture in which to wark people P market, stakeholders a of ourstakeholders a
suceeed in their future careers employees with faimess, ensunng that finance
Developing an efficient and - Whilst staying true to our honesty and transparency markets for smaller
effective business model with the values we promate diversity businesseswork effectively
correct structure resourte skills and recognise that people work
mix and succession plans in place at thew best in different ways,
We are moving from a start up enceurage them (¢ express
operating model to a steady alternative points of view and
warkforce thet Is agile enough to adapt working practices to
respond to future requirements accommodate people s needs \
- Establishing the Bntish Business where possible h F
Bank as a credible organisation by ~ Values are role modslled and Deliveri ng A v Connect ng
measuring our performance recognised across afl levels / Commitment to deleringa Collaborating agross the
against our goals and objectives and teams in the orgarusation i/ professicnal, quality service organisation, engaging with
1o all pur stakeholders and stakeholders, Government,
colleagues whilst and markets to better
employing taxpayer understand the challenges
resources responsibly faced by smaller businesses
to provide selutions ﬁO_._.:.:m_‘nmm__K
Minded
Exerosing good commercial
Judgement to meet the
needs of our market while
alsa staying focused on
the need to dnve
economic benefit
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Qur people

We recruit a diverse workforce to
ensure we make the most of the
talents available from all parts of
society We live and reflect those
values through our existing staff

We are proud that our General Counset
Shanika Amarasekara is a recogrised
champion of diversity In 2026 she
was recognised in the top 100 ethnig
minonty leaders by the Sunday

Times and as one of Finanoal Times'
UPstanding s top 100 ethnic-minority
executives

Our 'Managing Dwersity and Equal
Opportumitres policy lays out the need
o promete and implement equality of
opportunity and to manage diversity
n such a manner that people are able
to maximise toth thew potential and
ther contnbution

Male and female split of British Business Bank colleagues

7 Non Exgrutive Directors

1 CEQ

4 CRO CFO (OO and General Counsel

S SMT incl MDs

25 Directors

13 Manager

18 Analysts

W Male
B Femate

Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

We 1ake senously our responsibility
te make a pusitive contribution to

the communitres and envirenment
inwhich we pperate, and undertake
avanety of Corporate Social
Responsibity (CSR) activibies to do so

The (SR strategy 1s operated on

an entirely voluntary bass by our
staff acress our four areas of achon
environment, procurement and
supplers chanty work, and
education outreach

Environment

We act respansibly to manage
ourimpact on the eavironment

We are also working towards an
environmental audit and operating
a formal Environment Management
System (EMS)

Procurement and our supphiers

Poliies towards smaller businesses
are in place teensure our pracunement
processes are accessible to smaller
businesses, Including posting
opportunibes on the Covernment s
Contracts Finder’ portal, and we am
to meet 1o Covernment best practice
 terms of payment days for supplhiers

Chanty work

Colleagues at the British Business
Bank reguiarly give ther ime and
money forgood causes Qur official
nominated chanty for 2016 1s the
Pnnces Trust The Trust works with
young people to adwise first tme
entreprenaurs and support young
people back mto work The Prince s
Trusts also a delivery partner for our
successful Start Up Loans programme,
which provides loans to indwiduals
looking to start a business

To further support our actmities
colleagues are offered 1 day s paid
leave per year or equivalent for
voluntary work We also operate a
Give As You Earn scheme for tax
efficient financial donations

Education

Our teams work in therr local
tommunities to increase financial
Iiteracy and entrepreneurial awarenass
through presentations to secondary
schools Many of our staff are formally
enrolled volunteers on the Mosaic
Mentoring education cutreach, which
provides young people a package of
opportunities to raise their aspirations
and close the gap between thgse
aspirations and their attainment
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Future developments

What we will do to achieve our goals in the

coeming year and beyond

The British Business Bank will continug
to buld on the strong momentum of
our first full year and continue to
increase our impact We willseek to
resolve access to finance 1ssues for
smaller businesses with some short
term (over the coming year) and
medium term (over the next five years)
strategic reakgnment to respond to our
latest assessments of the state of the
market and shifts 10 paliucal prionties
Thisincludes assessing the best path
forward far our interventions follawing
the UK's referendum on European
Union membership Although most

of our programmes are unaffected,
anumber do include European funds
and guarantees and may require
evaluation and adjustment

The Briush Business Bank remains
commitied to supporting the Start Up
Loans Company so that st can expand
the number of loans provided and
tontinue te address the structural
drsadvantage that some of the UKs
newest businesses face in securing
finance However we also intend to
focus more of our attention and
resgurces towards finding effective
financing soluticns for scale-ups
(smaller businesses with matenal
growth potentral)

In particular an important milestone
for 2016-17 s the launch of phase 1
of the Help to Grow scheme targeted
towards high growth smaller
businesses - a manifesto commitment
for the Govenment There wall also
be further medium term work to
evaluate the needs of smaller first
time exporters, smaller intensive
innovators and smaller intellectual
property nch businesses

Allof these segments have specific
needs - we aim to unlock therr access
te finance with asmple streamhined
and interlocking set of mterventions.

Likewse, because we continue to see
evidence of long-standing structural
gaps in the finance market for smaller
businesses seeking to stay ahead the
British Business Bank will continue to
deliver as well as refine those of our
programmes designed to address
these Forexample we willbe
deplaying updates over 2016-17 to
ourlong runreng Enterprise Finance
Guarantee programme whuch helps
viable smaller businesses that lack
sufhicient collateral to bormow We wid
continue to maintain and grow cther
programmes that address the equity
gap for smaller businesses such as the
Angel Co-Fund Enterprise Capital
Funds, and the Venture Capital
Catalyst Fund

we will add resources to addressing
the structurally-driven regional
dispanties in access to finance in the
immediate term by executing the
Northern Powerhouse lnvestment
Fund and Midiands Engine Investment
Fund subject to confirmation of EU
funding commitments

44

All of these segments have
specific needs - we aim to
unlock their access to finance
with a simple, streamlined and
interlocking set of Interventions

rv

Simifarly we wiill promote diversity

1n finance markets by continuing to
expand our support for challenger
banks and mnovative financral
prowders such as marketplace lenders,
invoice discounters and asset finance
prowiders Qur ENABLE programme
has now committed over £300m

and we are investigating how 1o
develop the programme stll further

' The Bank s Investment Programme

will continue to seek out commercial

opportunities to catalyse and support

1 adwersity of supply of finance in the
UK for smaller businesses

Finally better and increased

' information - for smaller businasses in
making more informed choices about
their finance options, for finance
providers in making credit decision
and in terms of research inte finance

1 markets overall - has a pivotal rolein
Improving how these markets work

We therefore remain committed to
delivering improved information
“through collsboration with partners

to develop and distnibute educational
guides with HM Treasury on credit
reference agency data and referral of

+ rejected smaller business applcants
to finance platforms, and with our

! research partners to increase
knowledge about the markets

Approved by the Board of Directors,

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group,
together with the financial statements and auditor’s report for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

The Corparate Governance Statement
15 et out on pages 40 to 44 and forms
part of this report The following
information required by the Companies
Act 2006 can be found tn the following
sections of the Annugl Report, which
are Incorporated by reference nte this
report

- adescngtcn of the principal
actvities of the Group duning the
course of this year anindication
of the future developmantsin
the business and boardroom
diversity matters

- the narrative on financial nisk
management is tontained in the
nsk management report on pages
45 10 50 and forms pars of this
report

- details of the signthicant events
since the balance sheet date
are contaned in note 24 1o the
finanoial statements

~ nformation about the use of
financialinstruments by the
Company and s subsidiaries s
given In note 22 to the financia!
statements

Directors
Dunng 1 Aprl 2015 - 31 March 2016

Keith Morgan
Christopher Fox
Patrick Magee

Mana Turner
(resigned in May 2015)

Appointment and removal
of Directors

The appontment and removal of
directors 15 set cutin the Corporate
Governance Statement found on
page 40

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has granted indemnities
to each of its Directors in respect of all
losses ansing cut of orin connection
with, the execution of their powers
duties and responsibriities as Directors
to the extent permitted by law and
the Company s Articles of Association !
The Company provides Directors and
Officers’ hability nsurance

Gotng concern

The Directors who served dunng the
year have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue
n gperational existence for the
foreseeable future It should be noted

Greenhouse gas
emission reporting

Scope of disclosure

The British Business Bank reports its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions based
onits property portfolio The British
Business Bank plc occupies two floors
of office spate and 15 able to provide
emission reporting for 2015-161n
respectof its premises and company
travel acvities Reported Scopel
emISSIONS Cover emISsions generated
from the gas and otlused in all
buildings from which the Group
opetates and Scope 2 includes its
emissions from electricity The figures
provided 1n Scope ! and Scope 21n the
table below are estimated emissions
relating to energy consumed in
properiies where the landlord controls
the supply and recharges the Bntish
Business Bank

Reported Scape 3 emissions relate
tobusiness travel undertaken by all
colleagues using rail and air travel
which has been bocked through our
comporate travel agent These results
are summansed In the table below
Currently we do not repert on any
other Scope 3emissions

GHG Emissions 2015-16

Scope €0, (tonnes)

the directors were a5 follows that the British Business Bank 15 100% P z
- Ronald Emersan funded by the UK Governmentand the  5cope 1 (Gas} 4
- Jonathan Bntton Board assumes that this funding Scape 2 (Electricity) 106
~ ColnGlass arrangement will continue Thus

they continue to adopt the going Seape 3 (Travel) 9
- Teresa Graham concern basis n preparing the | Total 119
- Carohre Green financial statements Further | Total per average
- Chnstuna McComb details can be found)n the principal nurmber of employeas 11
- CenSmuth | acceunting pohcies notes in the

| financial statements
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Sustainabtlity prenciples

The Bntish Business Bank s
committed to promoting sustainability
Concern for the envirenment and
promoting a broader sustainabikity
agenda are integral to our professional
actiities and the management of the
organisation We aim to follow and to
promote good sustainability practice,
10 reduce the envircnmental impacts
of all our actmties and to help our
chients and partners 1o do the same

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Bntish Business Bank plc
welcomes the new legislation the
Madern Slavery Act 2015 tocombat
slavery and human trafficking We are
obliged to produce a public statement
under this Act for the reporting year
2016 and we are identifying the
steps necessary 1o ensure that there
15 no modern slavery within our
supply chain

Our shareholder

On 14 uly 2016 following a machinery
of Government change it was
announced that the Bntish Business
Bank's shareholder, the Department
for Business Innovation and Skills
(BIS) ts having its responsibikities
changed Qur shareholder s now the
Department for Business Energy and
Industnal Strategy (BEIS)

Auditors

Each of the persons who are a Director
at the date of approval of thws annual
repert confirms that

- sofaras the Director 1s aware
there s no relevant audit
infermation of which the
Company's auditors are unaware

-~ the Director has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken as
a Director in order to make himseff/
herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company's auditors are aware
of that information

Thus informanon 15 given and shoutd
be intarpreted n accordance with the
provisions of $418 of the Companies
Art 2006

Approved by the Board of Directors

L AN

Keith Morgan
Chuef Executive Gfficer

20th July 2016

Directers’ biographies

Ron Emerson
Non-executive Chair

Ron brings a broad renge of business
skills and experience to the beard He
spent his early career in international
banking where he held a number of
SenIor management pasiiions with
Bank of Amenca and Standard
Chartered Bank, where he was a
member of the group management

| committee and Group Head of
Corporate Banking Sinca 1996 he
has dvided tus time betwesn
Non-executive Directorships business
adviscry work and as an active member
of the Faculty of Management Studies
gt Oxford University where he was an
Associate Fellow

As anon executive ha has served ona
, vanety of boards ranging across hsted
(main board and AM) private equity
funded, large, high impact subsidianes,
private family owned and regulated
and unregulated sectors He has also
acted as a Senior Advisor at the Bank
of England and the Finanual Services
« Authonty Ren holds degrees from
Manchester Durhzm and Dxford
universines

E
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Jonathan Bnitton
Independent Non-executive
Director - Audit Committee
Charr

|onathan has extensive expenence

In banking, spanning corporate, SME
and investment banking businesses
Jonathan s currently 2 Non executive
Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee of ICICI Bank UK Limited
and a Non-executive Director for
Nomura Eurcpean Holdings Limited
whose Audit Committee he akso chars
Since 2006 he has also beena
Director of Sparks aleading children's
medical research charity becoming
Chawman in 2012 Most recentiy he
was Divisional Finance Director and
Head of Strategy for the Wholesale
Division at Lloyds Banking Group and
prior to that, Global Controller and
Head of Treasury at Barclays Bank plc
from 2006 to 2008 He previously
held senwor posts in UBS s Investment
Banking Business Jonathan holds an
MA In Engineening Science from Keble
College Oxford and 15 a qualified
chartered accountant

i

o

Colin Glass
independent Non-executive
Director

Colitis a Chartered Accountant with
his own practuce, wWinburn Glass
Naorfolk (WGN) He 1s or has beena
Non executive Director of several
companies some of which are quoted
on AIM and which came eut of the
WON portfolio He has always been
passionately snterested in helping
small businesses develop to thesr full
potenual He was a Non executive
Director of Partnership Investment
Finance {PIF) afund setup with
funding from Europe and Barclays
Bank, te support SMEs and social
achievement in the areas of Yorkshire
and The Humber He acts asa mentor
to early stage SMEs with hugh-growth
potential Through his deep interest
and experience in SMEs he was
awarded the Starin Practice Award in
2006 from the West Yorkshire Society
of Chartered Accountants and alse
was awarded Business Adwviser of the
Year in 2007 and Non-executive
Chrector of the year in 2008 both

by the lnstitute of Directors Yorkshire
and Humber InJanuary 2011 he was
awarded Mon executive Director

of the Year i the Grant Thernton
sponsored Quoted Company Awards
far hus work with AlM-quoted SMEs

In 2016 he was wicluded in the
Maserati 100 which was established
to recagnise those who are helping to
support the next generatron of young
entrepreneurs in the country

i Teresa Graham

i Independent Non-executive

' Director and Intenim Risk
Commttee Char

Teresa graduated from Newcastle
University Durning her ume working
1na Big Four accounting practice she
was seconded to the UK Government s
Enterpnse and Dereguiauon Unit In
March 1988 she was appointed to the
Government's Deregulation Advisory
Panel for a two year term and served
through two decades of administraoons
She was the first fermale winner of
the Young Accountant of the Year
Award for 1988 n recognition of her
contnbution to the small hrms sector
her profession and work with
Government

She was also the first female
laureate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants Teresa

naw works independently focusing
on her three passions - strategic
advice to ambitious growing
businesses liberating these
businesses from the fetters of red
tape and sunning The Lexs Oinema
and Tha Nemad, both social
enterprises in the cinema space
covenanting 100% of their profits to
a chanty in South Afnca She holds a
number of appointments Including
non executive mentonng and
adwisory roles in growth businesses
She was awarded a CBE in 2007 and
an OBE in 1997
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Caroline Green
Independent Non-executive
Director

Carohne 15 COQ and CFO of ProLabs
Limited the glebal leader in the supply
of compatible network infrestructure
and connectwvity products She was
formerly CFO and Head of Shared
Services for the secunity and nsk
mitigation company PGl Limited
Carline has experience of working

10 VC-backed businesses as well as
having ight years in private equity
imtally at 31 plc She started her career
at Xemx Corp where she spent nine
years in a vanety of roles including
supply chan, manufactunng and
finance Previously Carohine spent five
years as a trustee of the M5 Souety
and currently sits on the board of
unseen (UK} the chanty dedicated

to evadication of human trafficking
and sfavery

Christina McComb
Senicr Independent Director

Chnstina has held a number of seror
oles 1n public and private sector
organisations and has a successful
track record in private equity and
Venture Capital investment
Supporting and advising growth
businesses s at the heart of Chnstinas
career She 1sa former director of 31 pic
and was a founding diractor in the
Shareholder Executive Christina
cureently holds a number of non
executive Board positions, she1s
Chairman of Engage Mutual Assurance,
Semor Independent Cirector of
Standard Life European Private Equity
Trust plc and a Non-executive Director
of Bargnsmead VCTZ plc and Nexeon
Limited Christina has a 8A Hons from
London School of Ecanomics and an
MBA from London Business Schaol

N

'

Ceri Smith
Shareholder Representative
Director

Cer Smith 1s the Dhrector at UK
Government Investments for
overseeing the Briush Business Bank
on behalf of its Shareholder, the
Secratary of State for Business
Innovatian and Skills He was
responsible for the successful
dalivery of the project that created
the Bntish Business Bank

He previously worked in HM Treasury
the Department for Business and the
Foreign Office Responsibilities have
included advising on business iinance,
employment law SME taxation and
developing the government's
Enterpnise Capital Fund Programme

EL]
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Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

Keithled the planning and
establishment of the British Business
Bank from January 2013 and was
apponted Chief Executive Officer in
December 2013 Prior to this Keith
was a Dwvector and Head of Wholly-
Owned Investments at UK Financial
Investments joining in 2009 to
manzage the UK Government's
shareholdings in Bradford & Bingley
Northern Reck and Nerthern Rock
Asset Management Keith joined UKFI
from Banco Santander where he was
a Director of Soverergn Bancorp in
the US, focusing on retail and SME
strategy and the integration of
Sovereignnto Santander He was
previgusly Director of Strategy and
Planning at Abbey National and a
member of the Executive Committee
and alsc served as Chairman of
Santander’s Asset Management and
Credit Card businesses in the UK
Before joining Abbey in 2004 Keith
spent 18 years at LEX Consulting
where he was a partner specialising
in financial services

Chnistopher Fox

Chief Financial Officer and
Head of Central Services,
Executive Director

Chistepher is Chief Finanoiad Officer
and s also responsible for central
functiens including HR [T and Admin
Prior to joining the Bntish Business
Bank, Christopher was Head of
Banking at UK Financial Investments
where he was responsible for
overseeing HM Government's
shareholdings in Lioyds Banking
Group, Royal Bank of Scottand and
UK Asset Resolution He was also a
Non executive Director st UK Asset
Resoluton Bradford & Bingley and
NRAM Chnstopher josned UKFI from
UBS where he gained extensive
experience of financial services over
nearly 20 years having provsded
capital markets and investment
banking advice to arange of
governments and financial instrtutions
around the world He joined UBS in
1993 and is a qualfied accountant

Patrick Magee
Chief Operating Officer,
Executive Director

Patnck joined the British Business
Bank as Chiaf Operating Officer in
October 2014 He had previously
represented the Government’s
shareholder interests on its Board
Before josning the Shareholder
Executive in June 2012, Patnck was
aManaging Director of Carporate
Finance at )P Morgan Cazenove, having
worked at the predecessor firms for
almost 18 years Duning his career
Patrick has advised on a broad range
of M&A capital markets and corporate
broking assignments for a range of
clients i the Geneval Industrial,
Energy/Utiity Support Services and
Financial Services areas Patnick alse
spent two years on secondment to the
Panel for Takeovers and Mergers
During his time at the Shareholder
Executive Patrick was involved in
assisting with the establishment of
The Green Deal Finance Company the
set up and governance of the Brizish
Business Bank as well as work on a
range of the companies in the
Shareholder Executive portfolio
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Corporate governance

statement

The British Business Bank 1s committed to
ensuring the best standards of corporate

governance and I1s supported in this by the
Board of Directors and Board Committees.

British Business Bank plc's constrution
tonsists of its Articles of Assooation
and a Shareholder Relatonship
Framework Document which requires
that the British Business Bank plc
operates so faras s practicable a
corporate governance framework
that accords with best practice and
1o comply with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code 2012
{other than Section E Relations with
Sharehalders) or to specify and
explain any non comphance inits
Annual Report The 2012 Corporate
Covernance Code 15 freely available
from the Finanoial Reporting Council

The Cosporate Governance Code acis as
aguide toa range of key 1ssues w ensure
effective Board practsice The Code s
split between a number of chapters
and the prinaiples of feadership
effectiveness and accountability are
values that the Board consiers tobe
critical to the success of our business

Apart from as set out in this Annual
Report, the Board 1s not aware of any
dewviations fsom the relevant aspects of
the Code in the penod since 1 Apnl 2015
insofar asit applies to the British
Business Bank plc

Role and respensibility
of the Board of Directors
of the company

British Business Bank pic is led by 1ts
Board of Directars which s collectively
responsible for the long-term success
and in consultation with BEIS, the
strategy of the Bntish Business

Bank plc

As set out in the Shareholder
Relationship Framework Decument,
the Board requires no fewer than eight
Directors including six Non-executive
Directors Independent Non executive
Directors are to constitute the
majorty of the Board Our Board and
{ommitiees have the appropriaie
balance of skills, expenence and
independence to enable them
todischarge their duties and
responsibikties effectively

Matters reserved for the Board include
approving the strategic direction of
the business, significant investments
terms of reference of all committees
sk management and internal/
external conirols and appointments

to the Board and Committees

Qur Non-executive Direclors scrutinise
the performance of managementin
meeting agreed goals and objectives
As part of therr Remuneration
Committee membership, they are
responsible for setting appropriate
levels of remuneration for executive
directors and staff in consultation
with our Shareholder This is further
explained in the Directors
Remuneration Report at page 51

The Chairman is responsible for
leading the Board and its discussions
and for encouraging open debate

and challenge The Chief Executive 1s
the Accounting Officer and l=ads the
Executive tn the day to day runming of
the business and the mplementation
of strategy and s supported in this by
the Senior Management Team (SMT}

The Senicr Independent Director

15 Chnistna McComb whose
responsibihties are te work closely
with the Chair act asan intermediary
for other Directors as and when
necessary and meet with other

Non executive Directors to review
the Chair's performance

4Q
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Corperate governance statement

Appoimntment and removal
of Directors

Appointments to the Board are made
in accosdance with the UK Corporate
CGovernance Code guidelings for
Normination Committees In
accordance with the Bank's
constitstional documents the Chaw
and the Senior Independent Director
were appointed in a process chaired
by a commussioner from the Dffice

of the Commssioner for Public
Appointments

The Board comprises the following
directors, who served throughout the
penod 1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016
except as noted

- Mr Ronald Emerson (Chawrman)

- MrJonathan Bntton
(Nen executive Director)

- MrCohn Glass (Non-executve
Dhrector)

= Mrs Teresa Graham (Non-executive
Director}

- Mrs Carcline Green (Non executive
Director)

- Ms Chrstina McComb
(Senior Independent Director)

~ MrCeri Smith (Shareholder
Representative Director)

- MrKeith Morgan (Chief Executive
Officer}

- MrChnstopher Fox
(Execuuve Director)

- MrPatrick Magee
(Executve Director)

= MsMana Turner {Non executive
Director untl May 2015)

In Apnl 2015, Mana Turner gave
notification of her iIntentian to resign
from the Board with effect from

May 2015 and Teresa Graham was
appomnted by the Board as intenm
Chair of the Risk Committee in place
of Maria Turner

In September 2015, Ridgeway
Partners were appointed by the Board
inrespect of the recruitment of a
new Charr of the Risk Commitiee
Pursuant to the process carnad out
by Ridgeway, Neeta Atkar has been
appointed as a Director with effect
from1july 2016 She has taken
oves the role as the Chair of the Risk
Committee and Teresa Graham has
stepped down from her position as
intenim Chair of the Risk Commettee

Inaddition, as descnibed in the
Chairman s statement cn page 2
Ron Emerson s not intending to
extend s term as Chairman of the
Bntsh Business Bank and plans to
step down from the rele (nQctober
2016 The process for appointment
of a new Charrman will volve a
commissioner from the Office of Public
Appointments and will be managed
by the Shareholder

The names and biographical details of
our Directors can be found on pages
3651039

Annual Director election

All Non Executive Directors were
appointed for a three year term at thesr
onginal appointment and there was no
re election which was required duning
the year ended 31 March 2016

Biowise [trading as Wastewse) receved
finance fram Yorkshire Bank a British
Business Bank partnar

Board infoermation

All Directors are provided with
updates on corporate governance
developments legislative and
regulatory changes, and relevant
industry and technical information
The Board 15 supplied in a imely
manner with the appropriate
information to enable it to discharge
tsduties and any further back up
papers and information are readily
avallable 1o all Directors on request
to the Company Secretary In 2015
the Board decded to use electronic
delivery and format for board papers
andinformation toncrease efficcency
ronfidentiality and sustainability

Executive committees

Bnush Business Bank plc has a
number of Executive Committees
namely Investment Commuttees for
each subsidiary and the Product
Development Committees Each of
these consists of various members
of 8ritish Business Bank's senior
management together with Board
members when it is required for
particular investment decisions

The Board the Board Commiitees
and the Executive Committees have
been structured to provide a strong
governance framework Each
committee has Terms of Reference
which set out respective duties and
responsiities All appointments to
the Board the Board Comrmittees and
the Executive Commitiees are based
on diversity of contnbution
experience and required skills
irrespective of gender

Corporate governance statement

Board committees

The Board has a number of
commuttees all of which are governed
by the principles and remit set out i
the UK Corporate Gavernance Code
and whose terms of reference can be
found o the British Business Bank
wabsite

Audit Committee

Under the Charmanship of joniathan
Bnitton, the Audit Committee also
comprises further independent
Non-executive Direciors, Teresa
Grahamand Carpline Green Mana
Turner was a member untlher
resignat:on in May 2615

The Chief Executive Chief Financial
Qfficer, Chief Risk Gfficer, General
Counsel and Head of Internal Audit
attend Committee meetings along
with the external auditors who are
nvited to attend and report at all
meetings The Committee also
meeis privately with both internal
and external audit.

The Committee met five times during
the year {in May 2015, June 2015,
September 2015 December 2015
and March 2016} and attendance
can be found on page 44

Role

The Commuttees role is to review
monitor and make recommendations
to the Board relating to the going
concern nature of the Brinsh
Business Bank, the integrity of
financial reperting the financal
statements and any issues and
judgements they contain the
adequacy and effectiveness of the
imernal and external controls and
averseeing the relationshup with
the British Business Bank's external
auditor The Commettee also has
oversight of the Internal Audit and
Audit Planring process of the British
Business Bank

Dunng the financial year 2015-16
the Audit Commutiee considered
and approved the following matters

~ theoversight of the Bntish
Business Bank's financial
reporting process and the
process for preparation of the
ronsobdated accounts

- reviewed the accounting policies
adopted 10 ensure the British
Business Bank as a whole
complies with the applicable
Accounting Standards and
presents consolidated accounts
that are true and fair reviewed
methods used to account
for significant or unusual
transartions where different
approaches are possible

- assessed and approved the
process for preparing the
consolidated accounts

— assessed the extent towhich
the British Business Bank has
complied with Shareholder
financial reporiing requirements,
the annual nternal audit
programme and an evaluation to
assess the effectiveness of both
the internaland external audit
processes and appmaches as part
of its agenda dunng 2015-17 to
ensure they are beth adequate
and approprate for the
organisation

As required by cur Sharehotder the
Bank 15 audited by the Comptroller
and Auditor General The National
Audit Otfice carries out the external
audit for and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General The
external auditors have not conducted
any non audit services during the
financial year and the Committee
canssders that the external auditar
15 both objective and independent

The sigrificant 1ssues considered

by the Commuttee withinput from
the External Auditor, during the
year included methodoloqes and
procedures for determining asset
valuations and provisions the
significant accounting policies,
derisions and judgments the
contents of the Annual Report and
Accounts of the Company and
resourcing pfans far the finance
team The Committee also considered
the Internal Audit Planning and the
interacuon with the External Audstor
of the Bank

The Committee will undertake

an evaluation 1o assess the
effectivenass of both the ntemnal
and external audit processes and
approaches as part of 1ts aganda
during 2016 to ensure they are both
adequate and appropnate for the
grgamisation In assessing the
effectiveness of the External Auditor
the Audit Committee will have regard
to the scope of the audit work
planned and executed standards of
cemmunicaiion and reporbing quahty
of insights an theinternal contral
envienment and independence

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Actounts 2016
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Corparate governance statement

Remuneration Committee

under the Charrmanship of the
Servor Independent Director
Chnstina McComby, the Remuneration
Committee also comprises the
Chairman Ron Emerson Teresa
Graham and Cen Smith The
Commuttee met four times durning
the year in May 2015, July 2015
November 2015 and March 2016

Role

The Committees roleis toset the
remuneration policy for all executive
directars, the Chairman and all

other senior management including
pension nghts and any compensation
payments and to set the terms of
the Long and Short-Term Incentive
Plans and any incentive schemes
British Bustness Bank plc andiis
subsidiaries may operate

Curing the fnancial yaar 2015-16
the Remuneration Committee
considerad and approved the
structure of all compensation
payments to directors and all other
senior management the setting up
of the Long Term Incentive Plan of
the Company and reviewed market
benchmarks for remuneratron and
the performance evaluation of senior
management

Further nfarmation on the role the
remuneration committee performed
duning the year s contained in the
{irectors Remuneration Report on
page5l

=

Risk Committee

under the chairmanship of Teresa
Craham in anintenim capacity the
Risk Cominittee also compnises
ndependent Non executive
Directors Chasting McComb Colin
Glass CenSmithand jonathan
Britton The Committee met four
tmes during the year in May 2015,
July 2015 October 2015 and February
2016 and attendance can be found
on page 44

Role

The Committee s role s to advise
the Board on the key risks to the
Bank 1 the pursuik of its objectives
the sppropnateness of the Bank's
nsk management framework and to
undertake a full review of the Banks
appetite for sk as defined in the
Bank's nisk appetite statement and
according to the Bank s business
plan It reviews the nsk management
framework benchmarked against
financial services tompanies in the
private sector

During the financial year 2015-16,
the Risk Cornmittee considered and
approved the Bank's strateqic nisk
requister, looked into conduct and
reputational nsks asseciated with
individual dehvery partners as well
as credit performance across @ whole
range of programmes reviewed and
approved policies on Financial Cnime
Information Risk Management and
Business Continuity and assessed the
wider macro Conomic envirenment
for nsks specific to the Bank and the
fulfiiment of its objectives

Nomination Committee

Under the Chairmanship of Ron
Emerson the Nomination Commitiee
also comprises Non executive
(irectors, Chnstina McComb and
CenSmith

Role

The Committee met dunng
November 2015 and attefndance
details can be found on page 44

At the Committee meeting
nominations of potential irectors
were considered and recommended
to the Board

Durwg the financial year 2015-16
the Nommation Commiitee
considered and approved the
sugcession planning for Executive
Directors and the SMT, appointment
of further Non Executive Directors to
the Board and the board evaluation
process It also followed the Bank's
pelicy on diversity and equality As
highiighted in the corporate
statement the Bank used the
services of Ridgeway Partners

to appoint Nen-executive Directors
The Bank has no other connectian
with Ridgeway Partners

Solo Butlding Supplies recewved finance
from SWIG Finance a Bnuish Business
Hank partner
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Board and committee attendance

Thus table sats cut the attendance of Directors since 1 Apnl 2015 who attended each Board and Committee

Dateof

agpointment Board Audit Risk  Remuneratren  Mormination
Total number
of meetings 9 5 4 4 1
Chair
Ron Emerson 29 October 2013 9/9 - - 4/4 171
Non executive Directors
Jonathan Britton 28 Apnt 2014 979 5/5 4/4 - -
ColinGlass 24 June 2014 949 - a4 - -
Teresa Graham 24 June 2014 B8/9 5/5 4/4 4/4 -
Camhine Green 24 June 2014 9/9 4/5 - - -
Chnistina McComb 29 October 2013 99 - 4/4 414 171
CenSmith 29 0ctober 2013 ELE] - 4/4 LILS 11
Executrve Directors o
Keith Morgan 10 Cecember 2013 9/9
Christopher Fox 13 January 2015 9/9
Patntk Magee 10March 2015 9/9

Board performance

The British Business Bank 1S
committed to ensuring that the Board
and 1ts Committees operate effectively
and are continually improving Duning
the year the Chairman conducted an
internal Board evaluation to moniter
they effective oparation All Directors
and the Company Secretary
participated in the annual review to
ensure a ngorous and full evaluaticn
of the operation of the Board and

its Committees This process was
composed of questionnaires that
asked for the Directors viewscn a
numbear of matters including Board
effectiveness and procass
Commuitteesinteraction and reles
effectiveness of the chairman and
governance function and Board
composition The cutcome of the
exercise showed no areas of concerm
and the feedback recewved will be
revtewed by the Board and Chairman
as part of purcommitment o mantain
oNngoing Improvement

The Board 1s committed to ensure
the diversity of its membership

All appointments to the Board are
based ort ment and on the expenence
and skills required with due regard

to the benefits of diversity

Conflicts of interest

Each Director has a duty under the
Companies Act 2006 to avoid 2
situstion where they have, or can
have, a direct or indirect interest that
conflicts or possibly may conflict with
the Company's interests As part of our
Conflicts of Interest Palicy the Bank
has adopted a formal procedure for
disclosure review and authonsation
of irectors’ conflict of interest, which
requires written disclosure of any
actualor potential conflicts of interest
for all Directors and staff The
procedure requires Direciors to notify
formally the Charr or the Company
Secretary as soon as they become
aware of any actual or potential
confhicts of interest vath thew duties

1o the Bank, or of any matenal change
in existing or potential conflicts that
may have been authorised by the
Board The Brard s of the betief that
outside interests can be beneficizl for
both the Executive and Company and
has autharised the outside Interest of
the Chief Executive Officer in bis role
asaNon executwve Director at UK
Asset Resclution

The Bank has not make any political
donations or incurred any political
expenditure during the financial year
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Risk management report

Risk management
and internal control

Our Risk Management Framewark 1s a collection
of toois, processes and methodologies that
support the British Business Bank in identifying,
assessing, maonitorning and contrelling the nsks

it faces.

The Board has overall accountability
and responsibility for the management
of risk within the British Business
Bank The British Business Bank 1s not
aFCA/PRA regulated entity thougha
subsidiary representing approximately
1% of the portfoko Capital for
Enterpnse Fund Management, is
regulated by the FCA for controlling
but not holding chent money We have
polines and procedures ta place to
ensure comphance with applicable
laws and reguiations and we aspire to
follow best practice where appropriate
and applicable

Adiscussion of haw the Bank handles
1ts nisks in relation to financial
Instruments s set out i note 22

of the finangial statements

The Risk Management Framework
describes the overall strategy
towards the acceptance, avoidance
management and control of risks,
as well as the development of nisk
capabilities aligned to the business
goals and objectives

The Risk Management Framewaork

- demonstrates aclearbnk to the
overall strategy and business plan
of the British Business Bank

- 1sowned by the Chief Risk Officer
(CRO) and appreved by the Briish
Business Bank Board Any changes
to the Risk Management
Framework are recommended by
the Board Risk Commuttee to the
Board for approval

- outhnes the risk management
vision and objectives and the
appreach for evolving the risk
management capatility of the
Brnitish Business Bank

- 1sreviewed on an annual basis and
If regured more frequently to
reflect any sigmficant matenal
changes to the business econemic
or regulatory outlook

Ayearly external review of the

Risk Management Framewark

1s undertaken o assess the
effectiveness of risk management
wattun the Briush Business Bank
This review carmed out by third party
adwisers was last completed in July
2015 It benchmarked the target
operating model of the nisk function
and outhned the key development
actions for the function in 2015-16
The findings of this review were
presented to the Board Rusk
Commuttee and the Board The next
review of the Risk Management
Framework will take place in the
third quarter of 2016

Key elements of our Risk Management
Framework include Risk Appetite and
Risk Governance
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Risk appetite

Risk appetite 1s the level of risk
the Board of the British Business
Bank s willing to accept in order to
deliveriis public policy objectives

The Briish Business Bank s Risk
Appetite Pelicy acts as the link
between overall business strateqy
the nsk strategy and the Risk
Manzgement Framework by bring
strategic context toidentihed nsks
adopting clear escalation critena
and informtng the processes for the
denufication assessment, control
and monitoring of nsk exposures

The Risk Appetite Policy allows the
Board to articulate the appetite for
nisks that are specific to their concerns,
such as nisks to the reputation of the
British Business Bank

The Board undertook a review of the
British Business Bank's Risk Appetite
Statementin March 2016

This statement summarise the
Board s appetite for the pnincipal
nsks that the British Business Bank
15 exposed to [t1s tied to the nsk
categonsations detailed in the Risk
Management Framework which
outlines seven broad categories

of Level 1 Risks The Risk Appetite
Statement can be found on page 47

The British Business Bank also
undertook an exercise to quanufy the
potential downside nsks of 2 severe
downturn aganst our Business Plan
This assessed the likely impact on
our portioho assuming a Lin 20 year
sCenano across the vanous
programmes and the outcomes were
considered by bath the Board Risk
Committee and the Board

6

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Risk management report

Risk appetite statement

Levell nisk

Risk appetite

Definition

Credit and investment nsk

Market nisk

Operational risk

Information and data nisk

Compliance and cenduct nsk

Strategic and business nsk

Reputational sk

Risk governance

The Bnitish Business Bank Rusk and
Comphance function1s based vpon
a three lines of defence model as
outlned in our Risk Management
Framework where the

- first ine of defence s responsthle
for the day to day identfication
reporting and managerment of
their own nsks

Medrum-High

Low-Medium

Low-Medium

Lo

Low-Medium

Low-Madium

Low-Medium

W

The nisk of direct or indirect losses in on and off balance

sheet positions as a result of the failure of a borrower or
counterparty to meet 1ts obhgations in accordance with
agreed terms, or loss of value (n equity Investments

The risk of direct or indirect losses that anse from

fluctuations i values of or income from assets o N

movements in interest or exchange rates or credit spreads

The nisk of direct losses resulting from inadequate or falled

nternal processes people and systems orndirect losses
resultng from relationshirps with third partees or from

external events

Information sk encompasses all the challenges that resu

fram the gur need to contrgl and protect our Infermation

Risk of breactung UK or EU requlations internal policies or

ronduct standards, which exposes us to requlatory fines
and penalties financial losses and reputational risk

The nsks ansing from a suboptimal business strategy or

business model that may lead to financial loss, Inappropnate
management of public money reputational damage or
failure to meet internal and/or public policy objectives

The nsk that the firm will act in a way which falls short

of stakeholder expectations

second line of defence 1s
responsible for desigrung nisk
policies and methodologies
momtoning perfermance and
comphiance identifying and
raporting risks and providing
independent and apprepriate
challenge to the first line

of defence

third hne of defence provides
independent assurance of the
overall system of internal control
ncluding assessment of the nsk
governance framework

I The Briuish Business Bank encourages
a strong culture of risk awareness
and transparency which is supported
through reqular intranet updates
andin house traiming
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Policies form anintegral part of
managsng nsk within British Business
Bank They outhne how we intend to
function taking account of regulatory
or legal requirements and industry
best practice Policies are approved
by the appropnate commuttees and
communicated to staff We have in
place an enterprise wide set of
policies, frameworks and procedures
covenng the major parts of our
business Colleagues are also subyect
to the British Business Bank Code

of Conduct and annual comphance
declarations

Three lines of defence model

First line of defence

Thekey principles of this model,
as demonstrated by the diagram
below, are

~ The Board has overall
accountabihty and responsibihty
for the managemeni of nsk within
the Brissh Business Bank

~ The Board delegates specific
rsk management roles and
responsibilities to the Board Risk
Committee the Audit Commitiee
and CEQ and the CRO

= The CEO s supported indelivery
of these responsibilities through
direct reports from the senior team

- The CRO 1s a member of the senior
team and 15 alse supporied by the
Risk and Comphance function i the
delivery of their responsibilines

Second line of defence

Third Iine of defence

Day to day management and
nsk control

Chisf
Executive

Risk policies, methodologies and
independent oversight and challenge

The Board

Board Risk
Commitiee

indepeandent assurance

Audit
Committee

Senior
Team

Rusiness
Functions

Chief
Risk Officer

Risk and
Compliance
Function

Control
Functions

Head of
Internal Audit

Internal
Audit
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Risk management report

Principal nsks and uncertamties

Risk

Definition

Categories

Example mitigants

Risk management report

Prinapal nsks and uncertainties

Comphliance and
conduct risk

Creditand
Investment risk

Information
and data nsk

Risk ot breaching
UKer EU
regulations
internal policies or
conduct standards
which exposes the
Brrtish Business
Bank to regulatory
fines and penalties,
fnancial losses and
reputational nisk

The risk of direct

or indirect losses in
on and off-balance
sheet positions as a
result of the faifure
of a borrower or
counterparty to
meet its obligations
In accordance with
agreed terms or
loss of valuein
equity investments

Information risk
encompasses all
the challenges
that result from the
our need to control
and protect our
information

- Risk that British Business Bank s
requlated entity dreaches
requlatory requirements

- Breach of apphcable laws

- Risk that British Business Bank
enters into requlated actvities
withinits programmes without
being regulated

— British Business Bank employees
breach complhance standards

- Riskof end berrower default,
for example as a resulr of
poor trading ordefactsin
the delivery process
- Whlst the majonty of ndwvidual
exposures to end borrowers are
small exposures to mid-cap
companies are typically larger
- Delvery partner default or closure
- Venture Capitalis subject to
vintage rsk with the year the
investment was made the largest
single risk driver
Concentration within one industry
or lecation creates a ponifolio
thats subject to greater nsk
than a mere evenly balanced one

- Breach of legal reguirements
relating o safe-keeping and
disclosure of information

— Risk of business sensitive

information being leakec or

acadentally made available

n public domain

Threats of cyber attacks that

steal sensitive data refating to

the Briish Business Bank or
1ts delvery partners as well

as disrupt the British Business

Banks functionality

The Bntish Business Bank 1s not
regulated except forits subsidiary

Capital for Enterpnise Fund Managers

New products and programmes are
assessed against the UK and EU
regulatory envircnments

Allnew Investments are subject
to Know Your Customer and anti-
money laundering reviews

British Business Bank has a
Compliance Risk Managemeant
Framework and a suite of
Compliance refated policies
Employees are subject to a Code
of Conduct and annual Compliance
Detlaration

Delivery partner selection process
nciudes robust due diigence
assessment of underwniting and

santtioning processes, and thereafter

15 subject to portfolic monitering and

regular review

The credit quality of exposures is
monitored closely

The British Business Bank aims

to continue 10 Invest throughout the
econemic cycle therefore minimising

the vintage risk
The portfolio 1s monitored closely
for concentration nsk

information Secunty and Information

Assurance pehcies are 1n place

to manage information risk

The Data Protection Policy ensures
that the British Business Bank

complies with the Data Protection Act

The Brrtish Business Bank realises
the threats of cyber-attacks and
is developing & robust inaident
response plan

Bntish Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2816

43

Risk Defimtion Categories Example mitigants

Market nisk Thenskofdrect - TheBribshBusiness Bank makes - The Brrush Business Bank has minor
or ndirect losses material losses due to foreign foreign exchange exposure less than
that anse from exchange movements through 4% of its portfolio, and does not hedge

Operattonal risk

Reputatienal
risk

Strategicand
business nisk

fluctuationsin

values of orincome -
from, assets or

In movements

1 Interest or
exchange rates

or credit spreads

Thenskofdirect -
losses resultring
frominadequate -
or falled internal -
processes people
and systems or
indirect fosses
resulting from
relationships with
third partres or
from external
events

The nsk that -
the firm will act
inaway which

falls short of
stakeholder
expettations

The risks ansing
from a suboptimal
businass strategy
or business model
that may lead

e financial loss
nappropnate
management -
of pubhc money,
reputational -
damage or failure

to meet internal
and/er publc

policy objectives

Its investments

The British Business Bank
Investments are subject 1o
Interest rate fluctuations

Errors inexecution delvery
and processing

Failure of nternal controls
External orinternal frauds

- Damage to physical assets, utiities

disruption or systems failure

The British Business Bank
operates a business model which
15 subject to Delivery Partner
conduct and performance

Risk that the British Business

Bank s current and planned
products may not be fit for
purpose

Risk that the British Business Bank
does not meet 1ts deployment or
commitment targets

The British Business Bank is not
effective inmeeting its ohjectives
Risk that the British Business Bank
5 impacted by the implementation
of the result of the EU
Referendum

these exposures Ttus 15 nline with
government policy

British Business Bank conducts
scenaric testing of exposures sensitive
tonterest rate market valuation
movements

We require some delivery partners to
manage market nsk directly withun the
terms of the nvestment

— Risk and Control Assessments with
functional teams are held to assess
nsks and asscciated internal controls
Gperational Incidents management
process in place

Close haison with BEIS counter fraud
network and regular interaction with
key business partners

- AReputational Risk Pehcy 1sin place

The Bnish Business Bank undertakes

extensive due diigence on new

delivery partners and monitors

existing delvery partners

Service Level Agreements are in place

with Delivery Partners

- The British Business Bank has a
Complaints Policy in place

~ Aclearly defined set of objectives

and a rohust governance model are

inplace

New products are subject to market

assessment and a new product

approval process

Regular review of the Strategic

Risk Register by the senior team

and Board members

- Regular review of market conditions,
tmpact on SMEs and cngoing
commumication with stakeholders
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Directors’ remuneration repart

Chair's foreword

Directors’

remuneration report

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Remuneration Report for the
British Business Bank for the year ended

31 March 2016, Those sections of the report
that have been audited by the National
Audit Office have been identified as such.

The Committee s primary role is

to prowde robust independent
governance for executive remuneration
toensure that reward for the Banks
executive team

- supports the Bank'slong term
business strategy and values

- enables the Bank 10 recruit
motivate and retamn talented
indwiduals with appropriate skills
and expenence

~ links executive reward to the
Bank's performance aganst its
lang term business plan

This report 1s divided it two parts

1 Policy on Executive Directers' and
Sentor management remuneration

¢ Annual report on remungration
- this section outlines how the
policy has been applied and
includes details of remuneration
for the senior team

Dunng the finanaial year 2015-16

its first full year of operation the
Bank made significant progress, as
outlined in the Chairman's statement
The Committee has also played an
important role In monitonng and
reviewing a remuneration framework
that reflects the paruicular
circumstances of the Bank as a publc
owned company eperatingin a
commercral environment Accordingly,
the Committee has continued with an
incentive scheme that s designed to
reward senicr employees based on
the long-term sustainable success of
the Bank Key decisions made by the
Commuttee and recommended to the
Board dunng the year were

~ agreeing the annual pay review
for 2016

- reviewing the long termincentive
plan (LTIP) approprate to the
particular arcumstances of
the Bank

- measunng torporate and individual
performance targets for 2015-16
and the first cycle LTIP

~ reviewing the overall remuneration
policy and strategy for the Bank

The Remuneration Committee has
continued to take aninterestin
broader market trends and carned out
penchmarking of salaries and other
reward mechamsms in 2015 In the
context of the Bank's policy remit,
the Committee recognises that
remuneration policy will need to be
reviewed from time to time to ensure
thatitis meeting the requirements of
our shareholder and 15 fit for purpose
whers apprepriate the Committee
will seek relevant external advice and
guidance Looking ahead to2016-17
the Committee will be reviewing the
business targets for the next perod
and setting stretching business and
persanal targets for the executive,

n particular in the context of any new
policy initiatives which the Bank has
been asked to undertake

9;&8«&:

~

Christina McComb
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee
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Remuneration
policy report

Policy overview

The Remureration Committee
determines on behalf of the Board
the Banks policy on the remuneration
of the Chairman Executive Directors
and other members of the senor team

The Committee’s terms of reference
are available on the Bank's website

while not covered by the FCA/PRA
Remuneration Code for banks

the Brissh Business Bank has
sought where appropriate to meet
these governance requirements,
in addition to The Large and
Medium sized Companies and
Groups Regulabons 2013

The Commuttee will continug to
review the remuneration strategy and
approach inorder to ensure that the
Bank adopts leading practice with
respect o its remuneration pohicy and
can respond to the business prionties

How the views of the
shareholder have been
taken inte account

The sharehalder-appainted Non
executive Directoris a member of the
Remuneration Commuttee In addition
specific approval has been obtained
from the shareholder for Executive
Director remuneraticn and indnadual
objectives and for the LTIP terms

The remuneration policy
for directors and the
senior team

In setting remuneration policy for
the senior team, the Remuneration
Cemmittee has taken into account
the following key factors

- the need to atiract and retain a
high-calibre servor team to deliver
the Bank's strategy in alignment
with the interests of the
shareholder

- the requirement to reward
long-term performance and
incentivise the nght behaviours

- the efficent use of taxpayer
respurces and the requirement
to deliver good value for money
for the Exchequer as awhole

/a

The Bank has not consulted its
employees on this policy although it
has considered the reward philosophy
for employeesingeneral The focus
for employees s on rewarding
performance over the longer term
and to have reward packages which
attract high-calibre candidfates,

while delivering value for money

Table 1 summarnses the key etements
of the Bank's remuneration policy for
Executive Directors and the seruor
team taking intg account the factors
above The Executive Directars' service
contracts are available for inspection
at the Bank s registered office

Under the remuneration policy the
total remuneration for each Executive
Director depends on their own and
the Bank's performance

52

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016




birectors’ remuneration report

Table 1 Remuneration policy

Element Operation, oppartunity and performance framework
Base salary
Objective Base salanies are reviewed annually taking into account the nature of the role

To attract and retain high calibre
senior leaders

and respensibiities Roles are benchmarked against relevant comparator
organisations in the public and private sectors The Remuneration Committes
also takes into account the external environment and views of the shareholder

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Objective
To reward performance over the
longer term

Executive Directors and certain members of the semor team are ebgible to
participate in the Lang Term Incentive Plan (LTIF)

The LTIP operates as a seres of three year cycles Objectives are set at the
beginning of each cycle and progress 1s reviewed by the Committee on an
annual bass

Objectivas are set In two categones corporate and personal The weighting
between these tategones may be vaned over ime at the discretion of the
Committee taking into account the requirements of the business and any
relevant external factors The weighting for the 2015-16 LTIP1s 60% to
torporate targets and 40% to personal targets

Corporate targets cover folling three year peniods and will generally be in ine
with the Bank’s business plan objectives The current targets for the most recent
LTIP and the threshold levels are set cut in Annual Report on Remuneration
Personal targets are designed to take into account the speafic responsibilities of
individual senior leaders in the Bank.

The current incentive 15 8 maximum cash award of 50% of base salary In the
ase of Executive Directors awards are paid at the end of the refevant three year
cycle inthe case of the first cycle LTIP in August 2017 In the case of other
members of the LTIP any awards in respect of persenal chjectives may be paid
after two years There s no annual bonus award for Executive Directors and the
senior team

Although the Company 1s not governed by the Finanial Canduct Authonty

or Prudential Regulation Authonty the Comenittee has determined that the
requlatory best practice should be adopted with regard to Recovery and
withholding Provisions and such provisions shall apply for a penod of seven years
from the start of the performance period Recovery and Withholding shall apply
inarange of adverse grcumstances at the Committee sdiscretion ancluding
financial accounts mis statement, sigrificant farlure of nsk management,
regulatory censure or breach of policy and procedures

As ageneral rule If a participant ceases empleyment within the Company's
Group before an award 1spaid then the award opportunity shalt normally be
forfeited and lapse in full although there are exceptions for partcpants
categorised as good leavers

The Remuneration Commuitiee has ultimate discretion over the levels and
payment of any awards taking mto account factors it considers relevant
ncluding the overall performance of the Bank
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Table1 continued Remuneration policy

Element

Qperation, opportunity and performance framework

Pensicn and other benefits

Objective
To provide an attractive and
cost effective package

The Bank contributes up to 15% of base salary to 1ts defined contribution
scheme or an approved personal pension scheme subject toa mirimum
employee contnbution of 3% The CEO recerves a cash n-lieu allowance of 10%

Current benefits provided are private medical msurance (commencing in
September 2016), llness income protection and Iife assurance These are subject
to review on an annuat basis

Loss of office payments

Objective There are no defined terms for loss of office within service contracts in hne with
To prowide fair but not excessive policy Executve Directors and the senior team are on six menths’ notice erther
contract features side Provision may be made for payment in lieu of notice where this1s deemed

to be in the interest of the business Any situation will be considerad by the
Committee on Its ments

Should an indvidual be considered a good leaver” under the LTIP rules an
appropriate portion of their LTIPs may at the discretion of the Remuneratron
Committee beretained All termination payments are subject te Cabinet
Office Guidelines

New Executive Director remuneration

Qbjective
To attract and retain high-calibre
senior leaders

Remuneration for any new appointments will be set in accordance with the
policy set out in this table The same approach will be taken with respect to
any internal appomtments We do not offer any sigring-on payments or other
compensation for loss of deferred compensation from previous employment
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Table 2 Scenanios chart Ranges for Executive Director remuneration

The following chart shows how
executives remuneration could vary
according to performance and assumes
that the Dhrectors are employed by

the Bank for awhole financial year
The vanable pay element 15 measured
over a three year penod and s paid out
after the end of the third year subject
to continued employment

E00Q

S00

00—

300 - g

200 -

100 -

n- - - - —_
Mrwngm Target Mandmum Minimum Target Maximum Minimum Target Maxemum
Kelth Morgan Christopher Fox Patrick Magee

W Fixedpsy § variadle pay

Notes

1 Minimum = hxed pay only {salary and current cost of benefits and pension)
2 TFarget = fixed pay and 75% vesting of the LTIP

3 Mavarsum = fixed pay angd 100% vesting of the LTIP

External appointments

Executive Directors may be invited to
become Non executive Directors i
other companies These appointments
can enhance their knowiedge and
experience to the benefit of the Bank
1115 the Bank's policy that Board
approval 1s required befare any
external appointment may be
accepted by an Executive Directar
The Executive Director 1s permitted (e
retain any fees paid for such services
Dunng the year Keith Morgan served
&sa Non executive Director at UK
Asset Resalution Lid and received

a fee of £65 000

|

The Board reviews the amount of each
compenent of the fees on a periodic
bas:s to assess whether they remain
compettive and appropnate in hight

of changes inroles responsibilities

or time commitment of the Non-
exacutive Directors In accordance
with commaon practice Non-executive
Directors are reimbursed expenses
incurred tn performing their role

Non-executive Directors

The Chairman and the Non-executive
Directors do not have service
agreements with the Bank Non-
executive Directors are appointed
under letters of appointment which
provide for an initial term of service
of three years The appotntment of
aNon executive Director can be
terminated by erther party giving
written notice There 15 no provision
for tompensation for loss of office
The dates of the current letters of
appointment of the Nen executive

Directors are shown in the Annual Additional fees are paid to the Semor
Repert on Remuneration Further

| Independent irector and Chairs of
details on nominatian and v the Audit, Risk and Remuneratian
3ppointment of Non executive Committees In recognition of the
Directors 1s set out in the corporate additional tme spant in respect of
Governance Statement their Committee activities Thisis
The terms and condibions of infine with UK practice generally
appointment of the Non executive Any increases in fees are subject
Directors are available for nspection | toshareholder approval
at the Banks registered office

Table 3 sets out the key elements

of the Bank s remuneration policy for
the Chair and other Non-executive
Directors

The fee levels paid to Non executive
Directors reflect the time commitment
and responsibilities baving regard to
best UK practice
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Table 3 Remuneration policy for Non-executive Directors

Element

Operation, opportunity and performance framework

Basic fee - Chair

Remunerauion s in the formof an
annual cash fee, in fine with practice
inthe UK

The Chair fee wilt be reviewed from ume to time by the Board

Basic fee - Non-executive Directors

Remuneration s in the formof an
annual cash fee, n hne with practice
in the UK

Bank wide remuneration
and incentve plans

The Bark aims to apply 1ts
remuneration policy In a consistent
way for alistaff

Staff receve pension contnbutions
Iife assurance tlness income
protectionand private heakh
Insurance (commencing in Septémber
2016} as well as their basic salary

The Bank has three mutually exclusve
incentive plans, all of which are
designed to reward performance and
achievement of the Bank s objectives

These plans are payable wholly in
cash, reflecting the fact that the
Bank has a single shareholder

(the Secretary of State for Business
innpvation and Skills) and does not
1ssue shares 1o staff

Non executive Director remuneratron s reviewed annually by the Chair and
the Executive Directars Any recommendations are subject 1o Board approval
with Non executive Directors nat voung on their own remuneration

Short Term Incentive Plan Annual bonus

(STIP)

Senior employees who are not eligible
for the Long Term Incentive Plan are
efigible to participate in the STIP

The purpose of this plan s te reward
senior managers for their performance
over the year as assessed against both
their persenal obyectives {currently
40% of award) and the Barks
objectives (turrently 60% of award)
The maxamum annual award 1s 30% of
base salary 50% of any award 1s paid
after the relevant year end, with 25%
deferred for one year and a further
25% deferred for two years i

Employees not eligible for the Long
or Short Term Incentive Plans may
participate (n the annual benus
scheme which has @ maxemum
award of 209 of base salary

The STIP rules incorporate withholding
and recovery prowsions in line with
good practice and such provisions
apply for a pencd of seven years from
the start of the performance penod

6
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A\

Annual report

on remuneration

Thrs part of the report has been
prepared in accordance with Part 3
of Schedule B of The Large and
Medium sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Amendment
Regulations 2013 Disclosures are
also made in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 The Bank has
comphed with the requlations where
1t believes it 1s appropriate to do so

Although the Bank Is not subject
to the vanable pay cap intreduced
under the European Union Capital
Requirements Directive 1t does
comply with the cap

Table 4 Executive Director remuneration (audited)

Year ended March 2016
Pension
payments
Taxable Annual Long term (inelcash
Salary benefits incentive Incentives supplements)
KethMogaw 299 0 0 0. 30
Christopher Fox? - 210 0 0 ] 0
Patrick Magee® 210 0 Q [ §
Total 719 o 0 Q0 51

Year ended March 2015

Pension

payments

{tncl cash
Tetal Salary supplements) Total
329 125 12 137
210 49 c 49
231 _ 3 1 14
770 187 13 200

As the Bank commenced operaticns on 1 November 2014 prior year comparatives for the remuneration of Executive

Directors and the senor team are for a five month penod

Notes

—

~

the ameunts payable n raspect of service from this date to 31 March 2015

w

wn respect of service from this date to 31 March 2015

Qv oa

The Executive Directors receve death inservice and illness income protection benefits which are non taxatle
Mo Executive Director receved taxable benefits annualincentve peyments or long term incentive payments In either 2015-16 or 2014 -15
The Remuneration Committer has reviewad prelmnary performance of ndriduals for 2015-16 and has made provisional assessments.

The Company has not made pension contnbutions for Keith Morgan but has instead paid a cash alternative to him The amount shown for
2015-16 was pald in the year and the amount shown for 2014-15 was accrued In that year but not paid until 2015-16

Chnistopher Fox joined the British Business Bank as Chief Financial Officer on B January 2015 The amounts shown for the 2014-15 year are

Patnick Magea became an Executive Director of the Bank on 10 Merch 2015 The amounts shown for the 2014-15 year are the amounts payable

ranging from 75-90% for the seror team (2014-15 75-95%) Subject to continued performance, these awards are payable when the ralevant

LTIP vests.

~

Taxable benehis annualincentive and long-term benehts were £0 in 2014-15
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Non-executive Directors are not
remunerated i the same way as the
Executive Directors and therelore
have net been included in this table
However they do receve
campensationin the form of a fee
asdetaled in Table B

With respect to 2014-15 the amounts
above are in respect of service on the
Board for the persod 1 Movember 2014
{the date the Bank commenced
operations) to 31 March 2015

Relative importance
of spend on pay

No dividends have been paid from
Brittsh Business Bank mean:ng that
the comparison of total remuneratien
to diwidends does not provide useful
information As a result, we have set
out below the percentage of revenue
represenied by total remuneration
compared to 2014-15 to llustrate the
relgtive iImportance of spend on pay

Changes in CEO/colleague
pay and median cemparison

The median salary of British Business
Bank employees for 2015-16 was
£63,000(2014-15 £58,000) This
compares to the CEO s annual base
salary of £295 000 Noemployee earns
mere than the highest paid Director

The CEC did not receive a salary
inerease duning the 2015-16
performance year Nogeneral pay
Increase was awarded to colleagues

Total Total I in the 2015-16 periormance year
E_Jm”v a_.:c_._mzn“my g  Athough some British Business Bank
colleagues did receive a salary increase
205 Lm~ 51077 12,132 24% in 2015-16 inked to moving to British
201415 17679 5993 34%  pusiness Bank terms and conditions
1 Represents a five month period
Table S Seniorteam remuneration (audited)
Year ended March 2016 Year ended March 2015
Personal
performance
element
of LTIP
(ateruedin Pension Pension
2014-15 payments payments
Taxable Annual payablein {inclcash {snclcash
Salary benefits  incentive August16} supplements) Total Salary supplements) Total
Shanika
Amarasekaras 200 Q 0 27 31 231 73 19 &7
Mark Gray$ 200 0 o 0 30 230 83 14 97
Total 400 0 0 57 61 461 156 2B 184
Notes

wWoR

The ndnaduals above recewve deathuin service and #iness ncome protecton benehts which are non taxable
Salznes quoted are gross salanes pre salary sacrifice but colleagues pay individual pension contnbutions via a salary sacnifice arrangement
The Remuneration Committea has reviewed prehiminary perfarmance of individuals for 2015-16 and has made provistonal persenal awards

of 75% for the senior team (2014-15 75%) Subject to contnued performance these personal awards are payable in August 2016

IS

For 2{314-15 the amounts above are in respact of service as a member of the senor team for the penod 1 November 2014 (the date of the

mception of the Bank} to 31 March 2015 Members of the sentor team have receved ne signing en payments ne leaving payments and no

annual bonus payments

wn

B Mark Gray Chief Risk Officer

Shantka Amarasekara, Ceneral Counsel ang Cormparty Secretary

7 Taxable benefits, annual incentive and long term benefits were £0in 2014-15

Ac the Bank commenced operations on 1 Novemnber 2014 pnor year comparatwves for the remuneration of Executive

Directors and the senior team are for a five month pericd
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Table & 2015-16 Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)

The semior team are invited to participate ina long term incentive plan The following individuals have elected to join the
planand have been granted interests during the 2015-16 year worth up to a maximum of 50% of salary Any pay-out is
subject to a number of conditions including performance conditions

Year ended March 2016

Parcentage

of corparate
Facevalue  Facevalue  Facevalue award for Endof
ofaward ofpersonal of corporate Facevalue reaching corporate
Type ot (Yo of award award of award threshold  performance
interest salary) {E) (E) (£) targets* perod
Keith Morgan GshlTP  S0%  ESOBO0  £BO700 149500  50%  31Merls
Chnstopher Fox Cash LTIP S50% £42,000 £6J 000  E105,000 S50% 31-Mar-18
PanckMagee  _ CashUTP  50%  £42000  £63000 EI0S000  50%  3iMer1s
Shanika Amarasekara _ Cash LTIP 50% E40,000  £60000  E100 00O 50% 3i-Mar 18
Mark (iray Cash LTiP 50% £40,000 E6O,000  ELC0 000 50% 31-Mar 18

Notes

1 Personal performance targets are not included in thes calculation as they are not subject to threshold conditions

Performance assessment

None of the semior team receives an

annual performance award or bonus
The LTIPs a three year plan and the "

first LT#P corporate awards will be

assessed at the end of the three year y
penod ending in March 2017 40% of n\.\\\
both the first and second cycle LTIP -

awards are subject to personal P
performance The Committee has
reviewed the perfaormance of
individuals for 2015-16 and has made
provisional assessments ranging from
75% 10 90% which will be taken into
account when assessing outcomes for
the relevant LTIP awards Table 7 on
page 60 sets out the corporate three
year performance targets which have
no specific weightings, for the second
L¥IP cycle
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Table 7 Group targets for the second cycle {March 2018) LTIP

Objective March 2018 target
Lower threshold Stretch Challenge
Increase stock of Anance facilitated through
Bntish Business Bank programmes £8 8bn £108bn £114bn
~OF wivch SME - ES0bn  £63tn £6 7bn
More diverse finance market (measured by finance
facliated thoughnon-Big Four lenders) 81% __B6% 91%
Better provision of information (measured though T
average awareness of six alternauve finance options
from Britsh Business Bank custorner research) 49% 51% S3%
Manage taxpayers' resources efficiently through earning
énappropnatereturnonequity B 16% ¢ 0% 2%
Expected vesting of Group award based on judgement - Qu 1050% Up to 75% Up tc 100%
of Commitiee for threshold
perfarmance
0% 1f no
targets are
. achieved ~ _
Table 8 Non-executive Director remuneration {audited)
Totalfees Total fees
2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000
Ran Emerson (Chairman) 120 120
Chnstina McComb (semor independent director} 45 4G
Maria Tumner 3 30
Jenathan Britton o L . 30 30
Teresa Graham*-2 30 20
Caroline Green? 25 20
CoGloss” SR DI —
Cen Smith il n

Notes
i Teresa Grahamwas appointed chalr of the risk committze in May 2015 and receves an additonal ESk as aresult

2 Teresa Graham Carghne Green and Colin Glass were appointed on 24 June 2014 so thewr 20715 comparatives do not represent a full year
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The amount pard to Christina McComb
in 2014-15 was hugher than her
entitlement because there was
anunderpayment tc her n the
nrevious year

The base fee for Non executive
Directors s £25,000 and individuals
receve an allowance of £5,000 for
chairing a committee There are ne
additional fees payable for indidual
committee membership

Pension entitlements

The Bank does not offer a defined
beneht pension scheme for new staff
However staff that transferred into
the Bank from BEIS are able to
continye to participate in BEISs
defined benefit scheme No Executive
Directors have particpated ina
defined benefit scheme in 2015-16
and only one British Business Bank
colleague who transferred from BEIS
continues to parbipate in the BEIS
defined beneft scheme

Kerth Morgan recerves a cash allowance
of 10% of base salary in iieu of
pension contribution

Board of Directors Terms
of Office

The dates of sppointment and terms
of office of Nan-Executive and
Executive Directors are provided in
the Corporate Governance Statement
on page 40

Membership of the
Remuneration Committee

The details of membership of the
Remuneration Committee and
attendance are included in the
Corporate Governance Statement
onpage 40

External advisers

During the year the Remuneration
Committee did not use adwisers for
the provision of remuneration advice
although it did review benchmarkmg
Gata provided by Aon McLagan

Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy for
2016-17

For 2016-17 the Remuneratien
Committee will continue to implement
the policy ona similar basrs to 2015-16
The Bntush Business Bank will seek
approval from the Shareholder for any
changes to the policy

Approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report

This Directors Remuneration Report
including both the Policy and Annual
Remuneration Report has been
approved by the Board of Directors

Signed on behalf of the Boand
of Directors

Yours sincerely

Ofeﬂo@{m/

Christina McComb
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’

responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance
with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Drrectors
to prepare such financial statements
for each financial year Under that law
the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in
accardance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS)
as adopted by the European Union
and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation
and have also chosen to prapare the
parent Company financial statements
under IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union Under Company law
the Orrectors must nat approve the
financial statements unless they are
satished that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or lass of the
Company for that period In preparing
these financial statements,
International Accounting Standard 1
requires that Directors

- properly select and apply
accounting policies

- present nformation, including
accounting policies inamanner
that provides relevant, reliable
comparable and understandable
information

- provide addiional disclosures
when compliance with the
speafic requirements in IFRSs
are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of
particular transactions other
events and conditions on the
entity s financial positien and
financial performance

- make an assessment of the
Company's ability to continue
as a going congern

The Directors are respensible for
keepng adequate accounting records
that are suffitient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and
disclose wath reasenable accuracy at
any tme the financial pesition of the
Company and enable them te ensure
that the inancial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They
are alse responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and other irreqularities

The Directors are respansible for the
maintenance and integnty of the
corporate and financial information
incjuded on the Company's website
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of finanoal statements
may chffer from legsiation in other
jurisgictions

we confirm that to the best of cur
knowledge

- The financial statements prepared
In accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets babilities
financial posibon and profit or loss
of the Company and the
undertakings included in the
ronsoldation taken as a whole

- The strategic reportincludes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
censolidation taken as g whole
together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties
that they face

- The annual report and financial
statements taken as a whole are
far, balanced and understandable
and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to
assess the Company s position
and performance business model
and strategy

8y erder of the Board

2T Ao

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

20th July 2016

Yy

Chnistopher Fox
Chief Financial Othcer

20th uly 2016
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Independent auditor’s
report to the shareholders
of British Business Bank plc

Opinion on financial
statements

In my opinion the financal statements

- give atrue and fair view of the
state of Group's and the parent
company's affairs as at 31 March
2016 and of the group s loss for the
year then ended,

- have been properly grepared in
accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Eurepean Union
and

- have been prepared i accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Basis of opinions

I have audited the financial
statements of Bntish Business Bank
plc for the year ended 31 March 2016
which comprise

- the Consoldated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income the
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, the
Conschdated Staterment of
Changesin Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,

- the notes to the consoldated
financial statements,

- the Company Statement of
Financial Posttion, the Company
Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Company Cash Flow
Statement, and

- the notes to the company financial
statements

The financial reporting framewark
that as been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and
Internatienal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European
Urson and as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006 I have also audited the
infermation in the Directors
Remuneration Report that s described
as hawing been audited

Overview of my audit
approach

Risks significant to my audit

In arrvang at my opinion on the
finanoial statements, | assessed the
nsks of materal misstatement in the
financial statements. Those nisks that
had the greatest effect on the audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in
the audiz, and the direction of the
efforts of the engagement team are
outlined in the table below

| have also set cut how my audit
addressed these specific areas in order
to support the opinion on the financial
statements as a whole and any
comments | make on the results of

my precedures should be read i

this context

The areas of focus were discussed
with the Audit Committee their report
on matters that they considered o be
sigrificant to the financial statements
1ssetouton page 42
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Risk

My response

Management override of controls
under Internatignal Standards on Auditing
there 15 a presumed nsk of management
overnde of controls tn allorganisations We
are required to assess the nsk of matenal
misstatement ansing from management
overnde in particularinrelation to
sigruficant or unusual fransactions bias

In accounting estimates and journals

Accounts preparation

This was the group s second full set of
accounts and there has been a significant
level of change within the finance team
during the year lidentified a nsk that the
level of change could result n corporate
memaory being lost regarding the working
of the accounts preparation medel, the
accounts production process and the
accounting treatment of investments and
the retated provision  This gave nise to a
conseguential nsk that the accounts may
not be properly prepared and s:gnificant
items may not be accounted for correctly
leading to matenal misstatement withun
the accounts

My audit focussed on testing those balances and transactions which would be
mostly liely to be affected if controls were to be overndden including journals
accounting esumates and significant or unusual transactions The most
sigrsficant estimates n the accounts refate to the valuation of iInvestments,
and in respect of these | have performed the following precedures

- Ihave undertaken a detailed review of a sample of new investments and
considered whether management s jJudgements on appropriate
accounting treatments are consistent with the relevant accounting
standards and the underlying substance and form of lzgal agreements

- where management rehes on valuations provided by fund managers to
estimate the value of 1zs investments, | have performed detalled
procedures to enable me to gain assurance from the work of the fund
managers | considered the overall competence, capability and objectivity
of the fund managers as well as the scope of their work and its
relevance to the accounts and my cpinion,

where management uses models to esumate the value of its
investments |considered the design of the valuation models the vahidity
of the data inputs to those models, and the appropnateness of the key
assumptions on which the models were based | sought confirmation
that management had reassessed the assumptions made in the prior
year which underpin the valuation models to confirm that they remain
appropriate at yearend and

- I have assessed the accuracy end completeness of the review for
potential imparrments that management has performed in relation to its
Investments

The results of my audit procedures enabled me ta conclude that there s no
matenal misstatement of the accounts ansing frem management override
of controls

We reviewed the dry run BBB performed using the accounts model duning
the year to confirm that the finance team were confident using the model

We mawntained regular liarson wath the Audit Committee Chief Finance
Officer and finance team throughout the year with a focus on whether
appropriate staffing and review processes were in place to enable the
production of a robust set of draft 2015-16 Anancia) statements | have
made recommendations to management where | have identified areas
where processes could be strengthened

where my audit identrfied the need for adjustments these have been made
by management, other than unadjusted non-tnwial differences of £290k
which | do not consider 10 be matenial The results of my audit procedures
enablad me o conclude that thera 1s no matenal misstatement in the
financial statements

B4
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of British Business Bank plc

Application of materiality

lapplied the concept of matenality n
both planning and performing my
audit. and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements en my audit and on the
financlal statements This approach
recognises that financial statements
are rarely absolutely correct and that
anauditis designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal
misstatement or irregulanty A matter
1s matenal if its ormission or
misstatement would in the judgement
of the auditor reasonably influence
the decisions of users of the financial
statements

Based on my professional judgement
Idetermined materality for the groups
financial statements at £18 9m for the
Statement of Financial Positton which
1s approximately 2% of total group ﬁ
assets BBB develops and manages
finance programmes designed to
enhance the working of finance
markets whichit delivers through
INVESLMENTS IN partner organisatons
| therefore chose assets as the A
benchmark because I consider it to be
the pnincipal consideration for users n
assessing the financial performance V
of the Group

I have determined that for
transactions within the Consolidated
Income Statement, misstatements
of a lesser amount than overall
matenahty could influence the
dewisions of users of the accounts
given the disproportionate size of
the Consolidated Statement of
Finanoial Position and the
Consoldated Income Statement

I have therefore determined that
the tevel to be applied to these
transactions 1s £1 02m on the basis
that this represents approximately
2% of current year income

As well as quantitative maternahty
there are certan matters that. by
thewr very nature wouldif nat
corrected influence the decisions

of users, for example any errors
reported in Directors Remuneration
Assessment of such matters would
need to have regard to the nature of
the messtatement and the applicable
legal and reporting framework, as well
as the size of the misstatement

| agreed with the Audit Committee
that | would report to 1t alluncorrected
misstatements identihed through my
auditin excess of £378k for the
Consglidated Statement of Financial
Position and E20k for the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income as well as differences belew
this threshald that i my view
warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds

Total unadjusted audit differences
reported to the Audit Commustee
would have decreased net assets
by £290k

Scope of my audit

An audit involves obtaining evidence
abput the amounts and distlosures in
the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes
an assessment of

- whether the accounting pohcies
are appropnate te the group and
parent company’s arcumstances
and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disciosed

— the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the
directors, and

- the overall presentation of the
financial statements

In addition I read all the information
and non-financial nformaticnin the
Annual Report to identify matenial
Inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to dentify
any informatten that 1s apparently
matenally incorrect based on or
matenally nconsistent with the
knowledge acquired by me in the
course of performing the audit

if Ibecome aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or
incensistencies | consider the
implications for my report
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of British Business Bank plc

Group audit approach

My group audit scope focussed on
those balances assessed as being of
the greatest significance to the group
financial statements and their users

I considered how the subsidiaries
should be aggregated to form the
components of my group audit
approach in kne with International
Standards of Auditing | gave particular
consideration to the size and nsk
charactenstics of the consolidated
entities, how they are managed and
the audit exemptions taken by the
Briush Business Bank plc Bntish
Business Bank Invesiments Ltd which
15 the largest subsidiary and holds
E709m of the group s £B1Zm nat
assets at 31 March 2016 15 subject to
separate governance processes and
has i1ts own iedger; | have therefore
treated this as a single component
The parent company and remaining
subsidianes are subject to common
governance processes and share a
ledger and sa I have aggregated these
to form a singfe component for the
purposes of my audit Both
components are significant to the
group in terms of value and nisk | have
taken assurance from work performed
by the auditors of the Briush Business
Bank investments Ltd and have
performed add tional procedures to
obtain assurance pver the financeal
wformation of the parent and other
subsidiaries

Other matters on which
Ireport under the
Companies Act

Directors remuneration

Inmy opinion the part of the part

of the Remuneration Report 1o be
audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act

1 alse report to you i, In my opinion
certain disclosures of directors’
remuneraticn required have not been
made | have nothing to report ansing
from this duty

The strateqic and directors reports
In my opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the rourse of the audit,
the information given in the strategic
and directors’ reperts for the finanoal
year are consistentwith the financial
statements and have been preparedin
accordance with applicable law

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the Group

and Parent company and their
erwironments cbtained dunng the
course of the audit, | have identified
no matenal misstatementsin

these reporis

The corporate governance
statement

In my opinion based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit
the informatien given in the corporate
governance statement in respect of
internal control and sk management
systems in relation to financial
reperung processes, and about share
capital structures, 1s consistent with
the accounts and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable law

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the Group and
Parent and their environment
obtained during the course of the
audit, | have entfied no material
msstatements in this nformation

v

Matters on which | report by
exception

Adeguaty of accounting records
infermation and explanations
receved

Ireport to you if in my opinion

- adequate accounting records have
not been kept or returns adequate
for my audit have nct been
receved from branches not visited
by my staff,

~ the financial statements and the
part of the Remuneration repert to
be aud:ted are not in agreement
with the accounting records and
returns, or

- Ihave not recewved all of the
information and explanatiens
Irequire for my audit

I have nothing to repert arnsing from
this duty

&6
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Independent auditor's report to the sharehelders of British Business Bank plc

Consistency of mformatien inthe
Annual Repert

Under International Standards on
Auditing {UX & Ireland) 1am required
to reperi ta you If i my opinion
information in the annual report s

- matenally inconsistent with the
informat:on in the audited financial
statements, or

~ apparently matenially incorrect
basedon or matenally nconsistent
with, the knowledge of the Group
and Parent company that | acguired
in the course of performing my
audit, or

- athenwise misleading
In partrcular | am required to consider

= whether | have identified any
incensistencres between the
knowledge that | acquired dunng
the audit and the directors
statement that they consider
the annual report s fair balanced
and understandable and

- whether the annusal report
appropnately discloses those
matters that | communicated to
the Audit and Commyttee which
I cansider should have been
disclosed

Ihave nothing to repert ansing from
this duty

The directors’ assessment of

Respective respensibilities

principal nisks and future prospects V of the directors and the

Under International Standards on
Auditing (UK & Ireland) 1 am required
to report to you if | have anything
material to add or to draw attentign
to in relation to the directors
distlosures in the annual report and
finanoal statements.

- confirming that they have
carred out & robust assessment
of pnnopal nsks fating the Group
including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance solvency or iquidity

- describing those nsks and
explaining how they are being
managed or mitigated

- onwhether they considered it
appropnate to adopt the going
concern basis and their
identification of any matenal
uncertanties to the entity’s abiity
10 continue over a penod of at
least twelve months fram the
date of approval of the iinancial
statements, and

- explaining how they have assassed
the prospects of the entity over
what penod they have done so
and why they consider that penod
to be appropriate and their
statement as to whether they have
amasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue In
operation and meet its labihties as
they fall due over the penod of
therr assessment. including any
related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary '
gualifications or assumptions I

Ihave nothing matenal toadd or 1o
draw attentin to on these matters

auditor

As explained more fully in the
Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities the directors are
respensible for the preparation of
the Group financial statements and
for being satisfied that they qive a
true and fair view My responsibility
15 t0 audit and express an opiion on
the financial statemenis in accordance
with applicable faw and with
{nternational Standards on Auditing
{UK & Ireland} Those standards
require me and my staff to comply
with the Auditing Practices Boards
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Hilary Lower
Senior Statutory Auditor

20th July 2616

For and on behalf of the Comptroller
and Auditor General (Statutory
Augditor)

Natonal Audit Office
157-197 Buckingharn Palace Road
London SW1W 95P
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Consolidated hinancial statements

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive net income
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015

Note £000 £000
INCOME
Interest income _ 41 39459 12,033
Management fee T T Az B 5331
Other income 43 241 315
Gross operating income 51077 17,67
Net gains (losses) on investment assets 3] 457 (1.670)
Net operating Income 51,534 16 009
EXPENIMTURE
Staff costs o R 1 {12,192) __{5953)
Cther operating expenditure R L (7,.243)
Depreciations and amortisation 73 (304)
Qperating expenditure (15,739)
Net operating profit/(loss) 31 785
ECF fair value adjustments 9
Impaument of ECF nvestment assets 133 (32643) (2 262)
Fair value gain on dervatives 135 5,638 3,601
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment o . _ 133 B 13,083 4270
EFC fair value provision 17 {36 591) (26 055}
Net ECF Fair value adjustments (49,513) (20.446)
Proceeds of warranty cdlaim 5 2 500 -
Profit/{foss) before tax (14,818) {13,958)
Tax expense 81 (B 518) (3160}
Profit/(loss) for the period (23.336) (17,118)
Other comprehensive income for the period net of tax
Net gain oninvestments recognised in reserves o o 12273 5735
Deferred tax relating to ECF investments g1 16804 o (4 766}
Tota! comprehensive income/(loss) for the period {9 259) (16,149)

All gperations are continuing

The net gain onnvestments recogrised in reserves included within other comprehensive iIncome wili be reclassified to
profit and loss in subsequent peniods if the gain oninvestments s realised

Comparatve figures the Bank commenced trading on 1 November 2014 As a result, figures for the year ending 31 March

2015 reflect five months of operating activity
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Consohdated hinancial statements

Consohdated statement
of financial position

as at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note EO00 £00D
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Loans and receivables 131 _ 72887 18,461
Held to matunty investments 132 3L090 -
Avalable for-sale financial assets R EE 729735 622930
Assets designated at faw value through profit or loss 134 15029 5313
Cenvative financial nstruments 135 18911 12273
Property plant and equipment 10 361 SE8
Intangible assets T 11 119 200
Investment sn associates 12 - 14
Total non current assets 868,132 659,759
Current assets
Trade and other recevables o 1 810 5,062
(ash and cash equivalents 15 58 382 71048
Total current assets 76,483 76 110
Totalassets 944,615 735,869
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables _ 16 (15 787) (6 565)
Corporatian tax g2 {5 710) (4 402)
Provisions 17 (26,373) (19 866}
Total current habulities {47,870) {30,833}
Total assets less current abilities 896,745 705,036
Non-cursent hlabilities . -
Trade and other payables 15 {8g) {426}
Deferred tax 83 {2 796) @778
Provisions 17 (81.839) (51755)
Total hiabilities {132,593) (87 788)
Net assets/{habilities) 812,022 6408 081
Equity _ I
Issued share capital 20 B37,5¢6 664 326
_w_.:wlmm_m_ INStruments reserve 15046 969
Retaned earnings (40 550) {17 214)
Total equity 812 Q22 648,081

The financial statements of the group {parent company number 08616013) were approved by the Board of Directors and
authonsed for issue on 20th July 2016 They were signed on its behalf by

gu Keith Morgan
™ Chief Executive Officer
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Consohdated financial statements

Consohdated statement
of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2016
Financial
nstruement
ssued capital reserve Retained earnings Total

Notes EGQ0 £000 £000 £000
Dpening balance
asatlAprii2014 50 - {96) (46)
Net ncome after tax - - {17,118) (17,118)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax - 969 - 968
Tetal comprehensive
Income - 969 _ (17.118) (16,149}
Issue of ordinary shares 20 664,276 - - 664,276
Balance at
31 March 2015 664,326 969 (17,214) 648,081
Opening balance as at
1 April 2015 664,326 969 (17.214) 548 081
Het ncome after tax - - {23.336) (23 336)
Other comprehensive
ncome netof tax 14077 14077
Total comprehensive
income - _ - 14,077 (23,336) (9.259)
Issue of ordinary shares 20 173200 - - 173200
Balance at 31 March
2016 837,526 15 046 {40 550} glz.022
70 Bnitish Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated cash flow statement
As at 31 March 2016

2016 2015

Note £000 E000
Loss before tax (14 B18) (13 958)
Cash flows from operating actrvities
Adjustmenis for
Unreahised nat (gains} losses on investment assets & (457) 1670
Depreciation and amortisation o 73 304 13
Movement inaccrued interest B {39,459) (12033}
Impairment of ECF investment assets 133 32,643 2,262
Unrealised fair value gain on denvatives . _ 135 _ (6638) (3,601}
Unwind of ECF éarr value vmpairment 133 {13,083) (4 270}
ECF pravision expense 17 36,591 26,055
Payment of corporation tax a8 (7,384) -
Movementin trade and othervecervables 14 {13039) (501
Movement in trade and other payables 16 8BB4 6895
Loss on disposal of intang ble assets 11 14 0
Net cash recerved used for operating activities (16 442) (1.860)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net financial assets acquired on 31 Cctober 2014 - (475,529}
Purchase of loan and recevable assets . 131 (25329 _ 115058
Loan and recevable assets transferred 131 (36 437) -
Repayment of loan and recevable assats 131 10263 171
Purchase of held to matunty assets 132 B (30 000 -
Purchase of available-for-sale assets 133 (186 499) (154 828}
mmwmv.._.sm:,n of available-for-sale assets 133 107 982 56,062
Purchase of assets designated at fair value through profitorfoss 134 B {9791) (3.065)
Repayment of assets designated a1 farr value through profit or loss 134 409 563
Cash recewved from dervative finanaia! instruments 135 - 1210
Proceeds of disposal of investment in associate s R -, ... _B -
Purchases of property plant and equipment \H, T . 21) _ (680}
Purchase of intangible assets 11 )] (240}
Net cash used ininvesting activities (169,424} (591,368)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new shares 20 173 200 564,276
Net cash from financing activitles 173,200 664 276
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and eash equivalents (12,666} 71,048
Cash and cash equivalents at beglnning of year 71,048 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5g 382 71,048

1The purchase of financial assets on 31 October 2014 was funded by the 1ssue of new shares and these twa transactions

were settted onanet basis
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 CGeneral information

The British Business Bank pic {the
Company ar Group )isincorporated
in the Uruted Kingdom under the
Comganies Act The address of the
reqistered office Is given on page 109
The nature of the British Business
Bank Group 3 operations and its
principal actwities are set out in the
strategic report on pages b to 34

2. Significant
accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The finanoial statements have been
prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reperting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Urion (IFRSs as adopted by
the EU) IFRIC Interpretations and
those parts of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS The financial
statemnents are prepared (n actordance
wiith IFRS and Interpretations in force
at the reporting date

The hnancial statemants have been
prepared on the histoncal cost basis,
except for the revaluation of certain
financialinstruments and non-
financial assets that are measured at
revzlued amounts or fair values at the
end of each reporting penod as
explained in the accounting policies
below Historical cost s generally
based on the fair value of the
tonsideration given in exchange for
goods and services The principal
acceunting policies adopted are set
out below

These financial statements are
presented in pounds sterhng because
that s the currency of the pnmary
erenomic environment in which the
Croup operates

Total comprehensive income of the
subsidiaries is also attributed in full
1o the owners of the Company in the
absence of non controlling interests

Where necessary adjusiments are
made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into kne with the Group s
accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The tonsotdated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries)
made up to 31 March 2016 Control (s
achieved when the Company

Allintragroup assets and labibtes,
equity, INCome, expenses and cash
flows relating to transibions between
the members of the Croup are
ehminated on consohdation

- has the power aver the investee

- 1sexposed or hasnghts
tovanable return from its
involvement with the investee and

Going concern

The Directers have, at the time of
approving the financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the
foreseeable future In arriving at that
view they have assumed thatin the
event of adownturn the sharehelder
will tontinue to support the Group in
dekvering its policy objectives in
relation to smaller businesses Thus
they continue to adopt the gaing
concern basis of accounting In
prepanng the financal statements

- has the abibty to use its power
toaffects its retuens

The Company reassesses whether or
notit controls am investee f facts and
arcumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above

Conschdation of a subsidiary begins
when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary Specifically the results of
subsidianes acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the
consaldated income statement from
the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary

Adoption of new and
revised Standards

The following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations have
been adepted in the current year
Their adoption has not had any
significant impact on the ameunts
reported in these inancial statements

Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are
attnbuted in full to the owners of
the Company In the absence of
non controlling interests
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Notes to the consolidated financial statemenits

- A5 19 {amendments} Defined
Benefit Plans. Employee
Contributions The amendments
apply to contnbutions from
employees or third parties to
defined benefit plans
The objective of the amendments
15 to sumphfy the accounting for
contrnibutions that are ndependent
of the number of years of
employes service, for example,
employee contnbutions that are
calculated according to & xed
percentage of salary

The Bnitish Business Bank
contrbutes to a State-managed
retirement benefit scheme whichis
dealt with as a payment to a
defined contribution scheme
where the Group s obligations
under the scheme are equivalent
to those ansing in a defined
contribution retirement benefit
scheme i 1S not the princepat
employer in any defined benefit
scheme and therefore the above
changes will not have any iImpact

= Annual improvements tolFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle and 2011 2013
Cycle As part of 1ts annual
improvements cycles the
International Accounting Standards
Board amended vanous standards
primarily with a view to remaving
inconsistencies and clanfying
wording The adoption of these
amendments did not have any
materralimpact on the Group

At the date of authonisation of these
finanoial statements, the following
Standards and Interpretations which
have not been apphed in these
financial statements were I Issue
but not yet effective (and in some
cases had not yet been adopted by
the EU)

= IFRS 9 FAinancralinstruments;

- IFRS10 IFRS12andiAS 28
(amendments) investment Entities
Applying the Consohdation
Exception,

- IFRS 10 and JAS 28 (amendrments)
Sole or Contribution of Assets
between an investor ond its
Associate or foint Venture

- IFRS 11 (amendments} Accounting
for Acquisttions of Interests in joint
Operotions,

- IFRS 14 Regulatory Defermol Accounts

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers;

- IFRS16teases

= Annuol improvements (0 iFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cydle,

- IAS 1 (emendments) Presentation
of Financial Statements

- IAS 7 (omendments) Statemert of
Cash Flows;

- IAS 12 (amendmentts) Recognitron
of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrechsed Losses;

~ A5 16 ond IAS 38 (amendments)
Clanficaton of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

- 1AS 16 ond IAS 41 {omendments}
Bearer Plants

= 1A5 27 (emendments) EqQuity
Method in Separate Fingnaat
Statements

The Directors do not expect that the
adoption of the Standards and
Interpretations listed above willhave a
matenal impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future
periods except that IFRS S wiliimpact
both the measurement and
disclosures of financial instruments
Beycnd the informatian above 1tis not
practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS Juntil a
detailed review has been completed

Revenue recognition

Revenue I1s measured at the far value
of the consideration received or
recewable and represents amounts
recewvable for goods antf services
provided In the nermal course of
business netof discounts Value
Added Tax (VAT) and other sales-
related taxes Revenue 15 educed for
estimated rebates and other similar
allowances

Dvidend and interest
Income

Dundend income frominvestmentsis
recogmsed when the shareholders
nights to receve payment have been
established (provided that itis
prebable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably)

Interestincome is recognised when it
1s probabte that the economic benehts
will flow to the Group and the amount
of revanue can be measured refiably
Interest inceme 1s accrued on a time
basis by reference to the prncipal
outstanding and at the effectve
interest rate apphcable whichis the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the
expected hfe of the finanoial asset to
that asset's net carrying amount on
nitial recognition

Taxation

The tax expense reprasents the sum
of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payzble 1s based on
taxable profit for the year Taxable
profitdiffers from net profit as
reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes
1tems that are never taxable or
deductible The Groups hability for
current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the batance
sheet date
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Deferred taxis the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying ameunts of
assets and labilites in the financel
statements and the corresponding tax
bases used 1 the computation of
taxable proht and s accounted for
using the balance sheet liability
method Deferred tax labilities are
generally recogrised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recogrised to the
extent that it 1s probable that taxable
prohts will be avallable against which
deductible temporary differences ean
be utihsed

Current and deferred tax are recognised
10 profit or lpss except when they
relate to 1items that are recogrised in
other comprehensive Income or directly
nequity mwhich case the current
and deferred tax are also recogmised
inother comprehensive Income or
directly in equity respectively Where
current tax of deferred tax anses

from the wutial accounting for a
business combination the tax effect
1sncluded in the accounting for the
business combination

VAT 1s accounted for in the accounts
In that amounts are shown net of VAT
except

~ Irrecoverable VAT 15 charged to the
Consoldated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income, and
included under the relevant
expenditure heading

- Irrecoverable VAT on the purchase
of an asset 1s included in addions

The net amount due to of from

HM Revenue and Customs inrespect
of VAT 15 included within payables
and receivables on the consclidated
statement of financial position

Property, plantand
equipment

Property plant and equipment are
carned at fair value or deprectated
historical cost which 1s used as a proxy
for fair value

Furniture and equiprment and
leasehold improvement are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation
and any recognised impairment loss

The Group capitalises property plant
and equipment purchased for a net
value of £3,000 or more and which
have a useful economic kfe in excess
of one year

Dapraciation s recogrsed so as to
write off the cost or valuation of
assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) fess
their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight line method
on the following bases

Fixtures and equipment
2 -5years

Leasehold improvement
Shorter of estimated remaining useful
Iife or outstanding lease term

IT equipment
3-5years

The estimated useful lives residual
values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
penod, with the effect of any changes
In estimate accounted foron a
prospective basis

Anitem of property, plant and
equipment 15 derecogrised upon
disposal or when no future economic
benefts are expected to anse from
the continued use of the asset The
gain or less ansing on the disposal or
scrappage of an asset 1s determined as
the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and 1s recognised In iIncome

Intangible assets acquired
separately

intangible assets including IT -
programs and software licences with
finrte useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost jess
accumulated amorusation and
accumulated impairment losses
Amortisaton 1s recognised on a
straight line basis over thair estimated
useful hves on the follewing bases

IT programs
3-10years

Software licences
Penod of licence

The estmated useful ife and
amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting penod with
the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective
basis Intangible assets with indefiniie
useful hves that are acquied
separately are carried at tost less
accumulated impairment losses

AnIntangible asset s derecogrised on
disposal or when no future econamic
benefits are expected fromuse or
disposal Gans or losses ansing from
de-recogrition of an intangifle asset,
measured as the drference between
the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are
recegnised In profit or less when the
asset is derecagrised

impairment of property,
plant and equipment and
intangible assets

At each balance sheet date the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets o determine whether there 15
any indication that those asseis have
suffered animpairment loss If any
suchindication exsts the recoverable
amount of the asset s esbmated 10
determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any} Where the
asset does notgenerate cash flows
that are independent from other
assets the Group estimates the
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recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset
belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of
fair value less costs tosell and value
In use

If the recoverable amount of an asset
15 estmated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the assets reduced toits
recoverable amount Animpairment
loss 1s recogrised immediately in profit
of loss unless the relevant asset s
carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss 1s treated as
arevaluation decregse

Where an impairment loss
subisequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assei s increased to
the rewised estimate of 1ts recoverable
amount, but so that the increased
carrying ameunt does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in pnor
years Areversalof animpairment loss
15 recogrused immediately in profit or
lass unless the relevant asset1s
carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the imparment
loss 1s treated as a revaluation
Increase

Finanaial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities
are recognised in the Group's balance
sheet when the Group becomesa
party to the contractual provistons of
the instrument

Financiat assets and financial habilities
are iInitally measured at fair value
Transaction costs that are directly
attnbutable te the acquisition or Issue
of financial assets and financial
liabiibies {other than financial assets
and financral habilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial iabiities
where material on initial recognition
Transac tion costs directly attnbutable
to the acqursibion of financial assets or

financial labities at fair value through
profit or loss are racogmised
immediately in profit or loss

The fair value of financial nstruments
1sdetermined by reference to quoted
market prices where an active market
exists for the trade of these
instruments The fair vaue of financial
instruments which are not traded In an
active market s datarnmined using
generally accepted valuation
techrigues includng estmated
discounted cash flows

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified nto the
following specified categones
finannial assets ‘at fair value through
profitor loss' (FVTPL) hefd-to-
maturity investments available for-
sale (AFS) finanaial assets and loans
and recevables The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and 1s determined
at the tme of 1mitial recognition

Effective interest method

The effective interest methed 1s 2
methad of calculaying the amortised
cost of a debt mstrument and of
allocating interest income over the
relevani penod The effective interest
ratg 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts
{including all fees paid or receved that
form an integral part of the effective
Interest rate transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through
the expected hfe of the debt '
instrument, or where appropnate a
shorter period to the net carrying
amount onwningal :mﬂG@_.:H_Q:

Income 1s recagnised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments
other than those hnancial assets
classified as at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value
through profitor loss (FYTPL)
Financial assets are classified as at
FYTPLwhen the finanaal asset s a
denvative finanaal instrument, held
for trading or 1t 15 designaied as at
FVTPL The VT Catalyst investments

have been designated as at FYTPL
There are na held for trading financial
assels

Finanoial assets at FYTPL are stated at
farvalue with any gains or losses
m:m_n—@ on fe-measurement annﬁ:_mmn_
nprofitorloss The netgain or loss
recogrised in profit or loss
Iincorporatas any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset

Held-to-matunty Investments
These are non derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the
Group has the positve intent and
ability to held to matunty Held to
maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment,
with revenue recognised on an
effective yield basis

Available for sale (AFS)
financial assets

AFS financial assets are non
derivatives that are either designated
as AFS or are not classified as () loans
and recevables {b) held-to-maturity
investments or (€) financial assets at
Fairvalue through profit or loss

The Group has investments (0 Limited
Partnerships and venture capatal
investments which are classified as
being AFS Faw value s determined in
the manner described in note 22
Gains and losses ansing from changes
n farr value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the financial
instrument reserve with the exception
of impairment losses interest
catculated using the effective interest
method and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary assets which
are recogrised directly in profit or loss
whera the investment s disposed of
or 15 determined to be impaired the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recogrised in the financial instrument
reserve 1s reclassified to profitor loss
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Dividends on AFS eguity Instruments
are recogrused in profit or loss when
the Groups night te recerve the
dividends is established

The fair value of AFS manetary assets
denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the
balance sheet date The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are
recogrised in profit or loss are
determined based on the amortised
cost of the monetary asset

Other foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other
comprehensive Income

Loans and receivables

Loans and recewvables are non-
deavative financial assets with fixed
or determinatle payments onginated
oracquired that are not guoted in an
active market

Loans and receivables comprise cash
and cash equivalents recevables and
loans Afterimtial recogrition they are
measured at amortised cost using the
effectve interest method tess any
wmpairment Gatns and losses are
recognised in the profit or loss through
the amortisation process Interest
income Is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate except for
short term recevables when the
recognition of interest would be
immatenal

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at
FVTPL are assessed for indicators of
impatrment at each balance sheet
date Financial assets are impawed
where there s objective evdence that,
as aresult of one or more events that
occurred after the inival recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment
have been affected

For allother assets objective evidence
of impairment could include

- significant inancial difiiculty of the
1s5ues or counterparty or

- default or dehinguency in interest
or priscipal paymenss, or

- 1tbeceming probable that the
bormower will enter bankeuptcy or
financial re-organisation

For certain categones of financial
assets such as trade receivables
assets that are assessed not to be
impared inddually are, in gddition
assessed forimparrmentan a
collective basis Objective evidence of
imparmerit for a portfoko of
recewvahles could include the Groups
past expenence of collecting
payments anincrease in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio
as well as observable changesin
national or lvcal economic canditions
that correlate wath default on
recevables

For financial assets carmed at
amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment)s the difference between
the assets carrying amount and the
present value of estmated future
cash flows discounted at the financial
asset s onginal effective nterest rate

The carrying amount of the financial
asset s reduced by the imparment
loss directly for alt inancial essets
with the exception of trade
racewvables where the carrying
armount 1s reduced through the use of
an allewance account When a trade
receivable 15 considered uncollectible,
1tis wntten off against the allowance
account Subsequent recovenes of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance
account Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss [

When an AFS financial asset 1s
considered te be impaired, cumulative
gans Qrlosses previously recognised
in other comprehensive INcome are
reclassified to profit or lossin the
pencd

I, in a subsequent penod, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease ¢an be related
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recogrised, the
previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the imparment
1s reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recegnised

De-recognition of inantal assets
The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual nghts
to the cash flows from the asset
expire or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the
nsks and rewards of ownershup of the
asset toanother entity If the Group
netther transfers nor retains
substanually all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asse. the Group
recogruses its retained interest in the
assetand an associated hability for
amounts it may have to pay If the
Group retains substantially all the nsks
and rewards of ownership of &
transferred Ainancial asset the Group
continues te recognise the finanoial
assetand also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds receved

Financial iabilities and equnty

Debt and equity instruments are
classified as either finanoial kabilites
or as equity in accordance wath the
substance of the contractual
arrangement
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Financial guarantee
contract habilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured imitially at thew fair
valuesand if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the tugher of

- the amount of the obligation under
the contract, as determined in
accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. and

- the amount iniuially recogrused
less where appropriate
cumulative amortisation
recogrised in accordance with
the revenue recogrition policies
set out above

Fimancial habihties

Financial habilities are dlassified as
either financial kiabilities at FVTPL or
other financial latnhities’ The Group
does not held any finanaal liabiitres
3t FVTPL

Other finanoal habihites nctuding
borrowings, are imually measured at
fair value net of transaction costs

Dther financial habilities are
subsequently measured at amortised
costusing the effective Interest
method with interest expense
recogrised on an effective yield basis

De-recegnition of financial
liabihties

The Group derecognises hinancial
higbilities when and only when ts
obligations are discharged cancelled
or they expire

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equwalents comprise
cashn hand and current balances
with banks and other inancial
insttutions, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to
wisgnificant aisk of changes in value
and have an cnginal maturity of
three months or less Bank overdraft
amounts are included within trade
and ather payables

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Croup has a present abligatien (legal
or constructive) as aresult of a past
event, it1s probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the ohliigation

The amount recognised as a provision !
1s the best esumate of the
consideration required to settle the
present abigation at the balance
sheet date, taking mto account the
risks and uncartaintes surrounding
the obkgation Where a prowision is
measured using the cash flows
estimated 10 settle the present
obligation 1is carrying amount 1s the
present value of those cash flows
(when the effect of the tme value of
money 15 matenal)

When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision _
are expected to be recovered from a {
third party a receivable s recognised
as an asset)f it 1s virtually certain that
raimbursement will be recewved and
the amount of the recevable can be
measured reliably

Contingent habilities

The Group has contingent kabilities
ansing through financial guarantees
A contingent lability 15 a possile
obligation depending on whether
some uncertain future event occurs
or a present obligation but payment is
not probable or the amount cannot be
measured reliably Contingent
habirties are not recogrised but
should instead be disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of
eCONOMIC reseurces IS remote Where
the ume value of money 1s matenal,
rontingent habihties whuch are
required to be disclosed under I1AS 37
are stated at discounted amounts

Foreign exchange

The indwdual financial statements of
each Group company are presented in
the currency of the pnmary economic
enviranment mwhich it operates

(1ts functional currency) which s
peunds sterling

The Group apphes IAS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates and transactions that are
dencminated in 2 foreign currency are
translated inte sterling at the rate of
exchange ruling on the date of each
transaction except where rates de not
fluctuate sigificantly, m which case
an average rate for a penod 15 used
Monetary assets and habilties
denominated n foreign currencies as
at the balance sheet date are
retranslated at the rates of exchange
ruling at that date These translation
differences are recognised in the
Consolidated Staterment of
Comprehensive Net Income
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Retirement benefit costs !

Payments to defined contnibution
retirement benefit schemes are
recegnised as an expense when
employees have rendered service
eniithng them to the contnbutions
Payments made to state managed
retirement bapeft schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined
contnibution schemes where the
Group s obligatiens under the schemes
are equivalent to those ansing 1na
defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme

Employee benefits

In accordance with |AS 19 Employee
benefits the Group recognises short
term employee benefits when an
employee has rendered serace in
exchange for those benefits

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership tc the lessee
Allother leases are classified as
operating leases

Rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to income on a
straight-hne basis over the term of
the relevant lease except where
another more systematic basis Ismare
representative of the tme patternin
which ecenomic benefits from the
lease asset are consumed

3 Critical accounting
judgements and key
sources of estimation ,
uncertainty

In the application of the Group s
accounting pohcies which are
descrbed in note 2 the Directors are
required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about

the carrying amounts of assets and
liabiliies that are not readily apparent
from other sources This applies

in particular to the valuation of
Enterpnse Capital Funds The
estimates and assouated assumptions
are based on hustoncal expenience and
other factors that are considered to
be relevant Actual resulis may differ
from these esumates

The estimates and undertying
assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the penod
inwhich the estimate is revised if the
revision affects anly that penod orin
the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both
current and future penods

The estimates and assumptions that

nsk causing a matenal adjustment o+
the carrying amounts of assets and
liabehties within the next financial

year are

- Fluctuations in the fair values of
available for sale assets, where '
quoted prices and other valuation
medels and techniques are used ta
determine estimated future cash
flows and include a number of
other assumpuons

— Directors judgements with regard
to the imparment of assets

- Fluctuations in the fair value of
financial haklities/quaraniees
measured using modeling
techniques ,

In addition, there 15 uncertamty in
estimating the effective interest rate
for vanous debt fund investments
The future returns from these
Investments are not kmited to
contracted cash flows of interast

and principal Future retums are
inherently uncertain and will depend
on arange of factors ncluding the
manager's SUcCess In onginating
lending cpportunities, costs and fees,
how the manager exercises discretion
in trading off eguity against debt
components in loan structures,

credit performance, and prevailng
market conditions

The Group has estimated effective
interest rates for alf debt fund
nvestriients on a consistent basis
Assndication of sensitvity a 25 basis
points decrease in the effective
Interest rate would decrease interest
income by around £2 mithon over a
one year peried and result ina
corresponding increase in revaluation
gains recogrised through other
comprehensive income
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4. Income

4 1 interestincome

An analysis of the Group s interest income is as follows

Notes to the consolidated financial statesments

6. Net gains (losses) on investment assets

2016 2015
£000 £900
Interest from lgans and recevables 131 3,066 211
Interest from held to maturity investments ) B 132 ~ 1090 -
Interest from available for sale assets - T 77 133 7 3530 ez
Total mtetest income 39,459 12033
4 2 Management fee
An analysis of the Group s management fee income 1s as follows
2016 2015
£000 £000
Management fee earned from
Angel Co-Fund 340 142
Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy 10 650 5026
Capital for Enterprise Fund LP T 369 156
Qther 18 7
Tatal management fee Income 11377 5331
4 3 Otherincome
An analysis of the Group s other income s as follows
2016 z015
£000 £000
Grant income before 1 November 2014 - 315
Asrangement fees ’ 241 -
Total other income 241 315

5. Proceeds of warranty claim

On 1 Novemnber 2014 the Croup acquired the share capital of British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) from British Business
Holdco Limited {BBHL) a wholly owned subsidiary of BEIS for tonsiderauon of E118 7m which was equal te the fair value

of the net assets of BBFL at the transaction date

In2015-16 a re-assessment of the BBFL deferred tax hability as at 1 November 2014 was made by the Group s tax advisers
who determined that the hability inctuded within the farr value of the net assets of BBFL at that date was understated by
£2 8m Consequently the Group sought. and BEIS agreed to payment of that amount under the terms of a tax covenant

within the share purchase agreement The amount was subsequently settled by BEIS
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2016 2015
Notes £000 £000
Impairment of invastments in associates 12 (&) €
Baddebtallowancecnloansandrecevables 131 (143) 124
impairment of avalable-for sale assets 133 (170) -
Impairment of non-ECF avallable-for sa'e financial assets 133 (1082) -
Foreign exchange (gans} losses on available-for-sale
financial assets 133 Ls24  (1174)
Fair value (gains) losses on assets held at fair value through
proft and lpss 134 334 (370)
457 (1670)
7 Operating expenditure
7.1 Staff numbers and staff costs
The average monthly number of employees including executive directors was
2016 2015
EDOO £000
Permanent staff a1 69
Seconded staff L B no 2%
Temparary and agency staff 15 15
107 108
Their aggregate remuneration compnsed
2016 2015
E0O0 EDOD
Wages and salaries - permanent staff including executive directors 6270 2448
Wages and salaries - seconded staff o ~1q18 657
Wages and salaries - temparary and agency staff 1,796 1060
Non exetutive Directors' {ees 302 315
Shortand long termincentive plans and bonus scheme 908 703
Sacial secunty costs 915 378
Pension costs 983 432
Total staff costs 12,152 5,993

The figures in the above table for 2015 represent the average monthly number of employees since the British Business
Bank commenced its operations on 1 November 2014 When looking at the full financial year 2014-15, the average monthly

number of employees (including executive directors) for the year split between the above categones would be 29 8

and 8 respectively
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7 2 Otheroperating expenditure

2016 2015
EDDO £000
Professional fees - nvestment scheme design and transactions 2404 _766
-operational fees 658 1187
Accommadation and office services L . les7 664
Marketing 766 285
Auditer's remuneration . L nkm o 160
Staff related costs, including training and travel _ - ) - E -I 148
Other purthase of goods and services B94 186
7.243 3,396
Auditor's remuneration relates to fees payable for the audit of the Groups annual accounts
The Group s auditors did not provide any non audit services
7 3 Depreciation and amortisation
2016 2015
Notes £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment depreciaticn 10 228 92
Intangible assets amortisation 11 76 40
304 132
8 Taxation
B 1 Taxexpense
2016 2018
£000 £00D
Current tax expense
Current year 9218 3160
Adjustmentin sespect of pnor years {526) -
Total current tax expense 8,692 3,160
Deferred tax (sncome) expense
Currentyear e - {191 4766
Adjustmentnrespect of pnor years (17) -
Total deferred tax (income) expense (1,978} 4,766
Total tax expense 6,714 7,926
Recognised through profit and loss 8518 3160
Recognised through other comprehensive income (1804) 4766
Total tax expense 6,714 7,926

Corporation tax s calculated at 20% (2015 21%) of the estimated taxable proht for the year Deferred tax pnmanly relates
to the Group s investments in Enterprise Capital Funds it s calculated at 18% (2015 18%;) of the estmated unreahsed
gans within the funds This s a temporary uming difference and the tax willbecome payable once the gains are realised

n the undertying funds for example through investment exits
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The tables below reconcile the 1ax charge for the year

Protit/(loss) before tax Current tax
2016 2015 2016 2015
E00D EO0D £000 £00D
Net operating profit before tax {14 818} (13958} (2 963) (2931}
Net gainon nvestmeants anﬁ_m:_mmn_
INreserves 12273 5735 2455 1204
Permanent disallowances relating to -
ECF provision expense - 36,551 26055 7318 5471
Unwind of ECF fair value impairment (13,083} (4.270) (2617) (897}
Dther permanent disallowances __ [LBad) 153 (369) o mm
Timng dfferences relating to T o 111
ECFdenvative farvaluemovement  ~ (6638) (3601 (1,328) {796)
ECF accrued return (8430) (3214) {1,686) (675)
ECF imparrment 32643 2262 6529 475
ECF :m|m__mmn_ gains 9097 5500 1819 1155
Long-Term Incentive Plan accrued
expenditure 112 634 22 112
Other timng differences 1082 (45) 216 (9
Losses brought forward (896) {99) (179) (21}
Profts chargeable to current tax 46,089 15,052 9,218 3160
Unrealised (losses) gains Deferred tax
2016 2015 206 2018
£000 £Q00 £000 £000
Unrealised (losses) gains
on ECF investments {10022 23,569 (1804) 4714
Other unrealised gains {872) 261 {157) 52
Unrealised gains subject to
deferred tax {10,894) 23,830 (1,961) 4 766
8 2 Corporation tax payable
2016 2015
£0C0 £000
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 2015 =~ o _ 4402 o -
Anging on acgusilion of nvestment assets - 1242
Tax expense for the penod 8692 3160
Tax pard {7 384} -
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 2016 5,710 4,402
8 3 Deferred tax hability
2016 2015
£000 £000
Deferred tax hability at 31 March 2015 4774 B
Movement in the year (1,978) 4 766
Deferred tax liability at 31 March 2016 2 796 4774
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9 Operating segments

The Groups performance ang results are managed internally as follows

- Briush Businass Bank entities these are sphit into British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) British Business Bank
Investments Ltd {BBBIL) and the overall Group results

- Programmes adminisiered on behalf of BEIS In addition toits own aperations the Bntish Business Bank also theough

1ts subsidiary British Business Financial Services Ltd {BBFSL), administers assets on behalf of the Department for

Business Enemy and Industrial Strategy These assets do not form part of the British Business Bank plc Group financial
statements but are reported to management The financial performance and position of these programmes is included

within the strategic report These figures are not part of the audited financial statements

- Business units The Groups business units span the different subsidiaries to pool expertise

Group profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2016

Lamgany Intra group
BBFL BEBIL  plcand @BFSL eliminations Total Group
£000 £0D0 E000 £000 E0OD

income
Investment programmes . 31029 31028
Venture Capital Soluticns B 430 o 8430
Qther income 578 336 23,765 {13061) 11618

9008 31 365 23,765 (13,061} 51077
Netinvestment income
(costs)
Investment programmes 1545 1545
venture Capital Solutions {ex ECF} (1088) (1088)

{1080) 1545 457
Operational Costs .
Staff costs (786) {969) (16437) (12192)
Professional services (202) (670) {2.763) (3 641)
General operations {3054) (3692} (10221) 13,061 (3906)

(4042) {5337} (23 421) 13 0E1 {19739)
Net operating profit 3,878 27 573 344 - 31,795
Impairment of ECF
Investment assets _ (32643 i (32643
Fair value gain on denvatives 6,638 6,638
ECF fair value prowisicn expense (36,591) {36,591)
Unwind of ECF fair value
Imparment 13083 } - o . __ 13083
Proceeds of warranty claim 2,900 2900
Earnings on an IFRS basis (45,635) 27,573 3,244 - {14,818)
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Group profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2015

Company intra group
BAFL BEBIL pic and BBFSL eliminations Total Group
£000 £00D £000 E0DD £000
Income
Investment Pragrammes _ - __ _ 8BBI3 - -.| - ___BB1g
Venture Capatal Solutions 324 - - - 3214
Other income 262 400 11,244 (6 260} 5646
3476 §219 11244 {5 260} 17679
Net investment income
{costs)
Jowestment Programmes - (1es@) - - - (1668)
Venture Caprtal Solutions (ex ECF) =] - - - (2)
2} (1668) - - {1.670)
Operational Costs
Staff costs G (560) (5.11) - (5953)
Professional services 9 (65) {1829) - (1953)
General operations. {1496} (1 BB2)} (4477} 6260 {1575)
(1.B72) (2,487) {11,422) 6260 (8.52])
Net operating profit 1,602 5,064 (178) - ,488
Imparrnent of ECF investment
assets (2 262) (2 262)
Fai value gain on denvatives 3601 R o __3em
ECF fair value provision expense __ (e6055) o - - {26 055)
Unwind of ECF fair value
imparment 4270 - - - 4270
Earnings on an IFRS basts (18 844} 5,064 (178) - {13 958)

B4

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Notes to the censolidated financial statements

ECFs

The Bntish Business Bank arcepts a lower return from ECF investments in order ta encourage private sector investors to
mvest Although the Bank expects to make a positive return from these investments this return s less than that required
by the private sector Actounting standards require the Bank to recogmise a hability when it makes a commitment to a

fund The Bark records this hability as a provisien When a commitment s drawn the Bank impairs the resulting investment
and utiises the pravision by a correspending amount This results in significant upfront expenditure when pew ECF
commitments are entered Into This expend iture gradually reverses over the ifetime of the investment as the impairment
isreversed The reversal has been estimated using the commercial discount rate used toimpair the investment The
expenditure doesn't relate to an underlying loss on ECFinvestments and s therefore excluded from the Group s financial
target The table below summanses the ameunts relating to the ECFs that have been recognised in armiving at the Group
loss bafore tax 1n the consohdated statement of comprehensive net income

2016 2015

£000 £000

Interest income } 8,430 3214
Fairvalue gains on dervatives a 6638 3,601
Impairment (32643) (2 262)
Unwind of impairment 13083 4270
Provision utihised in year {note 17) 12 284 5641
. 7,792 14 464

Prowision against future commitments (note 17) (48 875) (31 696)
Net loss on Enterprise Capital Funds {41 083) {17 232)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2016
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BBFL BRAIL Company pit Total Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
jnvestment Pmum_a_.:m }
BFPMidCop_ . - 499 641 - 499 641
Investment Progromme R o - . 147,771 - 142,771
GFF Small Cap - 39572 - 39572
Venture nwu_.mm_ mo:_c:ogw o : }
_Enterpnse Coprtal Furd ... 55224 - .~ _ .. 155224
VC Cataiyst - 15,028 - 15,029
Other venture nm_u:m_s__.amm:._._m:ﬁ 10415 - ) 10415
Total investment assets 165,639 702 013 - 867,652
ECF fair value provision (108 212) - - {108 212)
Net invesiment assets 57 427 702 013 - 759,440
Other assets/{liabilities)
Cash B 8157 3389 46836 58382
Tangible and iIntangible assets - - 480 480
Net other payables (2,140) 3611 (B 051) (6280)
Total netassets B3 444 709,313 39 265 812,022
Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2015
BBFL BBEIL {ompany plc Total Group
£000 €000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Investment Programme ~
BFF Mid Cap - 426 029 - 426 029
Investment h_.d‘m:m\_:m_.am - 38465 - 384685
8P Smaoll Cap - 28643 - 26643
Venture Capital Solutions
Enterprise Coprtal Fund 148312 - - 148,312
VC Catalyst - 5313 - 5313
Qther venture capital investments 12 229 - - 12229
qomm_ Investment assets 160,541 438,450 - 658,991
ECF fair valug provisicn (71.621) - - (71 621)
Net investment assets 88,920 498 450 - 587 370
Other assets/{habilities}
Cash o 13837 16043 41168 71048
Tangible and intangible assets - - 768 768
Metother payables (8 431) (5 BOG) 3132 (11 105}
Total net assets 94,326 508 687 45,068 648 081
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10. Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2016
Leasehold
improvement IT equipment Total
€000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2015 140 520 660
Additions - 21 21
At 31 March 201G 140 541 681
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2015 (11) (81 s2)
Charge for the yaar (28) (200) (228)
At 31 March 2016 (39} (281) {320)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2016 101 260 361
At 31 March 2015 129 435 568
Asat 31 March 2015
Leasehold
improvement IT equipment Total
£000 EDQO £000

Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2014 - - -
Additions 140 520 660
At 31 March 2015 140 520 660
Atcumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31 Marth 2014 e - - -
Charge for the year (11) {81} (92)
At 31 March 2015 1n {81} (92)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015 129 439 568
At 31 March 2014 - - -
British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016 B?
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11. Intangible assets

Asat 31 March 2016
Software
T hicences Total

£000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2015 213 27 240
Addtoss 8 1 8
Disposals {14) - (14}
At 31 March 2016 207 28 235
Accumulated depreciatien and impawment
At 31 March 2015 (26} (24) (40)
Charge for the year . I U7 R ) B (76)
Released on disposals - - -
At 31 March 2016 {98) (18) (116)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2016 109 10 119
At 31 March 2015 187 13 200
Asat 31 March 2015

Software
T licences Totat

EQDO £000 EDOQ
Cost cr valuaticn
At3lMacch2ol4 e =
Additions 213 27 240
At 31 March 2015 213 27 240
Accumulated depreciation and imparment
At 31 March 2014 o = o B -
Charge for theyear T (25) (14) (40)
At 31 March 2015 (26) (14) {40)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015 187 13 200
AL 31 March 2014 - - -

12. Associates

Capstal for Enteeprise Lid disposed of its invastement tn its assonate (SAS Athena) dunng the year incurnng a loss of ES 819

The carrying value of the investment as at 31 March 2015 was £14 000 and the sale proceeds were £8 181

B8
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13 Investments

Business Finance
Partnership

Briush Business Bank investments
Limited (BBBIL} manages the Business
Finance Partnership programme

The Business Finance Partnarship
(BFP) has two strands The first strand
15 the BFP Mid Cap whichinvestsin
fund managers who lend to medium-
sized businesses with turnover of up
o £500m All of the the BFP Mid Cap
investments are classified as available
for sale assets Seenote 133

for detalls

The second strand is the BFP Small
Cap which investsn debt funds and
non-bank lenders that provide an
alternative source of lending for small
businesses with turnpver up to E75m
The majonity of the BFP SmallCaps
investments are tlassified as avatlable
for sale assets Seenote 13 3

for detals

Through aninvoice dhiscount firm,
B8BIL purchases invaices from
investors releasing money that would
otherwise be tied up for between
30and 120 days The investmentrs
classified as laans and recewvables It
also prowides funding through peer to
peer lending platforms making small
part-loans to borrowers alongside
other platform lenders This lendingis
also classified as loans and recewvables
See note 13 1 for details

Investment Programme

BBBIL manages the Invesiment
Frogramme [t makes commercial
investments that stimulate at least
the same amount of investment from
the pnvate sector encoufaging new
lenders into the market and the
growth of smaller lenders Most of
BBBIL s investments through the
Investment Programme are classified
as avalable-for-sale assets

However as with the BFP Small Cap
this programme has provided invoice
discount finance and participated in
peer to peer lending

Inaddition in 2015-16. through the
Investment Pragramme BEBIL
participatedin a pubhc issue of Tier 2
capital by Shawbrook Bank pl which
1ssued fixed rate reset callable
subordinated loan notes with animtial
semi annual coupon of BY2% The
1ssue was listed on the London Stock
Exchange on 2Bth October 2015 See
note 13 2 for detals

VC Catalyst

The VC Catalyst Fund investments are
funted by BBBIL The VC Catalyst Fund
invests in commerciafly viable venture
capital funds that might otherwise fail
to reach a satsfactory first close’ - the !
paint at which a fund has raised
enough money to begin making
investments in businesses It enables
private sector investment already
committed to those funds to be
unlocked and invested in growth
companies

The British Bustness Bank has chasen
to account for all of its new VC Catalyst
investments at fair value through
profit or loss as explained n the
accounting policies in note 2

See note 13 4 for details

Enterprise Capital Funds

Briish Business Finance Limited
(BBFL) runs Enterpnse Capital Funds
(ECFs) ECFs are commercially focused
funds that bring together private and
public maney tomake equity
investments in high growth
businesses BBFL invests into funds
on terms that imprave the outcome for
pnvate sector investors when those
funds are successful k does this by
taking an agreed prioritised return of
3-4 5% In return BBFL s enbitledto
less of the remaining ups:de gam, in
excess of the agreed return, if a fund
15 successtul

BBFL intentionally makes a trade off
between the pricriised return and
upside gains Overall the terms mean
that BBFL expects the ECFs to provide
a positive return to government but
that this returnowill be lower than that
tymically sought by a pnivate sector
investor This1s in ing with the group s
strategic objectives

The investments which BBFL make

in ECFs meet the accounting definition
of aloan and are classified as available
for sale assets Any upside returns
which the funds generate are
separately accounted for as dervatives

Accounting standards require that
available for sale assets ane held at far
value which is defined as the amount
that a private sector investor would
pay for the investments This means
that every ECF investment 1s impaired
to reflect the fact that it will not
provide the level of return sought

by a private sector investor, even if
1t15 providing a positive return The
impairment then reverses over the life
of the asset to'top-up the pnontised
return and provide a cammercial rate
of return in the accounts See note
133 for details

In addition, BBFL signs ECF
agreements committing to the
priontuised return and reduced upside
gain in advance of drawdowns At the
poirt that BBFL enters into anew
commitment 1t becomes probable that
twall ncur accounting losses through
recogmition of a fair value impairment
Consequently BBFL has to recognise a
provision for the habthty it1s takingon
at the point of commitment and this
provision i1s utilised to cover the
impairment when a drawdown i1s
made Seencte 17 fordetals

where a fund performs well enough
to more than repay BBFL s paontised
return and capital the remaining
return s accounted for as a dervative
These are detailed in note 135
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Other venture capital investments

BBFL also has three other smaller venture capital schemes Bridges Aspire and the Capital for Enterprise Fund These are
detailled nnote 13 3

13 1 Leansand receivables

Asat31March 2016
Attrued  Bad debt/
Qpening  Transfers  Additions Repayments Return  allowance Closing
£000 £000 E000 EQOD £000 EQDOQ £000
Private companies
BFP Small Business ) 3357 8289 1308 (7600) 654 161 6209
Investment Programme 15 064 28,148 24,021 (2,663) 2412 (304) 66,678
Total 18461 36437 25329 (10,263) 3,066 (143) 72,887
As at 31 March 2015
Atguired on Accrued  Bad debt/
310ct2014 Transfers Additions Repayments Return allowance Closing
£000 £000 £000 £000 EDDC EOCO EQOO

Private companies

8FP Small Business 3493 - - (171} 199 {124) 3397
Investment Programme - - 15052 - 12 - 15064
Tota! 3,493 - 15,052 {171) 211 (124} 18.461

The carrying value of the leans and recevable assets approximates to therr fair value

13 2 Held to maturity investments

As at 31 March 2016
Accrued Baddebt/

Opemng Transfers Additions Repayments Return aliowance Clasing

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 EDOO £400
Private companies
Investment Programme - - 30000 - 1080 - 31090
Total - - 30,000 - 1,090 -~ 31090

The IP banking loan represent an investment n fixed rate reset callable subordinated loan notas with an mitial semi-annual
coupon of BYz% issued by Shawbrock Bank plc The loan s expected to be held to maturity
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13 3 Available for sale assets

At 31 March 2016
Wrwind Foreign
offalr exchange
Accrued valhre galns/
Opening  Addibons Repayments Interest Revalpation  Impainhent (osses)  Emparment Ciosing
E000 E00D £000 £000 €000 EGDO E000 £QCD £000
Limited partnership
mnvestments
BFP Mid Cap 426029 112B38 (72733) 22781 10726 - - - 499641
BFP Small Business 25246 9460 (4298) 1251 1043 - Be3 (170y 33,363
Investment Programme 23401 29504 (6 988) 2841 544 - 701 - 50003
Total 474,676 151 810 (B4 019) 26873 12313 - 1524 (170} 583 007
Venture capital
mnvestments
Enterprise
CapralFunds 136039 34381 (22977) B430 13083 (32843 136,313
Bridges 1393 - (82) - - - 1311
Aspire 3,569 43 - - (40} - (1082 2490
Capital for
Enterpnise Fund 7253 265 {904} - - - - 6614
Total 148,254 34,6B9 (23.963) 8,430 {40} 13,083 - (33,725) 146,728
Total available
forsale assets 522,930 186,499 (107,962} 35,303 12,273 13,083 1,524 (33,695) 729,735
At 31 March 2015
Unwind Forelgn
offair  exthange
Acquiredon Accrued value gains/
31Det2014  Additions Repayments Interest Revaluation Impawment {lesses)  mpairment Cloyng
£000 £000 EC00 £000 EDOD £000 £000 £000 £000
Limited partnership
Investments _ o o
BFPMid Cap 339208 117146 (42.752) 7,384 5,043 - - - 426,029
BFP Small Business 19,160 5,281 216) 698 990 - (667) - 75246
Investment Programme 8532 15188 - 526 (338} - (507) - 23401
Total 366,000 137,615 (42.968) B.E08B 5695 - {1174) - 474,676
Venture capital
mvestments oL e I .
Enterprise
Capital Funds 121870 17062  (B1i5} 3214 - 4270 (2262} 136039
Bridges 1514 5 (126) - - - - - 1393
Aspre 3528 - - - 4 - - - 3569
Capital for
Enterpnse Fund 11 960 145 (4,853} - - - - - 7253
Total 138,873 17,213 {13,094) 3,214 40 4,270 - {2,262) 148,254
Total available
for sale assets 505773 154620 (56062) 11822 5735 4,270 (1174) {2.262) $22,930
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13 4 Assets designated at fair value through profitor loss

At 31 March 2016

Opening Additions Repayments Revaluation Closing

EODD EDDY £000 £000 ECDO

VC Catalyst 5313 9791 {409) 334 15,029

Total 5,313 9,791 {409} 334 15 029
At 31 March 2015

Acquured on

31 0ct 2014 Additions Repayments Revaluation Closing

M £Q0D £00D £000 EQRD £000

v Catalyst 3181 3065 (563) {370) 5313

Totat 3181 3 D65 (563) (370) 5313

135 Derivatives

At 31 March 2016

At At

31 March 2015 Repayments Revaluation 31 March 2018

£000 £000 EQDO EQDO

Enterprise Capital Funds 12273 - 6638 18911

Total 12273 - 5 638 18,911
At 31 March 2015

Acguired on AL

310ct 2014 Repayments Revaluation 31 March2015

£000 EDQQ £000 E0Q0

Enterpnse Capital Funds S 882 {1210) 3601 12 273

Total 9 B8B2 (1,210} 3,601 12,373
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14. Trade and other receivables

2016 2015
£000 E0CO

Amounts receivable within one year
Trade recevables 15982 1192
Accrued income 1761 3835
Prepayments . 130 -
Qther receivables 228 35
18101 S 062

Trade receivables disclosed above are classihied as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost

Of the amount above £2 1Im (2015 £1 0 miflion) of trade receivables and £1 8 million (2015 £3 8 million) of accrued income
are recevable from the Department for Business, Energy and Industnal Strategy The trade recewvables balance includes
E12 3mof cashin transit at 31 March 2016 that has been paid to acquire assets but where the cash has not been received
by the counterparty

15. Cash and cash equivalents

The following balances were held at year end

2016 2015
£000 £000
Government Banking Service 55 800 68118
Commercial banks 2,582 2,930
Total 58382 71048

The British Business Bank generally maintains a cash balance of at least E50m to fund investments As at 31 March 2016
the cash balance was £58 3m of which £41 5m was used to find investments in April and May 2016 As the majonty of the
cash 1s held in the Government Banking Service there s minimal cost to the Exchequer
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16 Trade and other payables

2016 2015
£000 EDDD
Amcunts falling due within one year
Trade payables 347 14
VAT and sotial security 1686 346
Sharsholder loan 6,862 2081
Accrued expendiiure 2,892 2,597
Cther payables 1,980 1527
15787 5565
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Accrued expenditure 38 426
858 426
The sharehclder Ioan 1s from the Department for Business Energy and Industna! Strateqy All shareholder Icans are
subsequently converted to share capital
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to thewr fair value
17. Provistons
2016 2015
£000 000
Opening balance 71621 -
Acquired on purchase of ECF investments - 45566
Provded inyear ) 48875 316%
Provision utilised nyear _(l0242) (5641)
Provision released in year (2042) -
Closing balarce 108,212 71621
Of which
Current 26 373 18 866
Nen-current 81834 51,755
108.212 71,621
All provisiens relate to joan commitments
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18 Contingent habihties and indemnities

The Group has taken advantage of the exempiion available under section 475A Subsidiary companies conditiens for
exempticn from audit of the Companies Act which exempts qualifying companies from the audrt of their indwidual accounts

for a finanoal year The exemption s respect of the following subsicaries

Subsidiary name

British Business Finance Limited

British mcmw__._mmm Financia! Services Limited
nm_u_wm‘ for mmnmazmm Limited

Capita! for Enterpnse Fund Managers Lirmited
Capital for Enterpnse (GPY Limited

Aspire Holdco Limited

Registered No
09091928
091746521
06179047
06826072
50354489
09263859

As required by the Act, the British Business Bank plc

- Guarantees all outstanding habihties to which the subsidiary companies are subject at the end of the financial year to

which the guarantee relates and until they are satisfied in full and

- Asserts that the guarantee is enforceable against the Bntish Business Bank plc by any person to whom the subsidiary

comparues are lable in respect of those habdries

19. Capital and other commitments

151 Capital commitments

The Bntish Business Bank plc had the following commitments at the balance sheet date in relation to its existing

investment portichio
2016 2018
£000 £000
British Business Bank Investments Ltd
BFPSmall Business o _ R 11971 27,836
BFPMid Cap ) N . e c2Z 451 457,537
Investment Programme ‘ 256762 136453
VC Catalyst 54,609 24 400
Venture Capital Solutiens
Enterpnse Capital Funds 253594 195090
Bridges Venture Fund 577 899
Capital for Enterprise Fund - 7086
755 984 B49 301
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19 2 Operating lease commitments

The Bank's occupation of its registered office at Foundry House 3 Midisands, Riverside Exchange, Sheffield 53 8NH s
governed by a Memaorandurm of Terms of Occupation (MOTD) covening the penoed from 17 December 2012 to 30 une 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2016 lease payments of £77 870 were recogrised as an expense in the year

The lease commitments as at the balance sheet date are as follows

<lyr 1 Syrs >Cyrs Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating lease 78 20 - 98

The Bank 15 in the process of negohating a new MOTO to cover its eccupation of office space at Fleetbank House
2-6 Salisbury Square London EC4Y BJX The MOTO 1s expected io permit the Bank to accupy the spare to 1 Apnl 2019
with an option to break the agreement upon serving six months notice

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Bank paid £350,000 n expenses in relation to occupying the offices

(icluding service charges rates and utilities)

20 Share capital

2016 2015
Ne No
Authonsed ordinary shares of £1 each 5000 000 5000 D00
2016 2015
No No

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each
Brought forward e o 664 326 . 50
Shargsssued for cash 173,200 BE4 276
Carried forward B37 526 664,326

The Company has cne class of ardinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
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21. Subsidiaries and other significant undertakings 22 FinancalInstruments

The Group consists of a parent company British Business Bank plc, Incorporated in the UK and a number of subsidianes

teld directly by the British Business Bank plc which operate and are incorporated in the Urited Kingdom 22 1Categones of financialinstruments

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are shown below The capital of each entity depends on its nature The following table analyses the Group s financial assets and labikties in accordance with the tategones of finangial
and consists of ordinary shares instruments in IAS 39 Financial Instruments, Recogrrtien ond Meosurement Assets and habilities outside the scope of
I1AS 39 are shown separately
Country of Shares held
Subsidiary Incorperation Nature of Business by the Company As at 31 March 2016
British Business Bank UK Makes commercial Investments into providers of 100% Non-
Assets Liabiiizles  financial
Investments Limited finance to smaller businesses plus venture capital held Loans Heldto  Available held at assels
B ] fund investments ~ . at and  maturty  forsale amortised and
Bnitish Business Finance UK Manages and invests intc schemes on behalf 100% FVTPL receivables investments assets cost  liabilities Total
Limited ~__ oftheGroup Note £000 EQQO EQQQ £000 £000 £000 £000D
British Business Financial UK Administers mvestment schemes on behalf 100% Assets
Services Limited of the Department for Business, Energy and Property, plant and equipment 10 - - - - - 361 mm.w,
Industral Strategy Intangible assets 11 - - - - - 119 119
Details of the subsid Its including thew ret assets as at the balance sheet date and their profit or loss for the Loans and recenvables Bl - 7eB87 — . y - Jege
etails o 12 SUDSICIaries resul Inciuding 1 Ne’ ~ - - - _ - <\|
penod ended 31 March 2016, are prowsded in the segmental reporting note 9 Held to matunty investments 132 31030 31020
Avalable for-sale
The British Business Bank Group a'se has the following significant haldings in undertakings other . financial assets 133 - - 729,735 - - 728735
than subsidianes Designated at FYTPL 134 15029 - - - - - 15029
Denvatves 135 18911 - - - - 1pan
Proportion held Trade and other recevables 14 17,971 - - - - 1797
Country Inwhich  Class of share held by by the British Prepayments 14 - - - - - H..Jw.mu! 130
Name itls incorporated  the British Business Bank Business Bank Cash and cash equivalents 15 - cg3gz T - T T S5 382
BMSFinanceSARL _ Luxembourg  Notdssfied ~— _  _ __ _ __498% alassets 33,940 149,240 31090 720 735 - 610 944,615
Industrial Lending 1
(Boost Fund) _ Luxembourg Class Ashares 44 1% Liabilities _ _ - - - . _
_u:n_umm,mq___:m Corporate reland Not classifad &7 7% Trade and other payables 16 - - - - {14189} (1685 (15879
Bond Fund! | " rean ZB n_mmn_q m_.._ <00% Corporation tax B2 - - - - - (5710)  (5/710)
urica Capital Limite lersey o_ﬂn lassi -_dm e T e Deferred tax . _ 83 - - - = - (2798} _{2798)
VRG Ventures Uk nary shares Provisions 17 - - - - - Qosz12) {108219)
Pricoas latest financial year end was 30 June 2016 The fund does not produce separate accounts and therefore figures Total habilities - - - - (14 189)(118 404) (132,593}
for the fund are not available Net Assets 33,540 149240 31090 729,735 (14 189) (117,794) 812,022

2Jnca's latest financial year end was 30 June 2016 At the balance sheet date it had not published accounts in respect of
that year As at 30 june 2015 1ts aggregate amount of capital and reserves
was £4 428 650 and duning its financial year it made a profitof £1178
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22.2 Fairvalue
measurements

The informabon set out below
provides information alout how the
Group determines fair values of
vanious financial assets and financial
hatiities

The investment portfoho consists of
assets carned at amortised cost (loans
and recevables and held to matunty
investments) and fair value (available
for sale assets, assets destgnated at
fairvalue through profit and loss and
denvatives) Faw value s the pnce that
would be recerved to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a hability in an orderly
transaction between market
participants at the measurement date
regardless of whether that pnce s
directly observable or estimated using
another valuatian techmique

Fair value of the Group's financial
assets and finantial habihities that
are measured at fair value ona
recurring basis

Avaitable for sale assets

For all AFS assets except for the
Enterpnse Capital Funds the
investrent valuation anat asset
valuation (NAV) 15 determined by
Invesiment managers on a regular
basis (manthly or quarterly)

The directors review the investment
valuatien reports penodically and are
satisfied with the year-end valuations
presented in the financial statements

Enterpnse Capital Funds, assets
designated at fair value through
profit or loss & denvatives

The primary valuation methodelogy
used for the debt element of
mvestments s the discounted cash
flaw method Fawr value 15 estimated
by derving the present value of the
investment using reasonable
assumpiions of expected future cash
flows and the estimated repayment
value and date discounted at the
apprepriate nsk-adjusted discount
rate The discount rate 1s estimated
with reference to the market nisk-free
rate and a nsk-adjusted premium

Each snvestment has a penodically
updated model which far each
valuation assessment s updated

for actual asset performance and key
assumption and input changes

Enterprise Capitai Funds also contain a separately identihed equity dervative The derivatives are valued using the Black-
Schotes model The key inputs used in the denvative valuation are

Input
Met amount drawn and fund valuation
as at 31 March 2016

Volatility - ranging from 29% t0 32%

Dwidend yield - ranging from 3 0% to 4 5%

Risk free rate

Time to fund et - ranging from 0-10 years

Assumptions In determining the input
Reported by fund managers

Assessed mmuﬂaﬁmzﬂmmmn: Fund based on .ﬁﬂ:mu_:_:m

investment period and estimated tmetable for fund exits
The VIX and the VXN indexes have been used as a proxy for
the expected volatity for non-sector specific and technology
speahc funds respectively

Set t equal the contractual return which funds must pay

before any upside on the option 1s reahsed
Derved from UK Government bonds
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Fanr value of financial assets and
financial labilities that are not
measured at fair value ona
recurrng basis (but fair value
disclosures are required}

The directors consider that the
carrying amounts of the loans and
recewvables and held to matunty
financiat assets recorded at amortised
costin the financial statements
approximate their farr values

In addition. for financial reporting
purposes fair value measurements
are categonsed into Level 1 2or 3
based on the degree ta which the
inputs to the far value measurements
are phservable and the sigificance
of the Inputs to the farr value
measuremant inits entirety, which
are described as follows

- Level1 fair value measurements
are those denved from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active
markets,

~ Level 2 fair value measurements
are those denved from inputs
other than quoted prces included
within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset orhability either
directly {1e as prices) or indirectfy
{1e derwed frem pnces) and

- Level 3 fair value measurements
are those denved from valuation
techmigues thatinclude inputs for
the asset or hability that are not
based on observabie market data
{unchservable inputs)

The Group s financial assets at fair
value theough the profit and loss
avallable for sale assets and loans and
receivables are all classified as Level 3
assets The Group's held to matunty
investments are classified as Level 1
assets

At 31 March 2016 based on the
valuaticn assessment available-for
sale assets were increased by £12 3
million (2015 €5 7mellion) takento
Other Comprehensve Income

inaddition the far value of dervative
assets held was increased by

E£6 6 milhon (2015 £3 Gmilhon}
taken to the Income Statement

22 3 Financaal nsk
management

The Group has exposure to a number
of financial sks through the conduct
of itsoperations Detalls of the Group s
risk management structure are
provided in the Risk Management
section of the Strategic Report

This note presents information about
the nature and extent of risks anising
from the fingnckal instruments

BBB has exposure to the following
nisks from s use of financial
nstruments

- Creditnisk

- Marketrisk

Liquichty nsk 15 not deemed relevant
for the Group

Credit nisk

Credit and Investment nisk 1 the nsk of
alossdue to the falure of a
counterparty of a financial nstrument
to meet its cbhgations to pay the
Group in accordance with agreed
terms or due 10 the nisk of loss due to
Nappropriate Investment decsions
Credit risk also includes settlement
nsk when acounter party fails to
settle therr side of a transaction and
concentratton nsk The Group s wedit
nskis alsainfluenced by general
macroeconomic conditions

Credit nsk may anse i any of the
Group s asset where there is the
potenual for default including loans
and recevables and available for sale
investments with a contractual
repayment

The degree to which the Group is
exposed to this credit nsk depends on
the individual charactenstics of the
centeact counterparty and the nature
of the investment

The amount of exposure, before
taking into account any collateral or
secunity in each class of financial
asset 1s imited to the amount invested
at any given point in time

As part of the Risk Appetite protess
BBB undertakes stress scenaro
modelling anits portfolio Severe but
plausible stressed scenanos featuring
significant asset value corrections on
fair value of iInvestments and
hetghtened portfolio defaults were
applied to planned deployment and
stock levels in each Programme within
BBB The general approach s that
these scenaros are chosen on the
basis that they are as severeasa o
20 year downside scenano (1 e the
worst yearin the past 20 years) The
output of this exertise reflects the nisk
undertaken by BBB operating in
underserved finance markets and
demanstrates that BEBwould suffer
significant losses If such a scenane
was to matenalise The findings of this
exaraise was considered by the Board
and also communicated to key
stakeholders

The value of the investments in each
class of financial assetss detaled in
section {i) of this note and in notes 13
to 17 which also give detals of total
impairment [osses during the year

For some debt investments
appropnate collateral 1s keld
depending on the Group’s programme
critena The nature of collateral may
change over time depending on the
investments which the Group holds in
any given penod The cencentration of
credit nsk1s limited due to the
investment base being large and
spread across the Groups operating
segments Accordingly the directors
believe that there 1s no further credit
provision required in excess of the
provision forimpatrment losses and
the specific provision for credit Iosses
detailed below
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Credit nsk assessment 1s carned out as
part of the investment approval
process and 1s revisited on an ongoing
basis as part of the Group s portiolic
management process

In determining fair value the Group has
made provision against the value of
certainof 11s loans and receivables,
those being recervables purchased
through an inveice discounter and
part ioans 1o borrowers that are made
alongside other platform lenders in
accardance withits provisioning policy
The basis of provisioning 1s different
for the different categories of loans
and recervables Indetermining the
recoverability of the amounts
recevable, the Group considers past
performance of recaveries

Wwith respect to receivables purchased
through an invoice discounter the
Groug provides for all debts which are
overdue by 90 days at arate of 10086
of the average overdue balance aver
the previous three months. In addition
1t makes 100% provision for all
recevables in respect of which there s
a known or expected problemin
collection evenif payment 15 not
overdue by 90 days At 31 March 2016
the gross value of receivables
purchased through an invoice
discounter was £4 7m of which

£185 111 was overdue and fully
provided Inadditiona further £66,314
was provided in respect of recavables
where there was a known or expected
collection problem

The Group makes provision for all
part-leans made to borrowers made
alongside other platform lenders
whuch are overdue by 90 days at arate
of 1009 At 31 March 2016 the gross
value of such recewvables was £32 9m
of which £1,593 154 was overdue by
S0 days and fully provided

No other repayments in respect of the
Group s finantial nstruments were
overdue at the balance sheet date

Market risk

Market Risk 15 the nisk of direct or
indirect losses that anse from
fluctuations in values of or income
from, assets o in movements in
Interest or exchange rates or credit
spreads The Group will identify
market nsk ansing from an inaihty
to exit an investment within the
intended time frame

i Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk rs the nsk that an entity
toes not have sufficient financial
resources in the short term to meet its
obhigations as they fall due orits
strategy 15 constrained by inadequate

, or inapproprate funding sources

. Liguidity nisk is not deemed
significantly relevant to the Group ast

115 100% Government funded withall
programmes pre approved and
commstted to and it does not have 3

+ leveraged balance sheet

Interest rate nsk

BBB's investments include a
combination of fived and vaniable rate
loans Interest rate nsk s regularly
monitored to ensure that the mix of
vanable and fixed rate borrowing 1s
appropnate The Group does not use
denvatves to hedge interest

rate nsk

LIBOR sensitvity of the investment |
Programme s as follows

- Thempactof a1 percentage point
Increasa in the interest rate '
applicable 1o Investments would be
an 2pproximate INCrease In Income
of £7m over a one year penod

- Thempactof a0 25 percentage
point decrease in the interest rate
applicable 1o nvestments would be
an approximate decrease in Ncome
of £2m over a one year penod
Lamger decreases would be
mitigated by a significant element
of LIBOR fleors

Currency nsk

The Group dogs not have matenal
exposura to currency nsk as the Group
primarily invest i 1ts functional
turrency GBP There are some
investments in funds which have a
Europe wide investment mandate, and
are denorninated in Euros A
prerequisite of these funds s that
they invest inte the UK at a fund level
a larger amount than our financial
investmant Approximately 636 of the
Group's portfolio 1s i non-GBP
denominated investments Theres
currently no policy to hedge this
currency risk
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23. Refated party transactions

Balances and transactions between the company and 1ts subsidianies which are related parties, have been ekminated on
consohdation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclased below

The Department for Business, Energy and Industnal Strategy (BEIS} 1s the principal shareholder and parent of the Briish
Business Bank plc BBB plc provides services 1o BEIS in refation to some of the financial assets held within BEIS and not yet
novated In refurn BBB recognises income in relation to the services provided Inaddition BEIS provided temporary staff to
the BBB Group for which there are rechargas

Trading transactions

During the year Group companies entered into the fallowing transactions with BEIS

2016 2015
£000 £000
Income
Grant-in aid D - 295
Management fee - o ) 10 650 5026
Praceeds of warranty daim 2900 -
Expenditure
Staff seconded from BEIS 673 450
Rent I - 158
Capital transactions
Shares issued L o _ 173200 664,276
Shareholder loan 0882 2081
196,655 672 286

Amounts outstanding at year end

As at the balance sheet date the Group was owed £3 9m from BEIS relating to the management fee (015 E4 Bm) and
owed BEIS £10m of which £0 7m relates to seconded staff £0 4m rent and a shareholdar loan of £8 9m (2015 £2 6m)

24. Events after the reporting date

The result of the referendum held on 23 June 2016 was in favour of the UK leaving the European Union A reasonable
estimate of the finanual effect of this event on the Group cannet be made This s a non-adjusting event

On 14 July 2016, follewing @ machinery of Government change 1t was announced that the Brrish Business Bank's
shareholder the Department for Business, Innovatien and Skills (BIS) 1s having ts responsibiities changed Our
shareholder s now the Department for Business Energy and Industnal Strategy (BEIS)

Asat the date of these annual report and accounts there have been no other post reparting date events that
require distlosure

25 Controlling party

In the opwian of the Directors the Group s parent company and ultimate controlling party s the Secretary of State for the
Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy The consclidated fnancial statements of the Department for
Business Energy and Industnial Strategy are available from the government departments’ website at GOV UK
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Company statement
of financial position
as at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note £000 £000
RASSETS
Non current assets
Property plantand equipment _ ) 361 568
Intangibleassets . us 200
Investments 2 750 611 618 868
Total non-current assets 751,091 619,636
Current assets
Trade and gther recewvables 4 8785 9256
Deferred tax 93 -
Cash and rash equivalents E 45837 41168
Total current assets 55,715 50,424
Total assets BOG BO6 670 060
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 5 (15 491) (5408)
Corperation tax {56) (116}
Total current labilities (15 547) {5524)
Tetal assets less current liabilities 791,259 664,536
Non-current liabilities .
Trade and other payables - S I .7 (274)
Total non current habihties (47) (274}
Total habilities (15,594) (5,798}
Net assets/(liabilities) 791,212 664,262
Equity
lssued share capiial S Y 837526 664326
Retained earnings (4G 314) (64)
Total equity 791,212 £64,262

The hinancial statements of the group (company number 08616013} were appraved by the Board of Directors and
authansed for issue on 20th July 2616 They were signed on its behalf by

ZTET Ay

Keith Morgan
Chuef Executive Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2016

Issued capital Retained earmings Total
£000 2] £000
Opening balance as at 1 April 2014 50 {96) {46}
Net income after tax - 32 32
Total comprehensive income - 32 32
Issue of ordinary shares 664 276 - 664 276
Balance at 31 March 2015 E64 326 (B4) 664,262
QGpening balance as at 1 Apnl 2015 664,326 (64) 664,262
Netincome after tax - (46,250} (46,250)
Total comprehensive income L - __ (462503 (46 250)
Issue of ordinary shares 173 200 - 173200
Balance at 31 March 2016 837,526 (46 314) 791 212
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Company cash flow statement

as at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note £000 £000
Profit before tax (46 323) 148
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments tor
Depreciation bad debt andimparments o4 132
Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings i 4 70¢57 -
Loss on disposatof intangible assets 14 -
Corporation tax paid .oy -
Movernent in trade recewvables 1Ii\ |w . a T @ (9206)
Movement in trade payables 5 9856 5.586
Net cash receved from/{used for) eperating activities 34,499 (3,340)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of avalable-for sale assets 2 {202 000) {618 868)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (21) (660)
Purchase of intangible assets (9 (240Q)
Net cash used in investing activities (202 030} (619,768)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new shares 173,200 664,276
Net cash from financing activities 173,200 664,276
Netincrease/(decrease) incash and cash equivalents ___ _ 5669 41,168
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 41,168 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 46 837 41 168
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1. Sigmificant accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 ( the Act)

The Company s accounting policies are consistent with those described in the consolidated accounts of the British Business
Bank plc Disclosures in relation to property plantand equipment (note 10) Intangible assets (note 11) and share capital
(note 20} have not been repeated here as there are no differences to those provided in the tonsolidated accounts

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are accounted for at costin accordance with [AS 27 and are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to seii

These hnancial statements have been prepared on the going concemn basis as described in the conschidated accounts of
the British Business Bank plg. and under the histoncal cost convention The financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, which 1s the Company's functional currency

Profit of the parent company

The Company has taken acdvantage of section 408 of the Act and consequently the statement of comprehensive income
(including the profit and loss account) of the parent company 1s not presented as part of these accounts The loss of the
parent company for the financial period amounted to E46 250 D00 (2015 profit E32 000)

2 Investments

The Company acts as a holding company for the Group and has the following pnincipal subsidiary undertakings which
affected the Group s results or net assets

Subsidiary Nature of Business
British Business Bank Investments Limited (BBBIL) Makes commertial nvestments inte providers of
finance to smaller businesses plus venture capital
~ fund investments

Bntish Business Finance Limited (BBFL) Manages investment schemes on behalf of the Group
Bnush Business Financiai Services Limited {BBFSL) Manages investment schemes on behalf of

the Department for Business Energy and

Industral Strategy

All subsidiary undertakings are whally owned and incorporatad in the UK all shareholdings are in the name of the
British Business Bank plc
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At 31 March 2016
Invastment Investment Investment
In BBBIL InBBFL InBBFSL Total
£000 £000 EDDO £000
Opening balance 500,153 118715 - 6518868
Investmentnyear 158,000 13000 - 202,000
Impairment {1257 (69 000) - (70 257)
Clesing balance 687 896 62,715 - 750,611
At 31 March 2015
Irvestrtent Investment Investment
inBABIL InBBFL 1nBAFSL Total
£009Q £000 £000 £000
Opening balance - - - -
Investment in year 500153 118715 - 616 BG6B
Clostng balance 500,153 118,715 - 6518 868

The Cempany has impaired s investments in BBBIL and BBFL as the fair values have been assessed as beng lower than

the carrying amount would be measured at cost

3. Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash egquivalents balance represents cash held within the Government Banking Service

4. Trade and other receivables

2016 2015
£000 £000

Amounts recervable within one year ~
Trade receivables - R _ - __ . _2us_ 1185
Prepayments 130 B
Intra Group 6,286 2100
Other recewvables 193 23
B 785 9 256

Trade recervables disclosed above are classified as loans and recevables and are therefore measured at amortised cost
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5  Tradeand other payables

2016 2015
£000 £o00
Amecunis falling due within one year
Trade payables . 310 -
VAT and social security _ 1258 323
Accrued expenditure 1886 1523
Intra Group 2359 gal
Qther payables m.méu;m 2,681
15 491 5408
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Accrued expenditure 47 274
47 274

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value

& Related party transactions

Buning the year under review Bntish Business Bank plc was 1009 owned by the UK Government, with the shareholder
being the Secretary of State for the Department for Business, Energy and Industnal Strategy The Company has elected to
take the exemption under LAS 24 regarding disclosure of transactions with related parties because the UX Government has
control gver both the Company and other entities

The Company trades with Government bodies on an arm's length basis on commercial terms in ine with contractual
agreements The main Government bodies transacted with are the Department for Business Energy angd industnal
Strategy and the Cempany s pancipal subsidiary undertakings British Business Bank Investments Limited (BBBIL) Braush
Business Finance Limited (BBFL) and Bntish Business Frnancial Services Limited (BBFSL)

The Group's trading and capital other transactions with BIS were all effected through the Company and are gisclosed on
note 23 of the consolidated financial statements

The Company provided capital to BEBIL and BBFL as shawn in note 2 In add:tion it made charges to its principal subsidiary
undertakings i respect of services prowided on their behalf amounting to £12 7m (2015 E5 3m}

7 Contrelling party

In the opinien of the Directors the company's ultimate controlling party 15 the Secretary of State for the Department for
Business Energy and Industrial Strategy The consolidated financal statements of the Department for Business Energy
and Industral Strategy are available from the government departments website at GOVUK Copies of the group financial
statements of the Batish Business Bank plc are avallable from Companies House Crown Way Maindy Carcdiff CF14 3UZ
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